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The Dune, by Singapore’s Cultural Medallion
recipient Mr Goh Beng Kwan, is part of

the UOB Art Collection. The artwork is the
winning piece at the inaugural UOB Painting
Of The Year (“POY”) Competition in 1982,
and was inspired by a dune in a small town

in Massachusetts, USA, where Mr Goh

had studied to be an artist. The UOB POY
Competition and Exhibition is a flagship event
under the corporate social responsibility
programme of United Overseas Bank Limited.
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We have eight branches and two sub-branches strategically located across China.

BirS5{Edn Mission

KEBRITERABRBNFERER S United Overseas Bank Limited'’s

TR EERIT, RKIEAZ P mission is to be a premier bank in the

- . O Asia-Pacific region, committed to
REMRIFmSREENRS providing quality products and

excellent service.
jcifé%E'_(l:Fl E)Eﬁﬁl\ﬁiﬁﬁ/\ﬂ UOB (China) is committed to this
El’ijﬁﬁi, HEANTAF .EI] 3?7’{ mission and will strive to make

FE M H 5T R positive contributions to the
economic development in China.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED
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ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁif\%ﬁ%$
ITEHIT, AHATEREER

The Board of Directors of the Company assures that the
information presented in this report is true, accurate and
complete. This report was passed at the Board of Directors
Meeting held on 24 March 2010.

The financial statements of the Company for the year 2009
were audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming Shanghai Branch in
accordance with the China Certified Public Accountants’
Independent Auditing Standards, and have obtained standard
auditors’ reports without any reserved opinions.

Board of Directors, United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

24 March 2010
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About United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
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uobchina.com.cn

United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (“UOB (China)”) was locally
incorporated with a registered capital of RMB 3 billion.
Headquartered in Shanghai, it has obtained the foreign currency
banking licence, as well as the retail Renminbi licence for its
services in China.

UOB (China) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of United Overseas
Bank Limited, Singapore (“UOB”). It was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China on 18 December 2007 and officially
commenced business on 2 January 2008, making a new chapter
for UOB in China.

Since the establishment of the first representative office in Beijing
in 1984, UOB has experienced stable development and growth.
To date, its network in China extends to eight branches and two
sub-branches across Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
Xiamen, Chengdu, Shenyang and Tianjin.

UOB (China) offers a comprehensive range of foreign currency
banking services. It has also obtained the retail Renminbi licence
to offer Renminbi banking services to locals. Banking services for
both corporate and individuals include deposits, loans, project
and trade financing, remittance, guarantees and bills discounting
and foreign currency exchange, wealth management and
treasury services.

For more information, visit uobchina.com.cn

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 3
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About United Overseas Bank Limited
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4 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

Headquartered in Singapore, United Overseas Bank Limited
(“UOB”) is the parent company of United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited.

UOB was incorporated on 6 August 1935 as the United Chinese
Bank. Founded by Datuk Wee Kheng Chiang, the Bank catered
mainly to the Fujian community in its early years. The change of
name was effected in 1965.

Over the past 75 years, UOB has grown from strength to
strength. Through a series of acquisitions, it is now a leading
bank in Asia. Besides Far Eastern Bank in Singapore, UOB’s
major banking subsidiaries in the region are United Overseas
Bank (Malaysia), United Overseas Bank (Thai), PT Bank UOB
Indonesia, PT Bank UOB Buana and United Overseas Bank
(China). Today, the UOB Group has a network of over 500 offices
in 19 countries and territories in Asia Pacific, Western Europe and
North America.

UOB provides a wide range of financial services through its
global network of branches, offices, subsidiaries and associates;
personal financial services, private banking, commercial and
corporate banking, investment banking, corporate finance,
capital market activities, treasury services, futures broking, asset
management, venture capital management, insurance and
stockbroking services. UOB also has diversified interests in travel
and leasing.

In Singapore, UOB is a market leader in the credit card business
and the private residential home loan business. It is also a key
player in loans to small and medium enterprises. Its fund
management arm, UOB Asset Management, is one of
Singapore’s most awarded fund managers. UOB is rated among
the world’s top banks by Moody’s Investors Service, receiving B
for financial strength, and Aal and Prime-1 for long-term and
short-term bank deposits respectively.

For more information, visit uobgroup.com



FEMFZER
Financial Highlight

2008 2009
EFELE SR Operating result AR™F T RMB'000
F B2 Net interest income 480,855 373,084
FEEE A5 Net fee and commission income 28,453 15,735
E W\ A1t Total operating income 355,858 387,319
&% /A Total operating expenses 240,126 247,973
AR ER S Impairment charges 134,842 41,420
FBIFJE Profit before tax (12,182) 104,821
T EFE Net profit after tax (10,046) 79,176

B i {& Balance sheet

ARMTT RMB'000

#Err Rt Total assets 17,534,692 14,578,642
RIETE B3 Customer loans, net 10,621,193 9,393,993
ffEE 1T Total liabilities 14,259,115 11,215,483
R W 7F 3% Customer deposits 5,217,082 6,640,611
FTBE N a &1t Shareholders' equity 3,275,577 3,363,160
B FIBE J1FE4R Index on profitability %

HEPEFEER Return on average total assets (0.1) 0.6
AAFIEZE Return on average ordinary shareholders' equity (0.3) 2.4
R B IE R Net interest margin 3.0 2.9
FER ML RWALE 2N Net fee and commission income/total operating income 8.0 4.1
AU EE Expenses/income ratio 67.5 64.0
HErrRE BN Quality of assets %

AR ®EE Non-performing loan ratio 3.1 4.0
¥k & B 5% % Non-performing loan coverage 84.8 78.4
BT B EIEHR Capital adequacy ratio ("CAR") %

ZIDAARTERE Tier 1 CAR 29.4 36.0
HAT R X Total CAR 30.6 37.3

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 5
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Chairman’s message
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6 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

2009 was a year of stable growth for UOB (China).

Due to the global financial crisis, the year saw China’s economic
growth slow down and manufacturing and export sectors remain
sluggish. In view of that, the Chinese Government implemented
stimulus measures and a moderately easy monetary policy to
increase domestic demand, maintain economic growth and
adjust imbalances in the economic structure. As a result, China
was one of the first among major economies to recover and
record an annual growth rate that surpassed the rest of the world.

Finding Opportunities In A Challenging Period

The external environment brought opportunities and challenges
to UOB (China). As a bank with a customer base that comprises
mainly foreign companies and local trade enterprises, we were
inevitably affected by the crisis. Nevertheless, we were also able
to identify market opportunities during the challenging period.

During the year, our employees remained united and pushed
ahead as a team to achieve creditable results. To ensure the
Bank’s sustainable growth, we continued to improve our
corporate governance structure and strengthened our risk
management and internal controls. In line with the vision of
becoming a premier bank in the Asia-Pacific region, the UOB
Group re-aligned its organisation in 2009. UOB (China) was also
part of this transformation process. This would enable us to better
leverage the Group’s resources and expertise and grow our
franchise in China.

We remained committed to China and expanded our branch
network to better serve our customers. In the second half of
2009, we strengthened our presence with the opening of Tianjin
branch and Beijing Dongcheng Sub-Branch. Our branches in
Shenyang, Xiamen and Chengdu also obtained their Renminbi
retail business licence to offer local currency services to both
foreign and local customers.
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To complement our growing presence, we improved the range
and quality of our products and services. For institutional clients,
we started to offer settlement services, which are not commonly
offered by foreign banks, as well as M&A financing. We also
promoted our Business Internet Banking platform as a channel of
providing fast and convenient service to customers. We
introduced a series of structured products to meet the needs of
institutions and individuals. For retail banking, we focused on the
aspects of compliance and customer service — which are key
components in achieving long-term growth — for our sales team.

Leveraging the UOB Group’s resources in China, UOB (China) and
Evergrowing Bank — a local nation-wide joint-stock commercial
bank in which UOB has a stake - initiated business collaborations
which enabled the sharing of expertise on products and services,
IT, credit management and risk management.

UOB (China)’s steady approach and consistent efforts to raise
overall competency levels received recognition from industry
peers and customers alike. In 2009, we received awards in
several areas, including those for service and operational
excellence. The awards validate our promise to deliver value to
our stakeholders.

While we pursued business growth, we also found ways to
contribute to the community. In 2009, UOB (China) supported the
Polyclinic Charity Project in Fujian through a donation of
RMB500,000 for the establishment of the Fujian (Xiamen)-
Singapore Friendship Polyclinic.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 7
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Looking Ahead

Economic forecasts point to a year of continuing recovery for
China and the world economy. In addition, China’s exports,
domestic consumption and direct investments are expected to
continue to grow. While these are positive indicators of healthy
economic developments in China, there are still concerns over
inflation and monetary policy tightening. Nevertheless, China will
likely be a growth driver in the region. The Group looks forward to
seizing opportunities in China for further development.

UOB (China) is committed to providing quality products and
excellent service to our customers. UOB (China) will harness the
potential of the re-alignment and leverage the overall resources
and technology of the Group to support its growth in China. We
will continue to seek product innovation, improve service quality,
expand our distribution channels and enhance our service levels
to build the UOB brand in China. At the same time, we will
continue to explore and expand collaboration with Evergrowing
Bank. | believe that, with the support of the Group, commitment
of staff and guidance of the local government and regulators,
UOB (China) is well-placed to achieve a higher level of success.

Finally, I would like to express my deepest gratitude to everyone
who has provided guidance and assistance to UOB (China),
customers who have trusted and co-operated with us, as well as
our staff who have demonstrated such dedication and effort. We
look forward to a productive and positive year ahead.

Wee Ee Cheong
March 2010
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Registered Name
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

Legal Representative
Wee Ee Cheong

Registered Office

13-14F, Unit 606-609

1118 Pudong South Road

Shanghai 200122, People’s Republic of China
Tel: 021 3852 8188

Fax: 021 3852 8189

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: uobchina.com.cn

Date of Incorporation
18 December 2007

Registration Authority
Shanghai Administration of Industry and Commerce

Registered Business Licence Number
310000400553992

Paid Up Share Capital
RMB 3,000,000,000

Shareholder (Founder)
United Overseas Bank Limited

Type of Company
Limited Company (Wholly Foreign-owned)

Tax Registration Number
310043669414723

Supervisor
Wee Cho Yaw

Board of Directors

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)

Lee Chin Yong Francis

Chua Tian Chu

Tan Kian Huat (President & CEQO)
Cham Tao Soon

Hua Sheng

Executive Committee
Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Lee Chin Yong Francis
Chua Tian Chu

Tan Kian Huat

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED
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Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Cham Tao Soon(Chairman)

Wee Ee Cheong

Lee Chin Yong Francis

Audit Committee

Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)
Lee Chin Yong Francis
Chua Tian Chu

Connected Transaction Control Committee
Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)

Lee Chin Yong Francis

Chong Kim Khong William

Risk Management Committee
Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)

Lee Chin Yong Francis

Chua Tian Chu

Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (Shanghai Branch)
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Wee Ee Cheong

Chairman

Age 57. Mr Wee was appointed to the
Board on 17 September 2007 as the
Chairman. He is also the Chairman of the
Bank’s Executive Committee and a
member of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee.

Mr Wee holds the position of Deputy
Chairman and CEO of United Overseas
Bank (“UOB”). He joined UOB in 1979. He
served as the Deputy Chairman and
President of UOB from 2000 to April 2007
and was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) on 27 April 2007.

He is a director of several UOB
subsidiaries and affiliates, including Far
Eastern Bank, United Overseas Insurance,
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia), United
Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company
and United International Securities. He is
also a commissioner of PT Bank UOB
Buana.

Mr Wee is the current Chairman of The
Association of Banks in Singapore. He
serves as a director of Wee Foundation
and Institute of Banking & Finance, and a
council member of Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He is a
member of the Board of Governors of the
Singapore-China Foundation. He is also a
member of Visa Inc Asia Pacific Advisory
Council, India-Singapore CEO Forum and
Advisory Board of the INSEAD East Asia
Council. He had previously served as
Deputy Chairman of Housing &
Development Board, and a director of
Port of Singapore Authority, UOL Group
and Pan Pacific Hotel Group.

He holds a Bachelor of Science (Business
Administration) and a Master of Arts
(Applied Economics) from The American
University, Washington, DC.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 11
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Lee Chin Yong Francis

Age 56. Mr Lee was appointed to the
Board on 27 December 2007 as a
non-executive director. He is also a
member of the Bank’s Executive,
Nominating and Remuneration, Audit,
Connected Transaction Control and Risk
Management Committees.

Mr Lee is Senior Executive Vice President
and Head of Group Retail at United
Overseas Bank Limited (“UOB”). He joined
UOB in 1980. He leads the UOB Group’s
retail businesses for consumers and small
business customers. Prior to his
appointment in Singapore in 2003, he was
the Chief Executive Officer of United
Overseas Bank (Malaysia). Between 2003
and 2008, Mr Lee was the Head of
International and spearheaded the
Group’s expansion in the region. He was
also responsible for the Bank’s consumer
banking business in Singapore and the
region.

Mr Lee is a director of several UOB
subsidiaries and affiliates, including United
Overseas Bank (Malaysia), United
Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company,
United Overseas Finance (Malaysia) Bhd,
UOB Property Investments, UOB
International Investment and UOB-Kay
Hian Holdings. He is Vice President
Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Buana
and Commissioner of PT Bank UOB
Indonesia.

He holds a Malaysia Certificate of
Education and has 31 years of experience
in the financial industry.



ERIK
51% , 20086 A6HZHINMANES
=, ATHITERS. FitZRSX

EEERSMR.

BHEl, BERNEEZRERITERAA
BB MU MERIMATRIZ A, RFER
TR BV EHER S, XBFET
REEHL, WHKRRE, BREENRE
WHE. tF2007FEMNKERIT,
RERATRIR A A REEE AR S
. HiE, MEHEERTEXSHE,
NREERERITETE. 8EMES
Bk 55,

BRI ERTRTHEBETBE5
F, EEHAWSEIT, Bbrl, MYE
EENTEETISREERRMV. LR
EFIME ST ERARBIEHNES
B2, 5] R SATHINRIZ AR 5 H I
TEERPVERITE.

BERMEEBRZEFRIT TE-—R2
E MRS R SRITEES .

BEXRMEEENFHIMEEIRT, 3k
BIARIBFLFURTIHEERLF
. et ERAERBEFREREER
TEHIER

Chua Tian Chu

Age 51. Mr Chua was appointed to the
Board on 6 June 2008 as a non-executive
director. He is also a member of the Bank’s
Executive, Audit and Risk Management
Committees.

Currently, Mr Chua is the Executive Vice
President and Head of the Global
Financial Institutions Group, Global
Markets and Investment Management at
United Overseas Bank (‘UOB”). Prior to
that, he was the Head of Greater China,
responsible for UOB’s operations in
Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong.
Mr Chua joined UOB in 2007 as Executive
Vice President, overseeing the Bank’s
international operations.

Mr Chua spent more than 15 years in
Citibank, holding senior management
positions in corporate banking, real estate,
and wealth management. He was the
Chief Executive Officer and Managing
Director of Orchard Parade Holdings
Limited, Singapore and the Executive
Director and Business Development Head
at Far East Organisation, Singapore.

Mr Chua also serves as a director of
Evergrowing Bank Company, a nation-wide
joint-stock commercial bank in China.

He holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil)
and a Master of Business Administration
from the National University of Singapore.
He also attended the Harvard Advanced
Management Programme at Harvard
Business School.

=R
Chua Tian Chu
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Tan Kian Huat

President & Chief Executive Officer
Age 52. Mr Tan was appointed to the
Board on 6 June 2008 as an Executive
Director. He is also a member of the
Bank’s Executive Committee.

Mr Tan has been the President and Chief
Executive Officer of UOB (China) since

6 May 2008. Prior to his current
appointment, he was a Senior Vice
President in United Overseas Bank
(Malaysia).

In his 26 years in the banking industry, he
has served as a Credit Officer, Head of
Credit, Branch Manager, Regional
Manager and Head of Business Banking.

Mr Tan holds a Bachelor of Science
(Mechanical Engineering, Hons) from the
University of Leeds, UK, and a Master of
Business Administration from the
University of Bradford, UK.

Hua Sheng

Age 57. Dr Hua was appointed to the Board
on 27 December 2007 as an independent
and non-executive director.

Dr Hua is currently the President of Yanjing
Overseas Chinese University, Executive Vice
President of the China Federation of
Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs, Vice
President of Beijing Returned Overseas
Chinese Federation and a member of the
Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference
(“CPPCC”). He is also a Professor at the
Beijing Normal University and Wuhan
University, a Doctoral Adviser and an
Adjunct Professor at the Graduate School of
the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
and Southeast University. He was also a
director of Oxford & Cambridge International
(China) Ltd.

Dr Hua is a renowned economist in China,
and is one of the first to be credited as a
national expert for his outstanding
contributions.

Dr Hua holds a bachelor’s degree from
Southeast University, a master’s degree
from the Graduate School of the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences and a doctoral
degree from Wuhan University. He also
attended Oxford University, UK and
conducted research and lectures at
Cambridge University, UK.
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Cham Tao Soon

Age 70. Prof Cham was appointed to the
Board on 27 December 2007 as an
independent and non-executive director.
He is also the Chairman of the Bank’s
Nominating and Remuneration, Audit,
Connected Transaction Control and Risk
Management Committees.

Prof Cham is an independent and
non-executive director of United Overseas
Bank (“UOB”), and a director of UOB’s
subsidiary, Far Eastern Bank. He is the
Chairman of NSL Ltd, MFS Technology,
Singapore Symphonia Company and
Singapore-China Foundation, and Deputy
Chairman of Singapore Press Holdings.
He is a director of WBL Corporation, Soup
Restaurant Group and Singapore
International Foundation. He is a former
director of Adroit Innovations, Keppel
Corporation, Land Transport Authority,
TPA Strategic Holdings and Robinson &
Company.

Prof Cham is the Chancellor and
Chairman of SIM University and founding
President of Nanyang Technological
University (1981-2002). He serves as a
member of the Council of Presidential
Advisers.

He holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil,
Hons) from the University of Malaya, a
Bachelor of Science (Mathematics, Hons)
from the University of London and a
Doctor of Philosophy (Fluid Mechanics)
from the University of Cambridge, UK. He
is also a Fellow of the Institution of
Engineers, Singapore and Institution of
Mechanical Engineers, UK.

BBt

Cham Tao Soon
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EIRERES
2009 in review

2009 F T XN ERIT(PE)ENEFIRHNEZE, LRI LE
H—&F. TMEROLS EEFTFAEPRBEAFRNTRERETE
HIARSE . BIREIMFENDBREZ. X2EANEKBRIREARE,

2009 was the second year of UOB (China)’s local
incorporation. During the year, we strengthened our
organisational structure and operations, while remaining
focused on providing quality products and excellent
customer service. We believe that these are key factors
in achieving our objectives for business excellence.

o H#R1TARS Institutional Financial Services

o MAIIEPRSFE Personal Financial Services

o INHKERESIRAEIE Global Markets & Investment Management
e F#H5EIE Technology & Operations

e AH#HE Human Resources

o #£FHE Corporate Social Responsibility

18 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED
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Mr Wee Cho Yaw, UOB Group Chairman officiated the opening of UOB (China)
Tianjin Branch
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Mr Wee Ee Cheong eye-dotting the Lion Dance at the opening ceremony of the
Beijing Dongcheng Sub-Branch.

Institutional Financial Services
Institutional Financial Services covers Corporate & Commercial
Banking and Transaction Banking.

Corporate & Commercial Banking

Although 2009 was a challenging year, Corporate & Commercial
Banking persevered and emerged a stronger market player in
China. In line with the Group’s Transformation initiatives to build a
Premier Bank for the Asia-Pacific region, UOB (China) Corporate &
Commercial Banking implemented measures for industry
specialisation to better serve customers across targeted industry
sectors in China.

On top of that, we continued to acquire business opportunities by
leveraging on the UOB Group’s regional franchise, concurrently
expanding our product suite beyond traditional loans. In 2009, we
received approval from the China Banking Regulatory Commission
to provide financing for Mergers & Acquisitions (“M&A”). With this
new service, we are well positioned to support our customers in
their M&A activities in China, one of the world’s major markets.
Other new products launched in 2009 include bank acceptance
draft facility and Business Internet Banking.

Corporate & Commercial Banking has progressed well in deposit
mobilisation, following the strategic formation of a dedicated Liability
Management Unit (‘LMU”). As at 31 December 2009, the Bank’s
deposits had grown by approximately 27% year-on-year. This
effectively improved the Bank’s loan to deposit ratio from 208% at
the end of 2008 to 146% at the end of 2009. In 2010, LMU will
intensify effort across the franchise to better the Bank’s loan to
deposit ratio, in line with regulatory requirements.

Moving ahead, Corporate & Commercial Banking will continue its
close partnership with product specialists within the UOB Group, to
develop products that best meet our customers’ banking needs.
Coupled with our customer-centric business strategy, we are
confident of delivering holistic solutions to all of our valued
customers.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 19
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Depl beering A
Total Solution
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UOB (China) representatives, including President & CEO, Mr Tan Kian Huat, Head of Corporate & Commercial Banking, Mr Cheong Chwee Kin Sam, and other
product specialists spoke at the customer event to promote Business Internet Banking and UOB (China)’s Total Business Solution.
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Transaction Banking

Transaction Banking continues to be an important business for
UOB (China), providing a comprehensive range of payments,
collections and trade services to companies and financial
institutions. These services are enhanced by the availability of the
Business Internet Banking platform for timely and controlled
account management.

Launched at the end of 2008, Business Internet Banking
provides customers with an online channel for obtaining account
information and making and receiving payments. Within the span
of a year, we exceeded our targets with a penetration rate of 35%
as well as a 23% increase in business volume.

Following the announcement of the Chinese Yuan Cross-Border
Trade Settlement pilot programme by the People’s Bank of China
in July 2009, UOB launched Chinese Yuan services for corporate
customers in Singapore and Malaysia, and will be offering the
same services soon in Hong Kong. We anticipate an increase in
trade flows between China and Asean countries, and increased
business volume in this respect.

In 2009, UOB was named the Best Cash Management Bank in
Singapore and the Best Bank for Local Currency Cash
Management Services in Singapore (For Financial Institutions) by
Asiamoney, for the second year running. The Asset also named
UOB the Rising Star Cash Management Bank in Singapore,
Rising Star Cash Management Bank in Thailand and Rising Trade
Finance Bank in Thailand. In addition, UOB was accorded
Commended Status for custody services.

These awards attest to our commitment to excellence and
successful delivery of a full suite of transaction banking solutions
for companies and financial institutions in the region.
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Xiamen Branch at the United Overseas Bank Building is the first UOB branch to
be opened in China
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Mr Chong Kie Cheong, Head of Group Institutional Financial Services, Ms So
Lay Hua, Head of Group Transaction Banking with the staff at the launch of
UOB (China) Business Internet Banking.

Personal Financial Services

The landscape for consumer banking in China has grown more
competitive in the past 12 months and this is expected to
intensify further over the next 12 months as more foreign banks
seek to incorporate in China. In view of this, UOB (China) has
expanded its retail consumer business to Shanghai, Shenyang,
Chengdu and Xiamen.

Wealth Management Business

UOB (China) started its wealth management business with its
first Privilege Banking Centre opening in Shanghai in 2008. In
2009, we witnessed rapid development as we expanded our
wealth management operations into Chengdu, Shenyang, and
Xiamen upon the successful procurement of our retail RMB
licence for these cities. This has allowed UOB (China) to build
upon its branding and presence in China as we strive to
introduce more innovative products to meet the growing financial
needs of local consumers.

It has been a stellar year for the wealth management business.
Against 2008 figures, time deposits increased by 266%, whilst
structured deposits grew by 170%. Within the same period,
Maxiyield grew by a remarkable 1,767% in sales volume. Further
reflection of growth is evident in the increase of our total customer
base by 398%. Our privilege banking business alone recorded an
impressive 289% growth in customer base.

To better serve our growing customer base and to further develop
our business, we set up our Wealth Business Development Team in
the fourth quarter of 2009. The Team supports our relationship
managers in exploring potential customer resources.

That said, product innovation and effective marketing strategies
remain key components to growing the wealth management
business. With this understanding, we have set our sights on
developing a more diverse range of solutions to meet customers’
banking and investment needs.
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The rapid development of our retail franchise also means that our
relationship managers need to possess superior customer
management abilities and sound compliance knowledge. It is a
priority of the Bank to equip our staff with the necessary training
to update their skills in these respective areas. We acknowledge
that these initiatives will contribute towards a quality service
experience for our customers.

To heighten the brand and product presence of UOB (China), we
have strategically placed advertisements in major publications that
reach out to our target market, such as China Business News,
Money Week and Oriental Morning Post. 2009 also witnessed our
successful involvement in a series of large-scale marketing events
like investment seminars, for customer engagement and product
branding.

Secured Lending Business

The secured loan business is a critical use of funds for the retail
business. We officially conducted RMB housing loan, commercial
property secured loan and consumer credit business in January
2009.

In 2009, mortgage receivables grew by 51%. Following the
successful procurement of the local provincial retail RMB licence,
plans are in placed to expand our mortgage business to
Shenyang, Chengdu and Xiamen in 2010.

Currently, our mortgage portfolio is largely made up of foreign
currency loans, but we anticipate an aggressive growth in the local
currency loans portfolio as we expand our distribution channels and
sales force. This includes the formation of a channels development
unit to cement strategic partnerships with key local and foreign
developers.

Personal Financial Services is committed to developing more
innovative mortgage products in 2010 as part of our strategy to
expand our secured lending business in China.
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Global Markets & Investment Management

2009 was an eventful year in terms of development for Global
Markets & Investment Management (“GMIM”) as both sales and
trading activities made significant advancement in new business
activities despite operating in a harsher business environment.

Both sales and trading activities registered noteworthy
improvement in terms of trading volume, new products and client
base. 2009 also marked a significant increase in our RMB activity
for UOB (China) as it transits from being an overseas branch of
UOB to a fully owned subsidiary of UOB since 2008. Bond
trading volume increased from RMB 0.57 billion to RMB 8.15
billion. Dealing volume in RMB money markets also increased
substantially from RMB 25.83 billion to RMB 43.51 billion.

As one of the pioneer foreign banks to receive the Derivative
Licence in China in 2004, UOB (China) now actively engages in
RMB foreign exchange forward, foreign exchange swap and
RMB interest rate swap. As a testimony to our progress in the
foreign exchange business, UOB (China) was awarded the “Best
Progressive Award” by China Foreign Exchange Trades System
in 2009.

The Corporate Treasury Sales and Advisory desk continued to
grow the foreign exchange and derivatives business. In 2009, we
expanded our product range by developing a series of structured
interest rate and foreign exchange hedging solutions, as well as
various structured deposit products. We have also started to
develop business relationships with a number of large local
corporate customers to expand our reach in China.

Albeit the negative impact of the financial crisis, the Asset Liability
Management desk managed to enhance funding channels and
maintain consistent funding support in the market. Bond trading
activity was also increased to provide added liquidity. The bond
portfolio has grown to be an integral part of our asset and liability
management activity, comprising primarily of Treasury bills,
PBOC bhills and Policy bank bonds.

GMIM has weathered the tough market conditions. Going
forward, we will continue to make our mark in China with
heightened emphasis on growing corporate sales and advisory
service, while creating more innovative value-added products.

Technology & Operations

UOB (China) Technology & Operations (“T&0”) was formed
through the merger of Technology and Operations, as part of the
Group’s Transformation initiative. This strategic realignment allows
the Bank to capture more synergy and achieve greater efficiency
through enabling a closer alignment between business needs and
solutions.

UOB (China) T&O includes Country Wholesale & Retail T&O,
Country T&O Policy & Operations Assurance, Country Shared
Infrastructure Services and Country Information Security.
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Country Wholesale & Retail T&O comprises Wholesale & Retail
Loan Operations Centre, Trade & Remittances Operations
Centre, Treasury & Capital Market Operations Centre and
Channel Operations Centre. It provides centralised operations
support for each business segment, is responsible for end-to-
end process design, co-ordinates with business units on relevant
infrastructure support requirements and maintenance.

Country T&O Policy & Operations Assurance is a new set up,
which implements group-wide operations policies and guidelines
to ensure consistency in internal controls. It evaluates T&QO’s
internal controls, risk and governance arrangements; provides
assurance and recommendations on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the T&O policy and controls to the management.
It also acts as the co-ordinator for the Bank’s external auditors
and country regulators.

Country Shared Infrastructure Services manages the country’s
system and network infrastructure requirements, and provides
operational and technical support for the Bank’s network and
systems infrastructure, as well as the Business Continuity
programme, in order to ensure the smooth operation of every
segment.

Country Information Security is a new department, which
promotes awareness of group and country information security
policies, standards and guidelines. It ensures that IT assets are
protected through effective resource and access management,
tracks and manages accesses and incidents including
management of vulnerability assessments of key IT assets.

With the new T&O structure, the Bank embarked on strategic
transformation initiatives with a focus on improving the quality of
service delivery and the consistency of processes and solutions.
Some initial measures include the centralising of Branches
back-room operations at UOB (China)’'s headquarters in
Shanghai, and creating greater economies of scale by leveraging
a standardised IT platform.

We also upgraded our Business Internet Banking service, and
implemented a direct interface for the China National Advanced
Payment System to expedite bulk payments, collections and
remittances for our business customers. We rolled out a Balance
of Payment system to enable our customers to make further
claim or write-off payment information to State Administration of
Foreign Exchange based on real time trade status.

Other infrastructural improvements include enhancing the
existing transaction platform, strengthening operational risk
management, and tightening security measures to meet
regulatory requirements. A Security Token System was
implemented to improve the authentication process and minimise
operational risks. We also rolled out Auto Seal Verification
System to improve the process of manual seal verification, and
heighten the Bank’s transaction security control. Both systems
utilise dual mechanisms to optimise the safety of customers’
funds.

These measures contribute to the effort by UOB (China) to
provide a quality banking experience for customers, and to
streamline processes for greater efficiency and results.
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Staff from various divisions of UOB (China)’s Head Office bond over teambuilding activities at Xi’an Terracotta Warriors Museum.

ANHFER

BH2007 4 RAALE NRITIE, KERIT(RE)E RN B AR
T RAETESH S ZME, thEnTHARMNTE, Kt
SRIT(PE)AIER R LR A HE2008F #7401 A MK FI20094F
JRBI459 N, R ITIBEKEA14.5%,

HNAEE, SUSERBENHFEMREIARER ML
FEANRERERERIT(TE)E WA BRI BEM. RATEE
ERFERIXMNRITWSRBMMINNEERES. ELHTHT,
AN FREBFE Z PUEMBHEIE A JTEREE , IR AAEIE, BRI
FHINERBHIERIE. AMRERANFMRTNERS, =#AXT
HATRBEBRRMENKINE, BITERMEERAR T EME
MR E IR DA A B AE R R BRI & 5

Britbzsh, Afeit R T & W EERIIR SRR ML A
R, TATHE2009FE N R TR T ZMAERAFIRE,
BIEEMARITE. BUHIGEMMS NF. KERIT(FE)
TEBERLE, MFTIEEATEBHR NI Z KB AT A
WS RRSEHATE W HERIIME ARS8 FATERN
ARRTHMATERITUHSEDRF ERITIL M A R FE
EE, HERERTHEIAHEMMESN,; 7TE2RTEY
Bl EEL, 4R TEITNEEESZN.

20094, T ANARENEEREREE L, KERITERZ
T AREMEZE, EHMIRITREEMRAKREF R R
EEHEM. KRERIT(PE) AT THENNEMTE, EEE
Tl &SR ENEE,

Human Resources

Since local incorporation in end-2007, UOB (China) has
undergone changes in its organisational structure and expanded
its branch network in China. As of December 2009, UOB (China)
staff headcount was 459, marking an increase of 14.5% in a year.

We believe that the steady growth of our talent pool,
commensurate with the expansion of our business, is key to
building a good foundation for UOB (China)’'s development, and
that our people will play a critical part in our success, In view of
that, Human Resources has stepped efforts to improve our talent
management programme, benefits and rewards structure. We
have also organised a series of teambuilding activities to engage
our staff and reinforce the Group’s core values and team spirit.

In addition, our employees are encouraged to upgrade their
knowledge and skills so that they are equipped to achieve their
career goals; to achieve this, we have introduced a wide variety
of local training courses, including soft-skills, professional and
leadership training. UOB (China) also leveraged the expertise of
the UOB Group by inviting trainers from UOB in Singapore to
conduct professional sales techniques and customer service
training to our Personal Financial Services sales staff. Our
employees are also encouraged to participate in the Certification
of Chinese Banking Professional examination conducted by the
China Banking Association. A total of 92 staff passed the basic
banking examination; 37 passed the wealth management
examination and 34 employees passed the risk management
examination.

A milestone for the Human Resources team was the
Transformation initiative that took place in 2009,

where the Group took the opportunity to enhance its internal
structure to better position itself for the future. UOB (China) was
also aligned to the new segment-led structure.
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Head Office and Xiamen Branch staff bond over teambuilding activities
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e

FENRIEBENZ—, HIFHLEAR R R
Our staff making an excursion to historic Middle China as part of the team-
building programme

To communicate such changes to UOB (China) employees, two
LLeadership Plenary (LeaP) sessions were held in 2009 where the
Group’s Senior Management shared the Group’s regionalisation
strategy and transformation initiatives with employees.

To help staff adapt to the changes, Group HR has actively rolled
out various change management programmes like Leading
Change and Mastering Change for managers in UOB (China) to
help manage changes and potential staff concerns.

We are still undergoing a journey of transformation, and more
initiatives are expected to be rolled out next year to support the
initiative.

With these changes, the Group believes it will be well-placed for
growth and development as a premier Bank in the region.
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Social Responsibility

UOB (China) strongly believes in being a socially responsible
corporate entity and we continue to seek ways to make positive
contributions to the communities we operate in.

In 2009, UOB (China) extended its support to the Polyclinic Charity
Project in Fujian through a donation of RMB 500,000, for the
construction of the Fujian (Xiamen)-Singapore Friendship Polyclinic.

The Polyclinic Charity Project was jointly initiated by the
Singaporean community in Fujian and the Singapore Consulate-
General in Xiamen. In support of this initiative, the Xiamen
Municipal Government has pledged to provide land and
contribute an amount equal to the funds raised by the Singapore
community.

Situated in a residential district in Qianpu , the Fujian (Xiamen)-
Singapore Friendship Polyclinic will serve up to 300,000 local
residents. Apart from being a fully operational medical facility, the
polyclinic will also function as a teaching site to demonstrate
public healthcare reforms carried out in Xiamen and its
surrounding regions. In addition, it will serve as a training centre
for Fujian (Xiamen) medical personnel, and facilitate the exchange
of healthcare-related innovation between Fujian (Xiamen) and
Singapore.

The polyclinic will open its doors in 2010.
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UOB China is committed to maintaining the highest standards in
corporate governance. The Board is guided by the provisions of
PRC Company Law, PRC Commercial Bank Law, PRC
Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks, Rules
for Implementing the PRC Regulations on Administration of
Foreign-funded Banks and other relevant requirements issued
by the regulators. The Board of Directors (“Board”), Specialised
Board Committees, the Supervisor and the Senior Management
of the Bank have duly exercised their respective rights and duties
according to the Articles of Association of UOB China (“Articles
of Association”).

Board of Directors

There are six directors on the Board, two of whom are
independent directors. The size and composition of the Board
are in compliance with the regulatory requirements and the
provisions of the Articles of Association. The Board members
are:

P& /Name 4 5/Gender Fi#y/Age  BAZS/Position 7 J&{EHB/Current term of directorship
EB—R ES 57 EEK/INITES 20079 R 17HZE2010F9R16H
Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman / Non-executive 17 September 2007 to 16 September 2010
E=iES ES 56 FNITES 200712 327 HZE20105F12526H
Lee Chin Yong Francis Male Non-executive 27 December 2007 to 26 December 2010
ESN 2 51 FPITES 200846 A6H £201146A5H

Chua Tian Chu Male Non-executive 6 June 2008 to 5 June 2011

MR S 50 HITEEZ (TKRERHITE) 200846 A6H £201146A5H

Tan Kian Huat Male Executive (President & CEO) 6 June 2008 to 5 June 2011

BER S 20 M EE 2007412 527 HZE2010412H26H
Cham Tao Soon Male Independent 27 December 2007 to 26 December 2010
e S 57 MRITEE 2007412 527 HZE2010412H26H
Hua Sheng Male Independent 27 December 2007 to 26 December 2010
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Three board meetings were held in 2009. The meetings and
businesses transacted were in compliance with the requirements
of the relevant PRC laws and the Articles of Association. The
minutes of the meetings, which are an accurate and complete
record of the proceedings of the meetings, are kept by the
Company Secretary.

The detailed information of the abovementioned Board meetings
is as follows:

The first meeting in 2009 was held on 8 April in Shanghai, with all
directors present in person. The meeting reviewed and approved
the Audited Financial Results for Year 2008, Budget and
Business Plan for Year 2009 and the new organisation chart of
the Bank. The Board also appointed the external auditors for
Financial Year 2009 and reviewed reports by the Specialised
Board Committees and the Management, as well as a report on
the Bank’s self-assessment on corporate governance.

The second meeting in 2009 was held on 17 July in Shanghai,
with all directors present in person, except independent director
Prof Hua Sheng, who was absent due to a prior engagement.
The meeting reviewed reports by the Specialised Board
Committees and the Management. The Board also read and
discussed the regulatory opinions issued by CBRC Shanghai
Office during its meeting with the Management on 10 July 2009.

The third meeting in 2009 was held on 5 November in Beijing,
with all directors present in person except independent director
Prof Hua Sheng, who was on medical leave. The meeting
reviewed the new organisation chart, approved the revisions to
several internal policies and delegated the authority for approval
of internal policies. The meeting also considered reports by the
Specialised Board Committees and the Management, reviewed
the Bank’s implementation of the Regulatory Meeting
Memorandum Number 36, 2009 issued by CBRC Shanghai
Office. The latest regulatory requirements regarding the
corporate governance of locally incorporated foreign banks were
also noted.
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In addition, four board resolutions were passed by circulation in

FRERUT 2009. Details of the matters resolved were:

S /Number RiY ZE T /Resolution Matters %2 H HA/Resolution Date
SRITH L

1 Extension of premises 200941 A20H/20 January 2009
XEXSEE-XKE (LE) RASEARAT

2 Extension of facility to Connected Party Kheng Leong Shanghai Investment 200948 A26 H/26 August 2009
Management Co., Ltd
EESSHNEERITNGIE

3 Performance Evaluation Mechanism for the Board of Directors and Individual 200949 A30H/30 September 2009
Directors
WA NRERE RS N EMALREME

4 Establishment of the Risk Management Committee and revision of organisation 200912 831 H/31 December 2009
chart

KXFEESTIRELIERS

KERIT (FE) EF2EA MRS TUERS, IIPATE
R, XPXSEHERR. FIHERS. RELFHERS
N EERERS. HRONMEWERS, BIXERZSEGIE
RE. WIFERE . RE N A%ﬁﬂh%ﬂéAme
ERRIIEEEEFRIREE.

(1) #1 J'_'\z

a ER=HA TR (FF) , =Rk, £XK, GBEL

b. HITERSFEEREEUT:

o EIERITHEIZ, BIEHENIBHE, BWERITILSITH
AT, HEEREEPIUE;

o WEXICERS ERIEIFIEIT

o WERITKIFEREWITE. BIEENITE LETTKSNG
RITANBREIERED .

c. WITERSHRIBEHRTIUSERNEZRNAASIN, HE
PERBAF—r=PLEIT LIRS,

20094, MITERSBFSIN24K.
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Specialised Board Committees

The Board has five specialised board committees. They are the
Executive Committee (“EXCQ”), Connected Transactions Control
Committee (“CTCC”), Audit Committee (“AC”), Nominating and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and Risk Management
Committee (“RMC”). Four of the specialised board committees,
including CTCC, AC, NRC and RMC, are chaired by independent
director Prof Cham Tao Soon.

(1) Executive Committee
a. The EXCO members are: Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman), Lee
Chin Yong Francis, Chua Tian Chu, Tan Kian Huat

b. EXCO’s main responsibilities include:

e Overseeing the management of the Bank’s overall business
operation, which includes setting internal policies, monitoring
the execution of business plans and approving credit limits or
facilities;

e Qverseeing the establishment and operation of the Bank’s
risk management system; and

e Determining key human resources policies and matters of the
Bank (except for the matters pertaining to President & CEQ,
Deputy CEO and Deputy President).

c. The EXCO meets at least once a month or as frequently as
may be necessary.

In 2009, the EXCO met twenty four times.



(2 XEXSEHERS
a. ZER=PR: BER (EF) , TRE, KEE

b. REXRZZIEHERZHNERIRENT:

o FNTHPITREZ ZEEGIE;

o EHEXEXZHAEEIHEIEMAERXE;

o WE-MXERH, EREAXBEZZIHARIEEMIME,

c. 20094, XBXZRFERIHEBASW R, SWIERE
R

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee
a. CTCC members are: Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Lee Chin
Yong Francis, Chong Kim Khong William

b. CTCC’s main responsibilities are to:

e Formulate and administer the connected transactions
management rules;

Manage connected transactions and control the resultant
risks; and

Examine proposed non-material connected transactions, and
review and recommend material connected transactions for
Board approval.

c. In 2009, CTCC met once to transact the following business.

FS/Number 2 FE K & /Meeting Agenda

FF £ B [B]/Meeting Date

a) WINRITRECZ B REUEN (2200946 530H)

Acknowledged the outstanding connected transactions of the Bank as at 30

June 2009
b) HET KBS R B EME

200947 R17H/17 July 2009

Approved the disclosure frequency of connected parties
o WIAETRITHXE A &% (HZ200945831H)

Approved the list of connected parties (disclosed by Insiders as of 31 May

2009) for announcement within the Bank

2009%F, XERXRSHEHEZERZEEIESES L T1TUR
W, FAERNT:

In addition, one CTCC resolution was passed by circulation in
2009 on the following matter.

S /Number RILZETN/Resolution Matter

% Zt8]/Resolution Date

;3

HLTHKRE (B8) RATEERARANREZZEEARTESESM

200948 H25H/25 August 2009

Reviewed and recommended the proposed extension of facility to connected
party Kheng Leong Shanghai Investment Management Co., Ltd to the Board

SN

. FIRR,

o ZEWBERSMBEITERGE, BIREARRTFIRZIEREH T
MEERTEER, FAERIEITAMMBE IR =
TR MRS T RIS R E

c. 20094, EHHERTHABAAZWAR, [WERIFMNT:

(3) Audit Committee
a. AC members are: Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Lee Chin Yong
Francis, Chua Tian Chu

b. AC’s main responsibilities include:

e Reviewing the financial statements of the Bank with the
external auditors and the Management; and

e Reviewing the internal and external audit performance,
including but not limited to the nomination of external auditors
for appointment by the Board, evaluating the performance of
internal and external auditors, the audit fees and the
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

c. In 2009, AC met four times. At these meetings, the AC:
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S /Number

£ FE R E/Meeting Agenda

FF 4B [8)/Meeting Date

a) FHIURAN T 2008FESNEEHITE R R ERT <AL
Reviewed and endorsed the Bank’s audited financial statements for Board approval
b) BT HXNAEHITER
Reviewed report on internal controls of the Bank, submitted by internal auditors
c) HUAET M EE T RIFI2000F F R It &I
Approved proposed strategic audit plan and annual plan for 2009
d) #HtAE T 2009F A AR E LT RBHITILE
Approved the Internal Audit Division Budget for 2009
122 T 2009F ESMELEITHLMA R R ERZSHE
Nominated external auditors for appointment in 2009 by the Board
) WELTHX2009F2R 5HERES BN ERSRAERNRE
Reviewed results of the meet-up with CBCR Shanghai Office in February
WrER 7 e/ E SRR E
Reviewed fraud/attempted fraud case reports
BT RIAHITARE
Reviewed report on employee misconduct

o

e

=

20094 A8H
8 April 2009

a) W THBXRAHREITER
Reviewed internal audit report
b) W T HE/EEEE 4IRS
Reviewed fraud/attempted fraud case reports
c) WTELT RIANEHITHIRE
Reviewed report on employee misconduct
d) BT @RS AE IR S
Reviewed report on non-compliance of laws and regulations

20097 A17H
17 July 2009

a) EICRMTIRIT (NEHEITREEEARRFM BB
Reviewed the revisions to UOB (China) Internal Audit Quality Management System Manual
b) BBURMATRITAE (FMEBIKD
Reviewed the Whistle-Blowing Policy of UOB (China)
c) BHWTHXAHEITER
Reviewed internal audit report
d) WrELT B/ EEEE GRS
Reviewed fraud/attempted fraud case report
e) WTELT RIANEHITHIRE

Reviewed report on employee misconduct

2009%E10A9H
9 October 2009

a) HWTHEXAHREITER
Reviewed internal audit report
b) ERMFFHLET AELERITEBI]2010FE A RTE
Reviewed and approved the Internal Audit Division Headcount Budget for 2010
o) WTBUTHIF/ A EEIEEHRE
Reviewed fraud/attempted fraud case report
d BT AT AREITAHIRE

Reviewed report on employee misconduct

200911 A5H
5 November 2009

32 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED



@) RaRFHMERS

a. ZER=PR: BER (EF) , 8%, FkK

b. RERFMERZHEZRRE T :

s MEFSNHETEEWEASHESFREAN, RITESE. 17
KFERPITE . BIEFENTEURBEIITREZEZSHERE
ARBFMEEARREEE;

o BIU—EEMHNGIDITNEENERYLER. EF2T
KEZRSH T RATIRE B HATERIRI .

c. 2009%F, RERFMERZAARWIR, SWHERFNT:

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)
a. NRC members are: Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Wee Ee
Cheong, Lee Chin Yong Francis

b. NRC’s main responsibilities include:

e Making recommendations for appointment or re-appointment
of members to the Board and Specialised Board Committees
and developing a remuneration framework for Directors,
President & CEO, Deputy CEO and Deputy President, for the
Board’s approval; and

e Establishing a mechanism for the formal assessment of the
Board’s effectiveness as a whole and the contribution of the
Specialised Board Committees and the performance of the
President & CEQ.

c. In 2009, NRC met once. The meeting dealt with the following
matters:

FS/Number 21 1 &/Summary Meeting Agenda % Z[}8/Resolution Date
a) TRTAREESHENESZSMLESZEITNGIE
Studied the Perf Evaluation Mechanism for the Board of Direct: d Individual Direct
udied the Performance Evaluation Mechanism for the Board of Directors and Individual Directors 2009411 B5H
1 approved by the Board

b) 1T T 2009 FHEEFHIRE

5 November 2009

Discussed the Directors’ Fee Proposal for UOB China for the Financial Year ended 31 December 2009.

20094, FATRANHMERZICBEBIEFERTI, BT
GURWL, FEARIERMT:

In addition, one NRC resolution was passed by circulation in
2009 on the following matter.

FS/Number RiYET/Resolution Matters % 20} 8/Resolution Date
FI T ESSSR L EERIVINGIEHRTESSHE
i l . ) . 200949 A23H
1 Reviewed and endorsed the Performance Evaluation Mechanism for the Board of Directors and Individual
283 September 2009

Directors for the Board’s approval
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(5) Risk Management Committee
a. RMC members are: Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Lee Chin
Yong Francis and Chua Tian Chu

b. RMC’s main responsibilities are to:

e Review and recommend risk management strategies, policies
and risk tolerance for the board’s approval;

e Qversee the establishment and operation of the risk
management system to ensure consistency with the
approved strategies and policies;

e Review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of risk
management structure including framework, policies,
methodologies, human resources, processes, information,
infrastructure and systems, in identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling the various types of risks;

e Review periodic management reports on risk exposures and
portfolio risk management and control; and

* Report regularly to the board of directors and highlight on any
adverse risk events or trends.

c. The RMC was established in December 2009. No RMC
meeting was held in 2009.

Supervisor

Dr Wee Cho Yaw is the Supervisor of the Bank. He was
appointed by the Bank’s shareholders. The appointment of the
Supervisor is in compliance with regulatory requirements and the
Articles of Association.

The main responsibilities of the Supervisor include:
e |nspecting the accounts of the bank;

e QOverseeing compliance by any director or senior executive of
laws, regulations or the articles of association;

e Preventing acts and deeds by the board or any senior
executive that may be prejudicial to the lawful rights and
interests of the bank, the shareholders and other relevant
stakeholders, in particular the depositors;

e Commencing legal proceedings against any director or senior
executive in accordance with the PRC company law and other
applicable laws and regulations.

In 2009, the Supervisor duly performed his duties of supervising
the Board and the senior management according to the PRC
Company Law and the Articles of Association. The Supervisor
was invited to attend Board meetings and the meetings of
Specialised Board Committees. By participating in discussions on
the reports by the management and reviewing the monthly,
quarterly and yearly operation and risk management reports, the
Supervisor provided valuable insights and guidance to the Board
and Specialised Board Committee members.
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(1) 2009 M ERHFERESHIENR

Performance of Independent Directors

The Bank has two independent directors, Prof Cham Tao Soon
and Prof Hua Sheng. The composition of independent directors is
in compliance with the requirements of Guidelines for Corporate
Governance of Locally Incorporated Foreign Banks, Guidelines for
Independent Directors and External Supervisors of Shareholding
Commercial Banks and Opinion on Enhancing the Corporate
Governance of Locally Incorporated Foreign Banks. Prof Cham
Tao Soon chairs four Specialised Board Committees, namely
CTCC, AC, NRC and RMC.

In 2009, the Board was of the view that the independent
directors had been objective and diligent in executing their duties
to the shareholders of the Bank. The independent directors
attended the Board meetings, reviewed matters on the meeting
agendas and actively participated and presided over the CTCC,
AC and NRC meetings, effectively supervising the Board and
Specialised Board Committees and safeguarding the lawful
rights and interests of the Bank and the shareholders.

(1) Attendance Record of Independent Directors for 2009

M EERZ FEsm (x) FEHE (&) B®E (OR) &
Name of Independent No. of Board No. of Board No. of Board Relmarks
Director Meetings held Meetings attended Meetings excused
s
Cham Tao Soon 8 8 0 i
NEBRFETRI7TARSINL
s Excused at meeting on 17 July 2009 for other business
- 3 1 2 matters
Hua Sheng .
FiEREREFE11AsHMSIL
Excused at meeting on 5 November 2009 for medical reason
(2) A EEWHITEXRENRHRIUAER (2) Dissent Raised by Independent Directors

20094, MM EBENRANKITAEENESES
REMIFFESIWINEZTUR LRI

ESNGNES

In 2009, none of the independent directors raised any dissent on
any matter at the Board meetings.
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=& EHI/ Senior Management Structure

x50 F R
] R " , AR5 ]
HE inE M5 FiR Assignment 2h (P Relevant
Name Position Sex Age 9 Academic Degree Relevant Field Years of
Commencement i
Experience
BEFZAFN TRFTRE
7= | = Pt '\_\A'fl‘_L
R TRRERITR ;echanical Engineering, Honours
R President & CEO, B 200845 7 chanica Endineering, -
TAN Kian 34T B Male 52 May 2008 University of Leeds Finance 26
Huat ATIERIRRR B Y HEANEREAFIHNERMmLT
Head of Branches/Channels . . . .
Master in Business Administration,
University of Bradford
BT KEE) -
’ . . = N INUSENEY =
%ﬁj’ Dep\uty Pr(i?\d_e_rjt (Qperatlons) = 2007412 B MR REEZE T Economics
TEO Tiat FREREEHBER 61 Bachelor of Commerce, _ 39
Male Dec 2007 . e
Chye Head of Technology & Nanyang University )
} Finance
Operations
BATEW 5B RITER
Head of Corporate &
oK L Commercial Banking 2008F9 A N e
. e 11 A e e Mg ENL KE X E _
CHEONG  5XRBRTUSHELHE B 4o Sep2008 ;ﬁihf;of z;jz% o ”
Chwee Kin  Head of Transaction Banking, Male 200712 A National Univers}t of Singabors Finance
Sam BBATHTRK Dec 2007 v orsingap
General Manager of Shanghai
Branch
ZEREEAEMNIAZTIEHE
Bt e
EYE MAMERESEEE . Bachelor of Business Administration, =
) ) 2 2007FE128 - i o ales
WEE Mun  Head of Personal Financial Male 51 Dec 2007 Southeast Missouri State University e 17
Seng Alan  Services EEXBRFHAFIHEERML I;inIche
Master in Business Administration,
Saint Louis University
EPHARFEFZ L -
. RAT
Z i Bachelor of Science, Bankin
ras, IHEmSEAERENIE poo7iqpg  Monash Universiy e
Head of Global Markets & = 52 BAFTHERRERSZIEE 27
Boon Male Dec 2007 Investment
Investment Management it o
Lawrence ) ) N =P
Master in Business Administration, Management
University of New South Wales 9
P L0 s 41 oy MAZREFFEL _
E o amepmre 3 200849 A TR REEE -
TEHWee | ead of Crediit Approval Male 22 Sep2008 Bachelor of Gommercs, Finance 28
Jin PP P University of Otago, New Zealand
SKERER MBI AFHFIRE
CHONG NG ERHEE S 4 2008417 F{L iy 18
Kim Khong Head of Risk Management Male Jan 2008 Bachelor of Business, Honours, Finance
William Nanyang Technological University
T2 J 7R RS R B Oskfilih 82 it
FENFLF 1 &ﬂ:l RESHEE @ 20084128 EBEE@]HIL Fh EF s
YAM Soon  Head of Finance & Corporate Male 42 Dec 2008 Bachelor in Commerce, Accountin 17
Lee Ronnie  Services Tunku Abdul Rahman College 9
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HXEWER

EHAEE .
we B wH g CORR g JXME Relovant
Name Position Sex Age 9 Academic Degree Relevant Field Years of
Commencement i
Experience
e
v Finance
i S o BAZETIHEENL
PR A hARSEE % 20074128 SAxFIREEWE AT
HONG Xiao 33 Master in Business Administration, 12
Head of Human Resources Female Dec 2007 . ) Human
Yan Amy Fudan University ol
HR
Resources
2SR R N1 .—Aéx\ 4
= REREH TR EE [:2 2007412 LBRPRIFFL Finance
LI Gang _ 36 Bachelor of Economics, s 13
, Head of Internal Audit Male Dec 2007 o BT
Rick Shanghai University )
Audit
ABRFEF L
B Bachelor of Laws,
WANG FEEEMBHEE by 6 2007128 Hohai University £ 10
Vuan Eliza Head of Legal & Secretariat Female Dec 2007 SEAFIREEML: Finance
Master in Business Administration,
Fudan University
W= g RHRFEEIZEREF T e
'I:A\;TChon EHEBEE =] a8 200946 H Bachelor of Laws, Finance 10
Men Louii Head of Compliance Male Jun 2009 King's College London, a#
9 University of London Compliance
ES e . N
. EEAITITEK @ 2007412 B MR EREEZE L e
) General Manager of Beijing 55 Bachelor of Commerce, ) 28
Siang Male Dec 2007 ) ) Finance
Anthony Branch Nanyang University
IR SIS 1TITH ¥ BT AFHE _
FIRIA I ATITR @ 2007412 N R ELE | AEHFLT e
LOH Nee General Manager of Male 39 Dec 2007 Bachelor of Business, Finance 13
Thiam Harry Guangzhou Branch Nanyang Technological University
MIEREFRFRF L
Bachelor of Commerce,
Nanyang University
. NNy WIEEREFNBEEEFIFE
R ETTK . v L
) e 20084F9H PR TR A1 3 e
LIM Tow General Manager of Xiamen 57 ) ) ) 29
Men Branch Male Sep 2008 Diploma in Management Consultancy, Finance
9 National Productivity Board, Singapore
HEFRENFAF IHEERMmLT
Master in Business Administration,
University of Leicester
BE%K L . e
s L= 3 T AR A _
VEONG EBRATITR @ 20074128 N ENL RF R E T e
General Manager of Shenyang 41 Bachelor of Commerce, ) 15
Kok Leng Male Dec 2007 ) ) ) ) Finance
Vincent Branch National University of Singapore
Rimis FRNFATITE o WIEEIRE ITHEEE LT _
B 200849H . . o e
GOH Tuan  General Manager of Shenzhen 39 Bachelor in Business Administration,  — 12
) Male Sep 2008 ) ) ) ) Finance
Chiok Branch National University of Singapore
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HXEWER

o {EHRE 3R .
e % HH FEER Assianment =] iEESibo Relevant
Name Position Sex Age 9 Academic Degree Relevant Field Years of
Commencement i
Experience
IEEIRS ¥+
Bachelor of Arts,
PRk 16 REBDATITIC o National University of Singapore _
5 200945 A . o i it s - e oy
TANEng  General Manager of Chengdu Male 43 May 2009 KREMFRI =BT THE Finance 12
Wei Francis  Branch Y BLL ik
Master in Business Administration,
University of Strathclyde
HERNBREREAFES LT
Bachelor of Science,
N . University of Bradford
A, FESITITK o A e _
o 7 . S 20094F9H KERTIRHAZSMERAL <8
KU Nyet General Manager of Tianjin 51 ) 24
Fan . Male Sep 2009 mt Finance
@ Master of Arts in Finance &
Investment,
University of Exeter, United Kingdom
M=l 4= 1 FAVANeY ,::.:t
T R IITITK . e 20074128 ZURERENFE e
) Branch Manager of Jing An 37 Bachelor of Arts, ) 10
ONG Yei Male Dec 2007 ) ) Finance
Sub-Branch University of Toronto
bRE 12 P EATITE 5 £ DA B RS+ _
REX : FERFEHZATITK @ 2009498 ma iz fﬂfﬂm F 48
LIM Lian Branch Manager of Dongcheng Male 37 Sep 2009 Bachelor of Science, Finance 14
Kian Sub-Branch P University of South Alabama

38

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED



EEL. SLEEEWNKEKA SR

TR KIREE = NMARER, RIEZZRHEMBER
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HH—IMEZTT.

Risk Oversight by Board of Directors and Senior
Management

At the organisational level, the Bank is divided into three layers
for the purpose of risk oversight. These layers include the Board
of Directors and its sub-committees, the President & Chief
Executive Officer and senior management committees and the
head of business and support units. The Board takes overall
responsibility in the approval of risk governance structure, risk
capital and risk appetite and provides guidance in the Bank’s
business strategies and direction.

The Executive Committee (“EXCQO”), a sub-committee with
delegated authority from the Board, oversees the establishment
of risk management framework and reporting system, approves
risk management policies and strategies, reviews and approves
risk limits, substantial credits as well as risk management system.
The EXCO is also responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal risk management infrastructure of the
Bank.

Besides the EXCO, other board sub-committees namely Audit
Committee and Connected Transaction Control Committee as
well as the independent Risk Management Division of the Bank
provide regular reports, updates and inputs to assist the Board in
its decision making process.

On a day to day basis, the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”)
and Risk Management & Compliance Committee (‘RMCC”), provide
oversight of all risk related matters. Chaired by the President & Chief
Executive Officer and represented by senior management members,
these committees meet at least on a monthly basis to review
independent risk assessment and monitoring reports submitted by
the Risk Management Division of the Bank. All risk policies, limits
and processes are reviewed by these two committees before
submission for approval by the EXCO. Meeting minutes of the
committees are submitted for notation by the EXCO and the Board
as part of the internal risk reporting system instituted.
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Internal Control and Audit

Internal Control

The Bank has a well-established internal control system and
adopts strict adherence to local regulators’ requirements and
Singapore parent bank’s guidelines, which enables the Bank to
set strategic and operational objectives in providing reasonable
assurance for its business development.

The Board of Directors emphasise on establishing a sound
internal control system through the review of various committees’
meeting minutes, management and budget reports, Internal
Audit reports, and also from the exchange of insights with
industry peers.

The integrity, soundness and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal
control system arises from the continuous improvement in
internal control environment, including, but not limited to, the
strengthening of risk management processes, informative
communication and feedback mechanism, as well as supervision
evaluation and correction.

Audit

Internal Audit reports to Audit Committee and Group Audit
functionally and to the President & CEO of UOB (China)
administratively.

Internal Audit follows the Internal Audit Guideline for Financial
Institutions as governed by China Banking Regulatory
Commission (“CBRC”). Internal Audit adopts strict procedures in
reporting its findings to the Management and Audit Committee.

Internal audit inspects all units in Headquarters and branches
according to a risk-based audit plan which is reviewed annually
to ensure that it is relevant to the business and risk environment.

Internal Audit also audits various application system controls and
local data centre of UOB (China).

Internal Audit reviews the effectiveness of internal control system,
including compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
provides recommendations to the Bank.

Internal Audit also closely monitors the follow up actions taken by
the Management on the issues highlighted by Internal Audit,
External Audit and Regulators.
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Financial and non financial risks are inherent in the Bank’s business.
Risk Management forms an integral part of the Bank’s business
strategy for safeguarding the Bank’s financial soundness and
integrity. The Bank’s risk management strategy is targeted at
ensuring ongoing effective risk discovery and achieving effective
capital management. Risks are managed within levels approved by
the Board of Directors and its committees. A comprehensive
framework of policies and procedures is established for the
identification, measurement, monitoring and control of risks.

The Bank adopts the following risk management principles :

e Promotion of sustainable long term growth through
embracing sound risk management principles and business
practices;

e Continual improvement of risk discovery capabilities and
establishment of appropriate value creating risk controls;

e Focus on facilitating business development within a prudent,
consistent and efficient risk management framework that
balances risks and returns.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the Bank'’s risk
governance structure and provides guidance on overall risk
appetite, business strategies and direction. The EXCO, a
sub-committee with delegated authority from the Board, oversees
the establishment of risk management framework and its related
processes, formulates and approves risk management policies
and strategies, reviews and approves risk limits as well as risk
management systems. Other internal management committees
established to oversee day-to-day risk related matters include
ALCO and RMCC. Meeting minutes of the committees are
submitted to the EXCO and the Board for noting upon approval.

A centralised Risk Management Division, which is independent of
the business units, performs the primary roles of implementing
risk policies and procedures, and monitoring the compliance of
these policies and procedures by the business units. Regular
analysis and reporting on risk exposures as well as compliance
with risk policies & procedures are updated to the various risk
related committees, the EXCO and the Board.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of loss arising from any failure by
a borrower or a counterparty to fulffill its financial obligations as
and when they fall due. These obligations may arise from
on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet exposures such as direct
lending, trade finance, receivables under derivative and foreign
exchange contracts and other credit related activities. The
business units have primary responsibilities for the day-to-day
and active management of credit risk.

Credit risk policies and processes

The Bank establishes well defined credit risk acceptance
parameters, policies and procedures to ensure that a well
diversified and high quality credit portfolio is maintained. Credit
Risk Management Department (“CRM”) provides independent
oversight of credit risk and is responsible for the analysis and
reporting of all elements of credit risk. CRM develops a
comprehensive set of credit policies and guidelines for approval by
the RMCC and EXCO. It actively engages business units on credit
related matters; focusing on facilitating business development
within a prudent, consistent and efficient credit risk management
framework. Other responsibilities include monitoring and reviewing
credit risk exposures, performing analysis on credit portfolio
performance for fine-tuning policies and risk acceptance guidelines
as well as preparing various credit risk related reports to
Management.

Independent credit approval

To maintain independence and integrity of the credit approval
process, the Credit Approval function is segregated from credit
origination. Credit approval authority is delegated through a risk
based credit discretionary limit (“CDL”) structure that is tiered
according to the borrower’s rating. Delegation of CDL follows a
stringent process that takes into consideration the experience,
seniority and track record of the approving officers. All credit
approvers are guided by credit policies and credit acceptance
guidelines while approval of consumer loans is guided by
product programmes. These credit policies, guidelines and
product programmes are periodically reviewed to ensure their
continued relevance.

Internal rating system

The Bank has implemented an internal credit rating system as part
of its credit decision process. This system incorporates both
statistical models and expert judgement scorecards as part of the
credit approval process for non retail exposures. The system
ensures that ratings are assigned to borrowers in a consistent
manner and systematically captures the rating history for future
model backtesting and validation. In contrast, consumer exposures
are managed on a portfolio basis and stringent product programme
is established for credit underwriting purposes.
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Credit risk monitoring

The Bank has in place a rigorous process to regularly review,
monitor and report credit portfolio quality which includes credit
risk concentration (by borrowers, obligors, industries, collaterals
and countries), level of non-performing loans as well as adequacy
of provisions. All delinquent accounts, including credit limit
excesses, as well as vulnerable accounts are tracked and
analysed on a bi-weekly and monthly basis and any adverse
trends highlighted to management for early action.

Credit risk mitigation

As a fundamental credit principle, the Bank does not grant credit
facilities solely on the basis of collateral provided. All credit
facilities are granted based on the credit standing of the
borrower, source of repayment and debt servicing ability.
Collateral is taken whenever possible to mitigate the credit risk
assumed. The market value of collateral is monitored periodically.
The frequency of valuation depends on the type, liquidity and
volatility of the collateral value. The main types of collateral taken
by the Bank are real estate, bank guarantee, cash and
machinery. Corporate guarantee or personal guarantee from the
principal promoters are often obtained when the borrower’s
credit worthiness is not sufficient to justify an extension of credit.

Credit stress test

Credit stress test forms an integral part of the Bank’s internal
credit portfolio management process. Periodic credit stress tests
conducted allow the Bank to assess the potential credit losses
arising from the impact of plausible adverse events. Remedial
actions such as exposure reduction, portfolio rebalancing,
hedging and reviewing of credit policies and credit acceptance
guidelines are taken if necessary.

Loan classification, provisioning and write off

The Bank classifies its loan portfolio according to the borrower’s
ability to repay the loan from its normal source of income. All
loans and advances are classified into ‘Pass’, ‘Special Mention’,
‘Substandard’, ‘Doubtful’ or ‘Loss’ in accordance with the
requirements of CBRC regulations. A restructured loan is also
categorised as non-performing and placed on the appropriate
classified grade depending on the Bank’s assessment of the
financial position and repayment ability of the borrower based on
the restructured terms. Upgrading and de-classification of a
non-performing loan to ‘Pass’ or ‘Special Mention’ status must be
supported by a credit assessment of the repayment capability,
cash flows and financial position of the borrower.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBRC guidelines after
careful consideration of the future recovery value including
liquidation of collateral of the non-performing loan. A classified
loan is written off when there is no realisable tangible collateral
securing the account and all feasible avenues of recovery have
been exhausted.
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REMEEITU S F/Loans by Industry Distribution

17/ Industry % %i(H 7 7T)/Outstanding (RMB’m) & Eb/(%)
#i&l/Manufacturing 4,309.0 44.4%
B l/Property and Real Estate 2,432.7 25.1%
FEME SRS/ Leasing and Commerce 699.4 7.2%
#t & FZEE/Wholesale and Retail 565.0 5.8%
R Rl/Hospitality and Food & Beverage 297.7 3.1%
HAps7l/Others 1,395.7 14.4%
&it/Total 9,699.5 100%
REIREE 57179 f/Loans by Booking Branch
#it/Branch % #(H J7 7T)/Outstanding (RMB’m) & Eb/(%)
_¥&/Shanghai 3,769.0 38.8%
6 5/Beijing 861.2 8.9%
X #/Tianjin 1.2 0.0%
m#B/Chengdu 1,277 .1 13.2%
I~ JM/Guangzhou 940.4 9.7%
JLBA/Shenyang 578.1 6.0%
#3/Shenzhen 1,252.2 12.9%
JE[7]/Xiamen 1,020.2 10.5%
&it/Total 9,699.5 100%
REXE 2 K AR R 5 /Loans by Classification
4 %7i(H J7 7T)/Outstanding (RMB’m) fr bk /(%)
IE#/Passed 9,285.4 95.7%
*iF/Special Mention 24.3 0.3%
4 /Substandard 209.4 2.1%
A]&%/Doubtful 121.6 1.3%
fL/Loss 58.7 0.6%
&it/Total 9,699.5 100%

2009 K, AEBHAITARMSE8.7EA T, & EEL6184.02%.
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As at year-end 2009, total non-performing loans amounted to

RMB389.7 million, representing 4.02% of the Bank’s total loan

portfolio.
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Market Risk

Market risk arises from all market price sensitive financial
instruments including debt securities, foreign exchange
contracts, equity and derivative instruments, as well as from
balance sheet structural positions. The Bank is exposed to
market risk in its trading portfolios arising mainly from changes in
interest rates and foreign exchange rates from its client-driven
market making and product structuring activities as well as
proprietary trading activities.

The Board of Directors and EXCO approve market risk
management policies and framework and delegate the
responsibility of day-to-day oversight of market risk management
to the ALCO. The ALCO meets monthly to review and provide
directions on all market risk related matters. The Market &
Balance Sheet Risk Management Department (“MBSM”)
provides support to the ALCO with the establishment of market
risk policies, control procedures and framework as well as
independent assessment of the market risk profile of the Bank.

Market risk is managed through a framework of market risk
policies and practices, the validation of valuation and risk
models, a control structure with appropriate delegation of
authority and market risk limits. Market risk limits are proposed
by the Global Markets & Investment Management Division
(“GMIM”), reviewed by MBSM and approved by the ALCO and
the EXCO on annual basis. The Middle Office Department
(“MQ”) provides independent valuation of products traded by
GMIM, monitoring of market risk limits and the reporting of any
limit excesses and ratification on a daily basis.

The Bank adopts a daily Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) measure to
estimate market risk within a 99% confidence interval using the
historical simulation method. This methodology does not make
assumptions on the distribution of returns and the correlations
between risk classes. The method assumes that possible future
changes in market rates, such as interest and foreign exchange
rates, may be implied by observed historical market movements.
The VaR estimates are back-tested against profit & loss of the
trading book to validate the robustness of the methodology.

To complement the VaR measure, sensitivity stress tests and
historical scenario stress tests are performed on the trading
portfolios to provide early warnings of plausible extreme losses
so as to facilitate proactive management of market risk.
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank is unable to
meet its financial obligations as and when due. Liquidity risk
arises from the general funding of the Bank’s banking activities
and in the management of its assets and liabilities including
off-balance sheet items. The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity
to fund its day-to-day operations, meet customer deposit
withdrawals and loan disbursements, fund new investments and
repay borrowings.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO and EXCO.
The ALCO formulates key strategies on liquidity risk management
and reviews the Bank’s asset liability structure and liquidity risk
profile on a monthly basis. Day-to-day management of the
Bank’s liquidity cash flows is undertaken by GMIM while MBSM
independently monitors and reports liquidity risk exposures
against control limits to the ALCO.

Liquidity is managed to address known as well as unexpected
cash funding needs. The Bank takes a conservative stance in its
liquidity management by proactively managing its core deposit
base, ensuring liquidity risk limits are strictly adhered to,
diversifying the sources and term of funding as well as
maintaining a portfolio of high quality liquid assets to meet cash
shortfall.

Liquidity risk is measured and managed on a projected cash flow
basis. The Bank monitors liquidity risk under the ‘Business as
Usual’, ‘Bank Specific Crisis’ as well as ‘General Market Crisis’
scenarios. Cash flow mismatch limits are established to limit the
Bank’s liquidity exposures. The Bank also employs liquidity early
warning indicators and trigger points to signal possible
contingency situations.

Contingency funding plans are in place to identify liquidity crises
using a series of warning indicators. Crisis escalation processes
as well as various strategies covering information gathering,
funding, communication and reporting have been developed to
minimise the impact of any liquidity crunch.
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Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

Interest rate risk in the Banking Book is the impact to earnings
and economic value of the Bank due to fluctuation in interest
rates on the structural banking book of the Bank that is not of a
trading nature.

The ALCO establishes policies, strategies and limits to manage
and control interest rate risk exposure of the Bank. GMIM is
responsible for the effective management of interest rate risk in
accordance with approved policies and strategies while MBSM
independently analyses and monitors interest rate risk exposure
and reports to the ALCO on a monthly basis.

Mismatches in re-pricing and other characteristics of assets and
liabilities of the Bank give rise to sensitivity to interest rate
movements. As interest rates and yield curves change over time,
these mismatches may result in decline in earnings of the Bank.
The primary objective in managing interest rate risk, therefore, is
to manage the volatility in net interest income (“NII”) and the
economic value of equity (‘EVE”) i.e. the present value of the
Bank’s assets less the present value of the Bank’s liabilities.

Interest rate risk exposure of the Bank is quantified mainly using
static analysis tools such as repricing schedules while sensitivity
analysis of assets and liabilities to interest rate fluctuation
provides indications of the potential impact of interest rate
changes on interest income and economic value. Interest rate
sensitivity varies with different repricing periods, currency and
embedded optionality. Mismatches in the longer tenor would
result in greater change in economic value than similar positions
in the shorter tenor.

Stress testing is also performed regularly to determine the Bank’s
capital adequacy in meeting the impact of extreme interest rate
fluctuations on its assets and liabilities. Such tests are also
performed to provide early warnings of potential extreme losses,
facilitating the proactive management of interest rate risk in a
rapidly changing financial market.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events such as fire, flood or other disasters.
Potential loss may be in the form of financial loss or other
damages, for example, loss of reputation and public confidence
that will impact the Bank’s credibility and ability to transact,
maintain liquidity and obtain new business.

The Operational Risk Management Department (“ORM”)
develops and maintains the Bank’s operational risk management
framework, policies and procedures and supports the business
units in their implementation. ORM also monitors and submits
regular operational risk reports to the RMCC.
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Operational risk is managed through an internal framework of
policies, processes and procedures. This framework
encompasses the identification of significant operational risk
exposures and management controls, ongoing performance of
self assessments by the business units as well as vigilant
monitoring and reporting.

The operational risk management processes and procedures
include :

e QOperational Risk Self Assessments;

e Key Operational Risk Indicators;

e QOperational Risk Action Plans;

® Reporting and analysis of operational risk events and losses.

Operational Risk Self Assessments involve identifying and
assessing inherent risks as well as assessing the effectiveness of
controls to mitigate the identified risks. Actions plans to address
issues identified are documented and monitored via Operational
Risk Action Plans.

Key Operational Risk Indicators are statistical data collected and
monitored by business and support units on an on-going basis
to facilitate early detection of potential operational risk control
weaknesses. Trend analysis is carried out to identify systemic
issues that need to be addressed.

A database of operational risk events and losses has also been
established to facilitate the future use of advanced approaches
for quantification of operational risks. Additionally, the analysis of
loss trends and root causes of loss events helps in strengthening
the internal control environment.

Included in the overall operational risk management framework is
the disciplined product/service programme process aimed at
ensuring that risks associated with each new product/service are
identified, analysed and addressed prior to launch. In addition, in
line with the increasing need to outsource to achieve cost and
operational efficiency, an Outsourcing Policy & Framework is
established to ensure that outsourcing risks are adequately
identified and managed prior to entering into new arrangements
and on an ongoing basis.

To ensure continuity of business and timely recovery of critical
functions in the event of a disaster or business disruption,
effective business continuity and crisis management strategies
and plans have been developed and these are tested on regular
basis.

An insurance programme is in place to effectively mitigate the
risk of high impact operational losses.

Legal risk, part of operational risk, arises from unenforceable or
unintended contracts, defective documentation, insufficient
authority of customers, lawsuits and non-compliance with
applicable laws. Business units work closely with the Bank’s
Legal & Secretariat Division as well as external legal counsels to
ensure that legal risks are effectively managed.
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Shareholder Status Update
Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100%

There were no changes to the Company’s
registered capital, nor any split or merger during
the reporting period

None of the Company’s directors, supervisors or
top management was penalised by the regulatory
authorities during the reporting period.

Other highlights during the reporting period:

In February 2009, Global Markets and Investment
Management segment was awarded the Best Progressive
Award by China Foreign Exchange Trading System
(“CFETS”), in recognition of their performance in China’s
inter-bank foreign exchange market.

In June 2009, Shenyang Branch obtained the licence to
commence Renminbi retail business, offering local currency
services to the local retail customers.

In July 2009, Chengdu Branch obtained the licence to
commence Renminbi retail business, offering local currency
services to the local retail customers.

In August 2009, Xiamen Branch obtained the licence to
commence Renminbi retail business, offering local currency
services to the local retail customers.

In August 2009, Xiamen Branch was awarded “A” class by
PBOC Xiamen in the Anti-Money Laundering Off-site
Assessment.

In September 2009, UOB (China) placed a donation of
RMB 500,000 to establish the Fujian (Xiamen)-Singapore
Friendship Polyclinic with a Singapore charity group and
individuals.

In September 2009, Beijing Dongcheng Sub-Branch
received approval to commence business.

In October 2009, Tianjin Branch received approval to
commence business.

In December 2009, Shenyang Branch was voted as the
Most Innovative Bank in the Liaoshen Banking Service
Excellence Award 2009 organised by the local newspaper.
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Head Office

Rooms 606-609, 13-14/F,
1118 Pudong South Road,
Shanghai 200122

Tel : (86)(21) 3852 8188
Fax: (86)(21) 3852 8189
SWFT: UOVBCNSH
Website: uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Rooms 101 & 201, 9/F,
1118 Pudong South Road,
Shanghai 200122

Tel : (86)(21) 3852 8288
Fax: (86)(21) 3852 8289

Jing An Sub-Branch
(Shanghai)

1P-01/02, United Plaza,
1468 Nanjing Road West,
Shanghai 200040

Tel : (86)(21) 6247 3688
Fax: (86)(21) 6289 1001

Beijing Branch

Unit 2513, Tower 2,

China World Trade Centre,
1 Jianguomenwai Avenue,
Beijing 100004

Tel : (86)(10) 6505 1863
Fax: (86)(10) 6505 1862

Dongcheng Sub-Branch
(Beijing)

Unit 108, Tower C,

The Fifth Square,

7 Chaoyangmen North
Avenue,

Beijing 100010

Tel : (86)(10) 6408 8699
Fax: (86)(10) 6408 8668

Chengdu Branch
Level 1, First City Plaza,
308 Shuncheng Street,
Chengdu 610017
Tel : (86)(28) 8667 6121
Fax: (86)(28) 8667 7121

I MMT
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iB%s: 510075

FBiE: 86208755 8611
fEE . 8620 8755 6661
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KERITKET-2E
HR%%: 361012

BiE: 86 592 508 1601
fEE . 86 592 508 1605

KEMT

KEWIEX

L% 236-2382 BT 17
l4R . 300040

FiE: 86 22 2339 3688
fEE: 8622 2321 0166

Guangzhou Branch

Units 1107-1110 & 1113-1114,
Metro Plaza,

183-187 Tianhe Bei Road,
Guangzhou 510075

Tel : (86)(20) 8755 8611

Fax: (86)(20) 8755 6661

Shenzhen Branch

Unit 2, G2 Floor (North Side),
Di Wang Commercial Centre,
Shun Hing Square,

5002 Shennan Road East,
Shenzhen 518008

Tel : (86)(755) 8246 1298
Fax: (86)(755) 8246 3326

Shenyang Branch
Fortune Plaza Tower C,
Unit C1, 1-2 Floor,

55 Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel : (86)(24) 3128 0606
Fax: (86)(24) 3128 0628

Xiamen Branch

1-2/F, United Overseas
Bank Building,

19 Hubin Bei Road,
Xiamen 361012

Tel : (86)(592) 508 1601
Fax: (86)(592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

236 & 238, Hebei Road,
The Emperor Place,
Heping District,

Tianjin 300040

Tel : (86)(22) 2339 3688
Fax: (86)(22) 2321 0166
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Lk HERF(2010)EH F 560658622_B01=
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2010) Shen Zi No 60658622_B01

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (the “Bank”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2009, the
income statement, the statement of changes in equity and the
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The management is responsible for preparing financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises. This responsibility includes (1) designing,
implementing and maintaining the internal control relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error; (2) selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and (3) making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Chinese Auditing Standards issued by the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain a reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider the internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



=. HiItER Opinion
BAVAA, KERT(HEVERATMEZIRFZDZLEBAN  Inour opinion, the financial statements of United Overseas Bank
SN ERS, ERAEATEASKEM T E/0F (China) Limited have been prepared in accordance with

2009412 A31 B &R BL R 2009F 2 & BFnTl  Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and presented
ShE. fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the Bank as

of 31 December 2009 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended.

ZXEPITIIESFT B9 FT FEEM I RS

Ernst & Young Hua Ming Shanghai Office Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yan, Shengwei
HE EE FEEMEITIT BEX

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Lin, Yuhua
2010E3H24H

24 March 2010
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2009%12H31H

Balance Sheet
31 December 2009

(BR4rRIERASN, €& A R IT/Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MtiEE  20094£12H31H 2008%&12H31H

Notes 5 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
20l ASSETS:
W& I TF A SRR TN Cash and balances with central banks 1 1,505,218,151 1,445,646,825
TFERUE LRI Due from banks and other financial institutions 2 760,963,181 2,341,349,749
HFERE Placements with financial institutions 3 2,129,647,393 2,421,199,483
UARMETEBESHIT N SRR S . )
A Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 - 74,377,593
TTEERMArT Derivative financial assets 5 12,469,437 8,620,730
IS Interest receivables 6 30,487,290 110,247,379
RIS RN Loans and advances to customers 7 9,393,993,073  10,621,192,729
A E SR Available-for-sale financial assets 8 600,419,057 389,787,080
B E# - Fixed assets 9 18,130,620 17,466,173
b Intangible assets 10 28,019,452 23,138,984
1BIEFTIS R AT Deferred tax assets 11 57,908,039 53,847,417
HAth = Other assets 12 41,386,735 27,817,525
Rt TOTAL ASSETS 14,678,642,428  17,5634,691,667
R LIABILITIES:
(5] M 5 EoAth £ BATL A 7 Bk T Due to banks and other financial institutions 14 55,568,814 134,908,565
LN Placements from financial institutions 15 4,430,717,354 8,744,456,636
TESR NS Derivative financial liabilities 5 14,319,234 12,625,144
algEE Customer deposits 16 6,640,610,530 5,217,081,538
NATER T M Payroll payables 17 16,262,696 9,327,643
BT Tax payables 18 27,776,021 54,216,021
NATRI B Interest payables 19 11,468,092 48,961,613
HAb 6 Other liabilities 20 18,759,996 37,537,679
nERET TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,215,482,737  14,259,114,839
FrEEN G EQUITY:
KA A Paid-up capital 21 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
AARNTR Capital reserves 22 (6,771,343) (15,177,938)
BRI Surplus reserves 23 7,917,626 -
— X General reserves 24 132,103,606 -
ROBLAE Retained earnings 25 229,909,802 290,754,766
FrEENZEET TOTAL EQUITY 3,363,159,691 3,275,576,828

NENATEENE ST

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

14,5678,642,428

17,634,691,667

BT HEL4MEE TV S MERM TR S MEHARE D

The notes on pages 54 to 117 form an integral part of these financial statements.

54 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED



EES

20094 &

Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(BR4ErRIERASN, €& A R IT/Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MiER 2009 EF H2008F1H2H(LEHA)E
200812 H31HLHEA
Notes 5 Year 2009 From 2 January 2008 (Business
conversion date) to period end
31 December 2008
—. Bl 1. Operating income

FEWN Interest income 26 510,529,287 885,058,868
FEZH Interest expense 26 (137,445,313) (404,203,626)
ISV N Net interest income 26 373,083,974 480,855,242
FEHERASUYN Fee and commission income 27 19,037,634 32,761,977
FEHR LRI H Fee and commission expense 27 (3,302,914) (4,308,777)
FEHRLALFBN Net fee and commission income 27 15,734,720 28,453,200
BRERK)/ W Investment (loss)/ income 28 (2,084,782) 703,115
NARMEBNIRR Gains or losses from changes in fair value 29 10,273,276 (1,110,490)
JC 58 KL P R AR Foreign exchange gain/(loss) (6,159,394) (153,043,292)
HAb W S WN/(GZH) Other operating income/(expense) (3,529,024) -
SR AL 9N Total operating income 387,318,770 355,857,775

Z. BlEH 2. Operating expenses
B B4 N BTN Business tax and surcharges (25,159,737) (31,829,862)
WK EIRS General and administrative expenses 30 (222,813,272) (208,296,203)
AV A LIRS Impairment losses 31 (41,419,762) (134,841,513)
EWEZHET Total operating expenses (289,392,771) (374,967,578)
=. BFE 3. Operating profit/(loss) 97,925,999 (19,109,803)
iR ZIN PN Add Non-operating income 32 8,060,323 8,170,611
B BN Less Non-operating expenses 33 (1,165,539) (1,242,820)
M. BEIRE/(S1R) 250 4. Profit/(loss) before tax 104,820,783 (12,182,012)
W FTERiER A Less Income tax expense 34 (25,644,515) 2,135,702
. EFIE(SH) 5. Net profit/(loss) 79,176,268 (10,046,310)
N HiZEE RS 6. Other comprehensive income 36 8,406,595 (14,635,571)
+t. GEelELDE 7. Total comprehensive income 87,582,863 (24,681,881)

BT ES4NEE 17 S MERMIEARY SR FTAAMEL
The notes on pages 54 to 117 form an integral part of these financial statements.

EHAMEE TN SMEHEU T ALEE:
The financial statements from page 54 to 117 have been signed by:

B5F FER =N - P
Director: TAN Kian Huat Chief Financial Officer: YAM Soon Lee Ronnie

WHEE: BFRER
Head, Finance: CHEN Si Meng Juliet
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(BR4ERIERASN, €& A R IT/Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

- 200841 A2H (M 51
fiiER 20094 & A #1R2R LS )J?&E])
ZE2008F12A31HILHiE
From 2 January 2008 (Business
Notes 5 Year 2009 conversion date) to period
end 31 December 2008
—. BEENTENNETE: 1. Cash flows from operating activities:
TR E M 5 /D& Net decrease in due from banks and other financial institutions - 546,147,753
IRHEREFE/DE Net decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions 503,680,575 -
RSB TOSRE D E Net decrease in loans and advances to customers 1,181,464,576 -
. N Net increase in customer deposit and due to banks and other
W, W 7 AN 8] b 7 AR T4 1 A8 L 1,344,967,575 572,946,321
financial institutions
IRANR SR MER Net increase in placements from banks and other financial institutions - 1,542,979,124
WEIHFRIS . FEBRRAESNIE Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 594,142,139 875,197,152
WEIHA 52 EENB RIS Cash received from other operating activities 75,988,827 67,165,558
ZEFRDMERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 3,700,243,692 3,604,435,908
TEHUE) L% 18 0 Net increase in due from banks and other financial institutions 136,557,600 -
N N Net increase in placements with banks and other financial
7 & nEn o - 393,342,607
institutions
RIS AR 1 N Net increase in loans and advances to customers - 1,264,966,157
TEHR BRI T N ET Net increase in due from the Central Bank 66,058,475 483,179,399
.. Net decrease in placements from banks and other financial
RNFE S5 R DER o P 4,308,041,720 -
institutions
TAMFE. FERBESHIS Payments made for interest, service fee and commission 175,586,672 398,227,717
FATAIRT M AR T AT S Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 124,935,777 99,993,556
AT B IR 2R Cash paid for all types of taxes 87,319,012 33,380,894
TAWEMELEENBE RS Cash paid for other operating activities 99,126,067 5,805,137
ZEFRSMERE /NT Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 4,997,625,323 2,678,895,467
ZREFENENUEME A Net cash flows from operating activities (1,297,381,631) 925,540,441
Z. BRESTENYISRE: 2. Cash flows from investing activities:
W e 7 K E R & Cash received from maturity of investments 6,846,759,996 248,120,650
BERAR KRNI S Cash received from investment income 13,100,089 17,785,626
B B E A PR E A ERZE P i [a] Cash received from disposal of fixed assets and other long term
) . 3,499 1,031,024
e investments properties
SAEIERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 6,859,863,584 266,937,300
BERAFTZAHINE Cash paid for investment 7,046,567,180 322,372,703
T F22 [ 72 25 PE RN B HA A P S A+ Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term
19,281,633 28,555,776
HilE assets
BAEESNI &R /ANT Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 7,065,848,813 350,928,479
BARESNT AN SR E S5 Net cash flows from investing activities (205,985,229) (83,991,179)
= CETHNUERALSENY 3. Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
o . (7,452,323) (209,023,467)
EEAE] equivalents
0. WM& RINEZEMWECED)/IEIEN 4. Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,510,819,183) 632,525,795
m: HRE I EENDRE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4,649,568,448 4,017,042,653
A XA ERAEENIRE 5. Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 35 3,138,749,265 4,649,568,448

HTEAMEFZ T YSREME ARV S IRFOEE D
The notes on pages 54 to 117 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(BRAFBERASN, SF A A RMIT/Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

IR LSS st R L
From 2 January 2008 (Business
Supplementary information Notes 5 Year 2009 conversion date) to period
end 31 December 2008
1. BEFE/(SR)ETAKLEESR 1. Reconciliation of net profit/(loss) to cash flows from operating
NEmE: activities:
RS R) Net profit/(loss) 79,176,268 (10,046,310)
AR ERE Impairment losses 41,419,762 134,841,513
Bl E AR Fixed assets depreciation 4,293,569 3,975,560
b1 U < Intangible assets amortization 2,805,793 1,505,235
KHAGF G2 s Amortization for long term deferred expenses 3,952,238 41,596,524
LB B T R P/ B A K R IR (Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term
) I 561,960 (7,270)
NI ET IR/ () (Gain)/loss from the changes in fair value (10,273,276) 1,110,490
FREAL AT BN AL R s Interest received from bond investments and investment income (8,822,021) (18,138,549)
JLRIRK Foreign Exchange loss 7,698,870 168,596,970
BIE PSRN Increase/decrease in deferred tax assets/liabilities (6,862,820) (36,997,181)
2275 ST B AR D /(K8 ) Decrease/(increase) in operating receivables 1,626,970,685 (1,591,329,604)
275 % AT B RO D)/E 0 (Decrease)/Increase in operating payables (3,038,302,659) 2,230,433,063
ZEENFENIEREEE Net cash flows from operating activities (1,297,381,631) 925,540,441
2. NERIEEMYEEMER: 2.Net increase in cash and cash equivalents:
MERIEARREN Cash on hand at end of year 35 5,367,965 5,000,602
W AR Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year 5,000,602 1,640,578
mn: WESNMHIEIRREN Add: Cash equivalents at end of year 35 3,133,381,300 4,644,567,846
W REFNYRIHIIRE Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,644,567,846 4,015,402,075
& R &S M5 08 D)/ IR Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,510,819,183) 632,525,795
HTESATNEE N7 M B IR R[MNT AR IR FRAA R F 2
The notes on pages 54 to 117 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements Of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(BRAFBERASN, SFE A A RMIT/Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

I HE A BEATR BEATR —RBREES FAEFE &it
Paid-up Capital Surplus General Retained Total
Capital Reserves Reserves Reserves Earnings
200812 A31HAH Balance as at 31 December 2008 3,000,000,000 (15,177,938) - - 290,754,766 3,275,576,828
A E T E S Movements during the year - 8,406,595 7,917,626 132,103,606  (60,844,964) 87,582,863
(—) AFE (i)Net profit - - - - 79,176,268 79,176,268
(Z) Efpr A s (iyOther comprehensive income - 8,406,595 - - - 8,406,595
1. ATt ESEAT/A S 1. Net change in the fair value of
i . ) - 11,208,793 - - - 11,208,793
M1EERZE) available-for-sale financial assets
2. 5 NFTEEMEEX 2. Income tax impact recognised
P . . . - (2,802,198) - - - (2,802,198)
MIFTR RS0 directly in equity
SEWE SR Total Comprehensive income 8,406,595 - - 79,176,268 87,582,863
(=) FEE (iii) Profit appropriation - - 7,917,626 132,103,606  (140,021,232) -
1. REABRAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - 7,917,626 - (7,917,626) -
2. IRE— A XU 7 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - 132,103,606  (132,103,606) -
200912 A31HA&E Balance as at 31 December 2009 3,000,000,000 (6,771,343) 7,917,626 132,103,606 229,909,802 3,3683,159,691

BT HESANEF T SIRERMEE AR S IRFZAIARE D

The notes on pages 54 to 117 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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200841 A2 H (W 5&1# H)Z2008412 31 B 1L HA[8)
Statements Of Changes In Equity (Continued)

From 2 January 2008 (Business conversion date) to period ended 31 December 2008
(BRAFBERASN, SFE A8 A RMIT/Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

KR A AERH FATELFNE SMHITEER ait
Paid-up Capital Retained Foreign Currency Total
Capital Reserves Earnings Translation Reserve
200841 A2H &% Balance as at 2 January 2008 3,000,000,000 - 439,371,415 (150,361,262) 3,289,010,153
s kit AENIBE  Add: Retrospective adjustments arising
. - (542,367) (138,570,339) 150,361,262 11,248,556
BErysm from adoption of new CAS
1B S HAV A EN Balance as at 2 January 2008 3,000,000,000 (542,367) 300,801,076 - 3,300,258,709
AR E RS Movements during the period - (14,635,571) (10,046,310) - (24,681,881)
(—) FSH ()Net loss - - (10,046,310) - (10,046,310)
(Z) Efrr AWz (i)Other comprehensive income - (14,635,571) - - (14,635,571)
1. AMEHESRA/AA 1. Net change in the fair value of available-
) , - (19,514,095) - - (19,514,095)
MEERZE) for-sale financial assets
2. Bt NFTEEREHEF* 2. Income tax impact recognised directly
- 4,878,524 B — 4,878,524
HIFTR RS0 in equity
SEWE S Total Comprehensive income - (14,635,571) (10,046,310) - (24,681,881)
2008412 A31 H&4 Balance as at 31 December 2008 3,000,000,000 (15,177,938) 290,754,766 - 3,275,576,828

T HELAMEF TV S MERMEAE M SRR ARE D

The notes on pages 54 to 117 form an integral part of these financial statements.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 59



0 35+ = B E

2009 &

Notes To Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

(BR4RIERASN, €& A R IT/Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
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1. Corporate Information

United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (The “Bank” or “UOB
(China)”) is a wholly-owned foreign-funded bank established in
Shanghai, PRC, by United Overseas Bank Limited (‘UOB”).

In accordance with the Regulation of the People’s Republic of
China on the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the
“Regulation”), and the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of
Regulation of the People’s Republic of China on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the “Implementation”),
China Banking Regulatory Committee (“CBRC”) gave approval to
UOB to convert its branches in mainland of People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) branches to UOB (China) Shanghai Branch, Beijing
Branch, Shenzhen Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Chengdu
Branch, Xiamen Branch, Shenyang Branch and Jingan sub-
branch, respectively on 5 April 2007. On the same day, UOB
established UOB (China), the Head Office.

The Bank obtained its Financial Licence No. 00000386 on

12 December 2007 upon approval from CBRC. On 18 December
2007, the Bank obtained its Business Licence No.
310000400553992 issued by Shanghai City Administration of
Industry and Commerce, with a registered capital equivalent to
RMB3 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an unlimited
operating period. The business scope of the Bank are Renminbi
and foreign currency businesses as approved by relevant
regulatory authorities. The date of business conversion from
former PRC branches to UOB (China) was 2 January 2008, on
which the Bank officially started its business operations.

As of 31 December 2009, besides the Head Office incorporated
in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 8 branches respectively in
Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Chengdu, Xiamen,
Shenyang and Tianjin.

2. Preparation basis of the financial
statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic
Standard and 38 specific standards issued in February 2006,
and the implementation guidance, interpretations and other
relevant provisions issued subsequently by the Ministry of
Finance of People’s Republic of China (“MOF”), (correctly referred
to as “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

3. Compliance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position of
the Bank as of 31 December 2009 and the results of the
operations and the cash flows for the year then ended.
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4, Significant accounting policies and
estimates

(1) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to
31 December of each calendar year.

(2) Functional currency

Both the reporting currency and the presentation currency for
financial statements are the Renminbi (“RMB”). All amounts are
stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

(3) Basis of accounting and principles for measurement

The Bank'’s financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value with changes recorded in
profit and loss, and avalable-for-sales financial assets.
Subsequently, if the assets are impaired, corresponding
provisions should be recognised in accordance with relevant
standards.

(4) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the respective
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
date. Subsequent to initial recognition, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on the
translation of monetary items at balance sheet date are
recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary items
measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the initial
transations; Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates when
the fair value is determinded, the exchange difference thus
resulted should be recognised in the income statement or capital
reserves of the current period.

(5) Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as the following four categories:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; Held-to-
maturity investment; Loans and receivables and Available-for-sale
financial assets. Financial assets are initially recognised at their
fair value. For financial assets at fair value through profit and loss,
the related transaction costs are directly charged to income
statement of the current period. Transaction costs relating to
financial assets of other categories are included in the amount
initially recognised.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets which are either classified as held for trading or
designated by the Bank at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they meet any of the criteria set out belows: 1) acquired
for the purpose of sale in a short term; 2) a part of a portfolio of
identifiable financial instruments that are collectively managed,
and there is objective evidence indicating that the enterprise
recently manages this portfolio for the purpose of short-term
profits; 3) derivatives unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. For such kind of financial assets, fair values
are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realised or
unrealised gains or losses on these financial assets are
recognised in the income statement of the current period.

Financial assets are designated as fair value through profit and
loss only if they meet any of the following criteria:

(i) The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in recognition or measurement of gain or loss
arising from the difference of measurement basis of financial
assets and financial liabilities;

(i) In accordance with documented risk management or
investment strategy, this financial assets portfolio are managed,
and evaluated at fair value and reported on that basis to key
management personnel;

(i) The financial instrument contains one or several embedded
derivatives, unless the embedded derivatives do not significantly
modify the cash flow of the mixed instrument or it is clear, with
little analysis, that they would not be separately recorded;

(iv) The financial instrument contains an embedded instrument,
which need to be separated but is unable to be measured
separately at initial recognition or subsequent measurement at
each subsequent balance sheet dates.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity date are classified as held-to-
maturity investments when the Bank has the positive intention
and ability to hold the assets till maturity. After initial recognition,
held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the held-to-maturity financial assets are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process. The bank shall not classify any financial assets as
held-to-maturity if the Bank has, during the current financial year
or during the two preceding financial years, sold or reclassified
more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
investments before maturity (more than insignificant in relation to
the total amount of held-to-maturity investments), any remaining
held-to-maturity investments are reclassified as available-for-sale
financial assets except for sale or reclassification that:
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(1) Sales that are so close to maturity (eg, within 3 months) that
changes in the market interest rate would not have a significant
effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

(2) Sales that occur after the Bank has collected substantially all
of the financial asset’s original principal through scheduled
payments or prepayments; or

(8) Sales that are attributable to an isolated event that is beyond
the bank’s control, is non-recurring, and could not have been
reasonably anticipated by the Bank.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, Gains or losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or amortisation are recognised in the income
statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets which are designated as such or are not classified in any
of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income earned during the holding period is
accrued using the effective interest rate method and recognised
to the income statement as interest rate income. Changes in fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets except for the
impairment and exchange gain or loss are recognised as a
separate component of equity until the financial asset is
derecognised at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously reported in equity are included in the income
statement.

(6) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying value of financial assets other than financial assets
at fair value through proift or loss is assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it
is impaired as a result of one or more events (“impairment
events”). The impairment events are referred to those occurring
after the initial recognition of the assets, which have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets and can be
reliably estimated by the Bank. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers are
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as deterioration of the
situation in arrears or sudden change of economic conditions,
which may lead to the debtors’ failing to fulfill the responsibility of
repayment.
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on such
financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, taking into account the value of any
related collateral.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

Future cash flows of a group of financial assets that are
collectively assessed for impairment are estimated on the basis
of historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics. The historical loss experience is adjusted on the
basis of current observable data, to reflect the effects of current
conditions not affecting the period of historical experience and to
eliminate the impact of historical conditions that do not exist
currently. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be attributed objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
assets does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If objective evidence shows that the financial assets carried at
cost are impaired, the difference between the present value
discounted at the prevailing rate of return of similar financial
assets and the book value of the financial asset are provided as a
impairment loss in the income statement. The impairment loss
recognised cannot be reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss for
available-for-sale financial assets has been incurred, the
cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost (net off any recovered principals and amortised
amount) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is reversed from capital reserves and recognised in
the income statement.
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Debt instruments classified as available-for-sale with impairment
loss recognised, if, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss, the
previously impaired loss is reversed through the income
statement. Reversal of impairment loss of equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale is not recogonised in the income
statement.

(7) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Gains and
losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are measured at the fair value on
initial recognition. For financial guarantee contracts that are not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of, the
amount determined in accordance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No. 13 - Contingencies, and the amount
initially recognised less the cumulative amortisation determined
according to the principles of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 14 - Revenues.

Other financial liabilities

Except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and financial guarantee contracts, deposits and other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

(8) Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial asset:
A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following
conditions is met:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired; or

(i) the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset; or has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, but has transferred control over the asset.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 65



LBENARREERBHRBERESBRATIEN LILFER
RBeFRE, RREMFENZEMATES, WALATR
REATESES NTEEEBATNERERINE XA, W
RAENRIRMAAEB SBARMAEROEELEE N, U
RRFHBRES N NRES TR ZETHARE, ZemA1
Y6 M £ S A2 A A BEH E KR E TN RKEH.

R
NMEEBAGHNETEET. BUESUER, NSk
KIFBIN. MENB LR AERE —FERANE R LELFRe
AEEFHNB—eRABIEA, HENERAENETILES
B SR B, M SEB H e B B E A & LI R TR AN
I AERNIE, EFUT A LR

9. THEEMTIA

TEER I AVRUTERZZAREITEANA M ELT
BN, FUEAANEHITREEITE. ARNENERNIT
S TABIAA—IR, ARMEARBHIFHIN—IN

nfRe

LREEZANITESM T ESHEF S RIBPL TN
FEEBXZ, ARIZEATIEFEUAANMEITERHT
It AHERERN, WIZga AR TELSRTENEESRF T
AR, FEAMIIITA SR T B, X ARSTE R
NAMEITE, AANMENTIITA SRS,
HEfT4em T B ZHEANBXGERIRT T 23T X0
HEYHZFER, BEATEZAERSITHEGMIEALK
SMFENTES T AWM, EARMESHITARE.
10. EETHE

HERIRERRAELIEYEHE BEAERREA NS
MWETRERIHUREMEXREASE.

7R TR FUT A E ARSHEZEABEET.

1. BE#R =K Riti#H

[E] 7 F 7= HIA
FpBBEERFRIEARMSSTLETEEMFTEN, A%
wBE— NI FEENBR AT
EZBERTBXNEFFNRRAERASLF, FRIZEE
REFRIAARE S P Mt 80, BER™A BT A#IA.

66 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

Where the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the financial asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Bank’s continuing involvement of the financial asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Bank could be required to repay.

Financial liability:

The financial liabilities are derecognised when the responsibilities
over them have been discharged, or cancelled, or expires. If the
original financial liabilities are replaced with substantively different
terms in essence by the same creditor, or the provisions of the
contract are substantively modified in its nature, such
replacement or modifications are treated as derecognition of
original liabilities and recognition of new liabilities, with the
difference recorded in the income statement.

(9) Derivatives and hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially, and
subsequently measured, at fair value. Derivatives with positive
and negative fair values are presented as assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet respectively.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contract and the hybrid instrument is not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken
directly to the income statement.

(10) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure for the construction, including all
necessary expenditure incurred during the construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets when the asset is ready
for its intended use.

(11) Fixed assets and accumulated depreciation

Recognition of Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets held by the Bank for use in the
supply of services, for rental and for administrative purposes,
and are expected to be used for more than one year.

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the Bank,
and the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.
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Subsequent expenditure can be recognised in the cost of fixed
assets when the recognition criteria set above is met, and the
replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised. Otherwise,
such expenditure is normally charged to the income statement in
the period when it is incurred.

Valuation and depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost and presented at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
impairment. The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the
purchase price, relevant taxes and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use, such as delivery and handling costs, installation
costs and other surcharge.

R 1E.
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis.
And the respective estimated useful lives, estimated residual
values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets are set by
the Bank considering the basic status and using condition of
fixed assets.
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Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

(12) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without
physical substance owned or controlled by the Bank.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and the useful life
is determined according to the economic useful lives; those
intangible assets with unforeseeable economic lives can be
classified as intangible assets with infinite useful lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software with a
10-year useful life.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation is
charged to income statement over the assets’ estimated
economic lives using methods that best reflect the pattern of
economic benefits; or on a straight line basis when the patten of
economic benefit realisation can not be reliably determined. For
the intangible assets with infinite useful lives, no amortisation is
made.

The useful life and amortisation method for intangible assets with
finite useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with
proper adjustments made by the Bank when necessary.
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(13) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses refers to the expenses incurred
with a amortisation period more than one year (not including one
year), mainly including rental fee and leasehold improvements.

Rental fee of the operating lease of fixed assets is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease contract. Other
long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lower period of lease and that of usage.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged to
income statement if the expenditure does not bring benefits for
subsequent accounting periods

(14) Impairment of assets

The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for
financial assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an asset is
impaired at each balance sheet date. If any such indication
exists, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount and carry out impairment test. For those assets with
infinite useful lives, regardless of whether the impairment
indications exist, the impairment test is made at least annually.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of estimated future discounted
cash flows, which is determined on an individual basis.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in income
statement and the carrying value of the asset reduced by the
amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be reversed in
a subsequent period.

(15) Recognition of income and expense

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income and expense

Interest income or expense are determinded using the effective
interest method, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument and includes any
fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
but not future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates
of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated
based on original effective interest rate and the change in carrying
amount is recorded as an interest income or expense.
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Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognised when the services
are rendered and the proceeds can be reasonably estimated.

(16) Income tax
Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at
the balance sheet date. The taxable income is calculated at the
accounting results for the year as adjusted in accordance with
relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with
relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences between the tax bases and their carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except: (i) where the deferred
tax assets arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable income or deductible loss; and; (i) in respect of taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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(17) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other
short term employee benefits are accrued in the period in which
services have been rendered by the employees of the Bank.

Defined contribution plans

According to relevant laws and regulations of Mainland China,
the Bank is required to make contributions to several social
security schemes separately administered by the local
government authorities. The contribution is recognised to income
statement of that period.

(18) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, non-statutory deposits
due from central banks, amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions, reverse repurchase agreements maturing
within three months, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, which
have an original maturity date within three months.

(19) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

(20) Fiduciary activities

Where the Bank acts in a fiduciary capacity such as nominee,
custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together with related
undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded
from the financial statement.

(21) Operating leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as finance
leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Bank mainly recorded operating leases as a lessee. Rental
payments are charged to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

(22) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Bank. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but disclosed in
the notes to financial statements. In case the condition changes,
which led to the outflow of economic resources is probable,
provision will be made.
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(23) Accrued liability

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as accrued
liability when all of the following conditions are satisfied:

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(ii) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The accrued liability is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present obligation.
Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks,
uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account as
a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank reviews the
carrying amount of a provision at the balance sheet date. The
carrying amount of a provision will be adjusted when there is clear
evidence that the amount does not reflect the current best estimate.

(24) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset only when the Bank
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
both parties of the transaction intend to settle on a net basis.

(25) Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has used its judgments and made assumptions of
the effects of uncertain future events on the financial statements.
The use of judgments and key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial period.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

The Bank determines periodically whether there is any objective
evidence that impairment losses on loans and advances have
occurred. If any such evidence exists, the Bank assesses the
amount of impairment losses. The amount of impairment losses
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows. Assessing the
amount of impairment losses involving significant judgement on
whether the objective evidence for impairment exists and also
significant estimates when determining the present value of the
expected future cash flows.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Bank to estimate
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Bank
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions in accordance
with prevailing tax regulations and makes tax provisions
accordingly. In addition, deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. This requires significant estimation on the tax
treatments of certain transactions and also significant assessment
on the probability that adequate future taxable profits will be
available for the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with active
markets are determined based on the market prices. For financial
instruments with no active markets, fair value are established
using valuation techniques such as making reference to recent
transactions or other comparable financial instruments,
discounted cash flow method and option pricing models. To the
extent practicable, valuation technique makes maximum use of
market inputs. However, where market inputs are not available,
management needs to make estimates on areas such as credit
risk (both own and counterparty’s), volatility and correlation.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

Classification of investment

Significant management judgments are required in evaluating the
classification of investments, since different classification will
result in different accounting treatments and financial positions of
the Bank. If improper judement on the classification of investment
is noticed after the balance sheet date, the Bank may need to
reclassify the whole investment portfolio.

(26) Changes in accounting policy and financial statement
disclosure

The Bank adopted CAS Interpretation No.3 issued by MOF in
June 2009 from 1 January 2009. According to the interpretation,
the Bank changes certain disclosure by adding “other
comprehensive income” (“OCI”) and “total comprehensive
income”in the income statement. OCI recorded those not
recognised income and expenses in the profit & loss, net of tax,
in the equity. Details of changes has been disclosed in Note 5.36
and the comparative figures are revised accordingly.

5. Notes to financial statements
(1) Cash and balances with central banks

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
EFNE Cash on hand 5,367,965 5,000,602
FEHFRBITEEESZE-ART Statutory deposit reserve with the central banks - RMB 664,137,583 607,143,819
TR RBITEEEE S-S Statutory deposit reserve with the central banks - foreign currency 25,768,914 16,704,203
TFERF RARAT R E AR RUIN Other deposits with central banks 809,943,689 816,798,201

&it Total

1,605,218,151 1,445,646,825

RERPEARBITEINE, ALRBIIR—ELL RN
FRESETHTEARRIT. BARKTHINDFRERSE
LEAFRIIERSTHISNHTF, ARMEREEENIZLE
RAERMEHEHAI13.5%H7F -
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In accordance with relevant regulations issued by the PBOC, the
Bank should place a statutory deposit reserve fund with the
PBOC. The statutory deposit reserve fund could not be used for
daily operations. The required statutory deposit reserve ratios set
by the PBOC is 5% of the balance of customer deposits
denominated in foreign currencies at the end of last month, and
13.5% of the balance of customer deposits denominated in RMB
at 10 days before the month end respectively.



2. FHE SR I

(2) Due from banks and other financial institutions

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
HFRUEASRITE L Due from domestic banks 572,165,497 2,043,759,341
TFREINMRITE L Due from foreign Banks 188,797,684 297,590,408
TERE 55 Net amount of due from banks and other financial institutions 760,963,181 2,341,349,749
3. IFHEE (3) Placements with financial institutions

2009-12-31 2008-12-31

PR S IR R RAT R
U S HIR SMRATR) L
FE AR EFE

Placements with domestic banks

Placements with foreign banks

Net amount of placements with financial institutions

1,945,285,993 1,737,739,483

184,361,400 683,460,000

2,129,647,393 2,421,199,483

4. PUARMETTERREZITAS B ar S i~

(4) Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss

2009-12-31 2008-12-31

N5 B HITHA RBUE R RAT

% bonds and central bank bills

Held-for trading investments measured at fair value-treasury -

74,377,593
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(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which is derived
from the value of another “underlying” financial instrument, an
index or some other variables. Typically, an “underlying” financial
instrument is a share, commodity or bond price, an index value
or an exchange or interest rate. The bank uses derivative
instruments such as forwards, futures, swaps and options.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount of
underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative is based.
It indicates the unsettled volume of business transaction at the
balance sheet date. The amount of underlying asset reflects the
risk exposure of derivative at the end of accounting period other
than fair value.

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable and
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.
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FARFAFH

RRAMFENTEERIANT:

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative

instruments are as follows:

2009-12-31
RERF AR E L EH ARME
Notional amounts by remaining life Fair values
3™ AR 3T RENE 14 2]54F ait = R
Wi:g:\::;ee n?gg;g fjt tc))t\xlte :vﬁrl:?nyf?va; Total Assets Liabilities
within one year years
SCETAET A Exchange rate contracts:
ILHAE 4 Forwards 65,795,923 333,557,301 - 399,353,224 853,790 608,046
HIEY Swaps 279,439,384  1,009,118,000 - 1,288,557,384 2,747,308 2,979,970
Bas Options 21,037,222 - - 21,037,222 39,958 39,958
INF Sub-total 366,272,529  1,342,675,301 - 1,708,947,830 3,641,056 3,627,974
MZEHTETE:  Interest rate contracts:
HHIEY Swaps - 725,551,000 450,000,000  1,175,551,000 3,866,047 5,728,926
Bas Options 160,008,495  1,170,788,461 274,398,045  1,605,195,001 399,136 399,136
N7 Sub-total 160,008,495  1,896,339,461 724,398,045  2,780,746,001 4,265,183 6,128,062
[BEELEN Commodity option 7,495,201 21,662,855 - 29,158,056 - -
BAE AL Equity option 155,428,474 18,015,381 121,863,333 295,307,188 4,563,198 4,563,198
&t Total 689,204,699  3,278,692,998 846,261,378  4,814,159,075 12,469,437 14,319,234
2008-12-31
RERF AR EH nRNE
Notional amounts by remaining life Fair values
3MAR 3T RENE 14556 Ait = i f
Within three n?;rf:r;(g '::‘t (t?t\llte Cvﬁ;?nﬁ?\?; Total Assets Liabilities

months within one year years
SNCHTAETI R  Exchange rate contracts: 68,994,101 180,862,287 - 249,856,388 1,887,608 3,450,823
LHAB 4 Forwards 1,082,592,056 381,612,320 - 1,464,204,376 6,688,069 9,129,268
HIEY Swaps 5,467,715 - - 5,467,715 7,772 7,772
A4 Options 1,157,053,872 562,474,607 - 1,719,528,479 8,583,449 12,587,863
INT Sub-total
MZEHTETE:  Interest rate contracts:
A4 Swaps - - - - - -
B aEs Options 83,625,831 726,384,478 - 810,010,309 - -
N7 Sub-total 83,625,831 726,384,478 - 810,010,309 - -
[EEEEN Commaodity option - - 9,941,694 9,941,694 37,281 37,281
PEAEHARY Equity option 20,008,490 115,402,966 - 135,411,456 - -
&t Total 1,260,688,193  1,404,262,051 9,941,694  2,674,891,938 8,620,730 12,625,144
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6. M2

(6) Interest receivable

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
R RRI B Interest receivable on bond 781,051 5,059,119
RRKF] B Interest receivable on loan 27,678,482 67,192,070
(5] 2 At & B S IR B Interest receivable from bank and other financial institutions 2,027,757 37,996,190
ait Total 30,487,290 110,247,379

7. KGR AR
71 B AFEA S

(7) Loans and advances to customers

7.1 Distribution of loans and advances by individual and corporate

is as follows:

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
A NG ANE R Individual loans and advances:
gt Mortgages 589,063,131 411,109,701
HE Others 29,337,005 269,344
Nay Sub-total 618,400,136 411,379,045
1oV EFER AR R L Corporate loans and advances:
R Loans 8,999,160,825 10,442,937,830
T Trust receipts 62,335,796 50,015,744
L Discounted bills 3,952,322 -
HAt Others 15,612,043 1,254,376
/NT Sub-total 9,081,060,986 10,494,207,950
TR EN Total 9,699,461,122 10,905,586,995
W RERKES Loan impairment provisions (305,468,049) (284,394,266)
WA TR E M E Carrying value of loans and advances to customers 9,393,993,073 10,621,192,729
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7.2 BT H

7.2 Distribution of loans and advances to customers by industry

is as follows:
2009-12-31

T E S &R e (%)
Amount Rate (%)
R A Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing - -
A Mining 51,700,000 1%
HE Manufacturing 4,274,277,205 44%
B, MR EKEIEFFIEE Electricity, gas and water supply 180,282,000 2%
EHA Construction 210,518,600 2%
LZiBizk, CEFHLEL Transportation, storage and post 59,858,334 1%
RGN, TTENARSS A AL T 5T Telecommunication, computer service and software 143,529,775 2%
HERMEEW Wholesale and retail 571,794,131 6%
BRI Accommodation and catering 297,738,493 3%
bl Real estates 2,432,728,126 25%
THEANRE S AR 55 Leasing and commercial services 699,368,703 7%
MEPR, FARRS M REIZR Scientific research, technical services and geologic perambulation 14,000,000 -
JKEI, EREANA SIS Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration 23,140,000 -
HEW Education 120,000,000 1%
D&, HREMESER L Health, social security and social welfare 2,125,619 -
MNEELIN Consumer credit 618,400,136 6%
R DEN Total amount of loans and advances 9,699,461,122 100%

W REURKEE Loan impairment provisions (305,468,049)

CER AR E M E Net value of loans and advances 9,393,993,073

2008-12-31

TKE R E Le 5l (%)
Amount Rate (%)
R A Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 29,200,000 -
EA Mining 118,346,000 1%
s Manufacturing 5,679,499,087 52%
B, AR KBAE PRI R Electricity, gas and water supply 30,000,000 -
I Constructions 256,458,960 2%
LIBIZH, OEFALELL Transportation, storage and post 84,555,851 1%
ezl Wholesale and retail 680,059,673 7%
FEEME R Accommodation and catering 442,050,971 4%
Jip: Y|4 Real estates 2,333,460,530 22%
TAEME SRS Leasing and commercial services 672,469,040 6%
MNEHR, FARRS M FRRIZR Scientific research, technical services and geologic perambulation 10,000,000 -
TKA], MR FEHE SR Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration 34,750,000 -
B Education 120,000,000 1%
D&, HSREMESER W Health, social security and social welfare 3,357,838 -
MNHBER Consumer credit 411,379,045 4%
AR Total amount of loans and advances 10,905,586,995 100%

W RRIRKEE Loan impairment provisions: (284,394,266)

BRI EMNE

Net value of loans and advances

10,621,192,729
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7.3 KX

7.3 Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
geographical region is as follows:

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
peld North-East 553,990,000 556,220,309
R East 4,891,817,711 5,725,343,000
ik North 964,309,281 1,324,634,378
ferh Central 253,071,870 221,478,750
frm South 1,778,738,343 2,077,380,929
o/ South-west 1,082,193,846 927,244,548
oMb X Overseas 180,340,071 73,290,081
e iEE =R Total amount of loans and advances 9,699,461,122 10,905,586,995
R RS Loan impairment provisions (305,468,049) (284,394,266)

BRI E TE

Carrying value of loans and advances

9,393,993,073

10,621,192,729

7TARBRAFATH 7.4 Analysed by type of collateral or guarantee:
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
ERER Unsecured loans 1,316,879,615 1,620,767,730
FRIESEFX Guaranteed loans 3,042,210,966 3,879,136,152
BB R4 TR Loans with collateral 5,340,370,541 5,405,683,113

G AN B

Secured by mortgages

Secured by pledges

Total amount of loans and advances

4,389,022,098
961,348,443
9,699,461,122

5,036,623,088
369,060,025
10,905,586,995

B BRURKES Loan impairment provisions (305,468,049) (284,394,266)
AR IKE ME Carrying value of loans and advances 9,393,993,073 10,621,192,729
7.5 BIEALEE 7.5 Overdue loan
2009-12-31
BEI X BHNXEIFE BENEZIE BHBEM £ Ait
EXIES (&15) (&3%F)
Overdue Overdue 91 days Overdue 1 year to Overdue Total
1day to to1year 3years (included) 3 years
90 days (included) above
RIEGT Guaranteed loans 5,130,753 27,164,920 10,251,678 - 42,547,351
B8 R4 TR Loan with collaterals 2,835,132 34,789,683 317,569,654 - 355,194,469
HA: St Secured by mortgages 2,835,132 34,789,683 317,569,654 - 355,194,469
Ait Total 7,965,885 61,954,603 327,821,332 - 397,741,820
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2008-12-31

HEX EHNXEIE BEEE3E B L &it
XSS (B15) (&3%F)

Overdue Overdue 91 days Overdue 1 Overdue Total

1day to to1year yearto 3years 3 years

90 days (included) (included) above
fRIEETEX Guaranteed loans - - 10,157,653 - 10,157,653
P 4B R Bk Loan with collaterals 86,752,463 215,013,567 41,691,060 - 343,457,090
Hep: #Esest Secured by mortgages 86,752,463 215,013,567 41,691,060 - 343,457,090
&1t Total 86,752,463 215,013,567 51,848,713 - 363,614,743

WEAR S EIEA S TR B HI1 Ra bl RO Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related
interests are overdue one day or above.
6 TR EREHER. 13) 7.6 Loan impairment provisions: (Note 5.13)
20094
Year 2009
BN HE Ait
Individual Collective Total
FEYIREN Openning balance as at 1 January 2009 150,172,147 134,222,119 284,394,266
AEITR Charge for the year 56,819,567 (15,399,805) 41,419,762
RENZE Write-off for the year (20,208,526) - (20,208,526)
LEXER Exchange rate difference (92,112) (45,341) (137,453)
FEFRREN Closing balance as at 31 December 2009 186,691,076 118,776,973 305,468,049
H2008%1 A2H (W 541#: H) 2008412 531 H 1L HjE
From 2 January 2008 (Business conversion date) to 31 December 2008

BN HE Ait
Individual Collective Total
HwIsE Openning balance as at 2 January 2008 39,325,150 119,305,449 158,630,599
KHEIIHR Charge for the period 112,939,142 21,902,371 134,841,513
TERER Exchange rate difference (2,092,145) (6,985,701) (9,077,846)
HRRREN Closing balance as at 31 December 2008 150,172,147 134,222,119 284,394,266
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8. At EERMA T~

(8) Available-for-sale investments

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
REEA: Bond investments::
FRRERITR IR Central bank bills 199,781,250 -
BURMERIT Bonds issued by policy banks 400,637,807 389,787,080
&it Total 600,419,057 389,787,080

HZEZ2009%F12831H, AABLFETFZE QMY ETH]  No bond invesment was pledged for repurchase agreements as

1%, at 31 December 2009.
9. ElE& T (9) Fixed assets
BEERETY BHIRE D REBNIZ & ait
20094 E Year 2009 Properties and Motor Office equipment Total
buildings vehicles and computers

R Cost or valuation:

200941 A1H At 1 January 2009 4,798,060 4,621,968 22,046,309 31,466,337
RGN Additions - 315,751 4,637,494 4,953,245
AELRIEREN TR, 12.2) Transfer from construction in progress - - 135,925 135,925

(Note 5.12-2)

KELE Disposals - - (286,691) (286,691)
2009E12831H At 31 December 2009 4,798,060 4,937,719 26,533,037 36,268,816
Zit#rIA: Accumulated depreciation

200941 A1H At 1 January 2009 1,204,008 3,955,904 8,147,679 13,307,591
AEITR Additions 80,102 162,310 4,061,157 4,293,569
AELE Disposals - - (155,537) (155,537)
2009F12H31H At 31 December 2009 1,284,110 4,108,214 12,053,299 17,445,623
EEAF4#E Net book value

2009412H31H At 31 December 2009 3,513,950 829,505 14,479,738 18,823,193
EEAFTRERES: (HER. 13) Impairment provision (Note 5.13)

20091 A1H At 1 January 2009 692,573 - - 692,573
AEFEH Disposals . - . _
2009E12H31H At 31 December 2009 692,573 - - 692,573
[&] E F2 =4 R Net carrying amount:

2009F12H31H At 31 December 2009 2,821,377 829,505 14,479,738 18,130,620
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B200841 B2A (LS A)E From 2 ..January 2008 (Business BERESH EHE hARBREEE &it

2008412531 H L Hijal conversion  date) to 31 December Properties and Motor  Office equipment Total
2008 buildings vehicles and computers

Eh: Cost or valuation:

200841 A2H At 2 January 2008 6,231,038 3,981,968 15,845,318 26,058,324

HVESREZKIFMER Transfer to long-term deferred expenses - - (2,655,999)  (2,655,999)

A HAHE AR Additions - 640,000 8,882,089 9,522,089

AEERZTREZENGHER. 12.2)  Transfer from construction in progress - - 1,771,843 1,771,843
(Note 5.12-2)

AR E Disposals (1,432,978) - (1,796,942) (8,229,920)

2008 12H831H At 31 December 2008 4,798,060 4,621,968 22,046,309 31,466,337

Fit#rIA: Accumulated depreciation

200841 A2H At 2 January 2008 1,439,164 3,677,929 6,354,318 11,471,411

HYVEDRZEKIFMRER Transfer to long-term deferred expenses - - (232,941) (232,941)

AHRITR Additions 89,655 277,975 3,607,930 3,975,560

AL E Disposals (324,811) - (1,581,628)  (1,906,439)

20084E12H831H At 31 December 2008 1,204,008 3,955,904 8,147,679 13,307,591

EIEAF#E Net book value

2008%12H31H At 31 December 2008 3,594,052 666,064 13,898,630 18,158,746

BERFREEZEHTER. 13) Impairment provision (Note 5.13)

200841 A2H At 2 January 2008 1,083,165 - - 1,083,165

AEAAEH Disposals (390,592) - - (390,592)

200812H31H At 31 December 2008 692,573 - - 692,573

B E R RE Net carrying amount:

200812H31H At 31 December 2008 2,901,479 666,064 13,898,630 17,466,173

F200912831H,

CiR BTN A4k ELE B E 7 = BAx

As at 31 December 2009, details of fixed assets which were fully

EEUT: depreciated but still in use are as follows:
BE. B B E I RIS & &it
Properties and Motor Office equipment Total
buildings vehicles and computers
MR E Original cost - 3,982,031 4,437,116 8,419,147
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10. TR &=

(10) Intangible assets

H20085%1 A2H (& E)E

RiFizE 20094 & 200841231 H L HAid)
Software Yoar2009 oo care)to.31 becombor 2008
BAf: Cost or valuation:
F/ BRI REN Opening balance 24,644,219 -
FE/FRBE Additions 1,478,931 12,775,168
ERIBEANETR. 12.2) (T,:‘i:zfzr I;Og Construction In Progress 6,207,330 -
KHEIF SR RN (ET. 12.1) (Tr:z?:f;?:; long-term deferred expenses - 11,869,051
FER/BPRFE Closing balance 32,330,480 24,644,219
RITHEH: Accumulated amortisation:
F/ AR KRB Opening balance 1,505,235 -
A/ AR Additions 2,805,793 1,505,235
FEFR/ERREN Closing balance 4,311,028 1,505,235
TR = E Net carrying amount:
FER/BIARRE Closing balance 28,019,452 23,138,984
1. BIEFFBRE=/(5118) (11) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

20094 & Year 2009
BBIE FTAS R F 7=/(F 1) EYERT  FETARE FAEEETA FERFH

FEENE

Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Credited/ Credited/
1/1/2009 (charged) to (Charged) 31/12/2009

profit and loss to equity

WRIRKIER Loan impairment provision 43,834,599 831,917 - 44,666,516
EEARREES Fixed asset impairment provison 173,143 - - 173,143
FF o2k Pre-operating expense 292,785 (288,531) - 4,254
BIEA IR Depreciation of the fixed asset 253,446 (20,488) - 232,958
A4k S TR RS rec e profl o s on el 5050813 - (2802198 2,257,115
TTEEMIAENAMETE Changes in fair value of Derivatives 1,001,104 (538,655) - 462,449
AN ERIEE Revaluation of option - (1,755,883) - (1,755,883)
FERII R Non-accrued interest 3,144,494 4,479,715 - 7,624,209
ZETRE Operating lease 156,913 20,691 - 177,604
TIRMITIARES Payroll payable - 4,065,674 - 4,065,674
N L E SR\ sl HE4E S o -

gé/;\;gﬁz;iﬁlig)\éﬁﬁmm ac:saer;geai :‘Zi:a\ll;l\;a;lﬁgufglgnha;::flilt or loss (68,380) 68,380 i
&it Total 53,847,417 6,862,820 (2,802,198) 57,908,039
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BH2008%1 H2H (A 11#: H)Z2008412 531 H LG

From 2 January 2008 (Business conversion date) to 31
December 2008

I AR R AT PR/ (T 1) BT  AHITARE FHEEITA HR KT
&N
Deferred tax assets/liabilities Credited/ Credited/
2/1/2008 (charged) to (Charged) 31/12/2008
profit and loss to equity
WHRKER Loan impairment provision 8,256,719 35,577,880 - 43,834,599
EE AR EES Fixed assets impairment provision 270,791 (97,648) - 173,143
FF 1123 Pre-operating expense 391,680 (98,895) - 292,785
[E & &4 IH Depreciation of the fixed asset 152,225 101,221 - 253,446
. T 4E S Unrealised profit or loss on the available-for-
AT S A ook SIS eeap 180,789 . 4878524  5059,313
sale financial assets
TESMIT AN AMETE Changes in fair value of Derivatives 780,327 220,777 - 1,001,104
ERIITFI B Non-accrued interest 1,648,480 1,496,014 - 3,144,494
Al DU EFEERRAN SR Loss carry forward 154,480 (154,480) - -
ZEEE Operating lease 136,221 20,692 - 156,913
P ETT 2 B Taiit N S iifRE Changes in fair value of financial instruments (68,380) (68,380)
&R A R NESZS) at fair value through profit or loss ' '
&it Total 11,971,712 36,997,181 4,878,524 53,847,417
12. & = (12) Other assets
Bt E
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
Notes
KEIFMZE B Long-term deferred enpenses 121 17,449,750 16,550,631
FETRE Construction in process 12.2 1,364,471 143,931
HoAth ST 3R Other receivables 12.3 22,572,514 11,122,963
&t Total 41,386,735 27,817,525
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121 KESHMER

12.1 Long-term deferred expenses

HAANEERFHRZH THES ait
2009 & Year 2009 Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
FHIREN Opening balance 12,263,300 4,287,331 16,550,631
AFEE Additions 4,808,646 - 4,808,646
AEEETREN HHER. 12.2) Transfer from construction in progress 477,016 - 477,016
(Note 5.12.2)

AELE Disposals (434,305) - (434,305)
PN Amortisation (3,753,597) (198,641) (3,952,238)
FEFRREN Closing balance 13,361,060 4,088,690 17,449,750
Fhn#E BAEERZN THER ait

H20084%E1 2 (M E1#H)E  From 2 January 2008 (Business conversion R
2008412731 H LL#iE) date) to 31 December 2008 Pre-operating Leasehold Rental fee Total

expenses improvement
BRI Opening balance 49,418,637 3,839,670 4,485,971 57,744,278
BYEER=EDL Reclassification of fixed assets - 2,423,058 - 2,423,058
AHAE AN Additions - 1,140,818 - 1,140,818
AEATER T2 A (MHEX 12.2)  Transfer from construction in progress - 8,798,917 - 8,798,917

(Note 5.12.2)
KNI AFEHET. 10)  Transfer to intangible assets (Note 5.10) (11,869,051) - - (11,869,051)
AHLE Disposals - (90,865) - (90,865)
AHEAPESY Amortisation (37,549,586) (3,848,298)  (198,640)  (41,596,524)
B REN Closing balance - 12,263,300 4,287,331 16,550,631
122 EETHE 12.2 Construction in progress
20094 & H2008%1 A2H (L& H)E
2008£E12H31H LA
Year 2009 From 2 January 2008 (Business
conversion date) to 31 December 2008
F/HRHREN Opening balance 143,931 4,690,873
AF/HRE M Additions 8,040,811 6,023,818
BEANBER (HER. 9) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 5.9) (135,925) (1,771,843)
BANLERR (HER. 10) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 5.10) (6,207,330) -
BNKEGFRSER TR, 12.1) Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (477,016) (8,798,917)
(Note 5.12.1)

FER/MAREE Net closing balance 1,364,471 143,931
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12.3 Efth M sk 12.3 Other receivables

T % Aging 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
1B Within 1 year 17,086,954 8,630,289
1-24F 1-2 years 3,460,329 2,280,693
2-3% 2-3 years 1,831,525 700
3EPLE More than 3 years 193,706 211,281
&1t Total 22,572,514 11,122,963

AN TEREE X EA S W Hr] BUAZEHIT M, A8 The management of the Bank has assessed the recovery of
LEITRAFREES, other receivables on a regular basis and made the judgement
that there is no need to provide bad debts provision for the

balance as at 31 December 2009.

13. =R EES (13) Provision for impairment losses
20094 & Year 2009 EMRE AEHRS i3 CEER ERFH
Opening Accrual Write-off Exchange rate Closing
balance difference balance
WEREEEIHTE. 7.6) Provision for loans (Note 5. 7-6) 284,394,266 41,419,762 (20,208,526) (137,453) 305,468,049
BEABEEZEHTER. 9 Provision for fixed assets (Note 5. 9) 692,573 - - - 692,573
&1t Total 285,086,839 41,419,762 (20,208,526) (137,453) 306,160,622
B2008&E1 20 (W &10#:H)  From 2 January 2008 (Business Ho&Em  KEITHREH 4 LEER R ST
ZE2008F12H31H 1L conversion date) to 31 December
2008 Opening Accrual Write-off Exchange rate Closing
balance difference balance
BEILESEETER. 7.6) Provision for loans (Note 5. 7-6) 158,630,599 134,841,513 - (9,077,846) 284,394,266
B EAFBEEEZMER. 9)  Provision for fixed assets (Note 5.9) 1,083,165 - (390,592) - 692,573
&1t Total 159,713,764 134,841,513 (390,592) (9,077,846) 285,086,839
14. B B EH B S EER S In (14) Due to banks and other financial institutions
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
EBRRITRIF Due to domestic banks - 50,000,000
EANIERAT @ BN F AL Due to other domestic financial institutions 736,201 30,350,448
BEIMRATR L FHT Due to foreign banks 54,832,613 54,558,117
&1t Total 55,668,814 134,908,565
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15. FARBAAE

(15) Placements from financial institutions

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
BRRITENAFAN LG A Placements from domestic banks 430,000,000 2,119,954,540
FEAMBATRD AR N BN Placements from foreign banks 4,000,717,354 6,624,502,096

a3t Total 4,430,717,354 8,744,456,636
16. IRYTTFESR (16) Customer deposits

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
BT Current deposits:
NEEF Corporation 2,649,820,481 2,298,019,613
TAER Individual 77,254,675 21,555,363
N Sub-total 2,727,075,156 2,319,574,976
TEHER Time deposits:
NEEF Corporation 3,622,332,642 2,746,143,324
NI Individual 291,202,732 151,363,238
INT Sub-total 3,913,5635,374 2,897,506,562
&t Total 6,640,610,530 5,217,081,538

BEREFRTEREM T REOREIUIARMT834,613,5537T,
ELREMEGERS, AT A LEFAARTS34,613,653
THTESMIR, TEAREHHN. BRI, FEAN
RAMCHR. ZETESH T AEMINEASEERRERY]
BKE, Ht, ARAREESFHDF. HARNESITALT
FEMTARTF.

17. R fTER TERE

Customer deposits include wealth management products
amounting to RMB 834,613,553, and the notional amount of the
derivatives embedded in the structured deposit contracts above
is RMB834,613,553. Such derivatives, mainly equity options,
commodity options, interest rate options and foreign exchange
options, are considered not closely related to the host contract.
Consequently, the Bank seperates them from deposits and the
fair value is recorded in derivatives.

(17) Payroll payables

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
T&. 4. ZMEFAME Salary, bonus,subsidy and allowance 14,469,838 9,114,155
M SRGER MAEE AR Social insurance and Housing Fund 1,777,516 199,708
TITBZHMIMTAFESE Labour union expenditure and staff education 15,342 13,780
it Total 16,262,696 9,327,643

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED
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18. N 3Z Fi ¥k (18) Tax payable

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
Bl B R BTN Business tax and surcharges 5,554,861 7,374,930
A B Corporate income tax 4,879,203 26,183,376
HAtb Others 17,341,957 20,657,715
a1t Total 27,776,021 54,216,021

FRAAFETERRERRIITMOT:

B — NAKABIS %I A E A

A ETRR — RIE200841 A1 HEHEITH (bW ASHR
%Y AFTER B 20084 IR N AN B TS HHI25 %11 4,
ARR AR RTINS B K H26%.

KM NTER - AR AN RERNFE, BEARER
ERHN APTSR.

19. R fHFI2

The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the
respective tax rates for the current financial year are as follows:

Business tax - The Bank is subjected to a business tax rate of 5%.

Corporate income tax - In accordance with the PRC Enterprise
Income Taxation Law, which has been implemented since 1st
January 2008, both domestic and foreign enterprises are
subjected to a corporate tax rate of 25%. The corporate income
tax rate adopted by the Bank for its RMB and foreign currency
business has been amended to 25% since 1st January 2008.

Withholding Individual Income tax - In accordance with the
relevant tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold
individual income tax on salaries paid to its employees.

(19) Interest payables

2009-12-31 2008-12-31

TFRRATH R Interest payable arising from customer deposits 9,707,842 37,067,998

=)\ 5 E At & R A LA R & Interest payable to banks or other financial institutions 1,760,250 11,893,615

it Total 11,468,092 48,961,613
20. Hth f f5% (20) Other liabilities

2009-12-31 2008-12-31

REELEERM Settlement and clearing 4,886,835 2,754,761

NATTRG RS R IT system service fee 1,068,649 17,316,594

EAth Others 12,804,512 17,466,324

it Total 18,759,996 37,537,679
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21, SLE A

(21) Paid-up capital

SE N SRR A Paid-up capital
20094 % 200851 A 2H (M 5% H) £2008F12 531 HIEHi A
Year 2009 and From 2 January 2008 (Business conversion date) to 31 December 2008
ZHEART %
RMB equivalent %
KERITERAA United Overseas Bank Limited 3,000,000,000 100

ERRUBRAEESIHTITESHRIE, HEETRRAR
H. EFHALERITERATDALSHEANITEEART
1,198,680,917.655t, HEFEXTTEERENEER S
HAITENAEEART,801,419,082.357T -

22. RERTR

The paid-up capital was verified by the Certified Public
Accountants with capital verification. RMB equivalent amounting
1,198,580,917.65 was injected by United Overseas Bank Limited,
in cash, and the others was transferred from operating capital of
former branches in Mainland China.

(22) Capital reserves

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
A ESMAT A ARMELE) Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (9,028,458) (20,237,251)
Frisfis/mm Income tax impact recognised directly in equity 2,257,115 5,059,313
(6,771,343) (15,177,938)

23. BT (23) Surplus reserves
EYIRE AEEE AEFD FERKE
Opeing balance Increase Decrease Ending balance
EEBRNT Statutory surplus reserve 7,917,626 - 7,917,626

RIBARNENALNBERIME, HE2010E3824HEES
F AN TR EFER10%RECEE RS AR E. FZEES
PNIRETTEN AR N BFMARS0% A LRI, AIAEIREL

FRAAERDEZERRAREF, ATRIEEERARE.
i, ERAERAMEA AT IRAAEIFEE S R MR
Ko MEARNTDEEZIWHRIN, AFEETRIIEER

N

According to the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Bank’s Articles of Association, accompanied with
resolution passed by the board of directors on 24 March 2010,
the Bank has appropriated 10% of its profit to the statutory
surplus reserve. The Bank should appropriate until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of its registered capital or above.

After the statutory surplus reserve been appropriated, the Bank
may appropriate discretionary surplus reserve. Discretionary
surplus reserve can be used to compensate for the accumulated
losses of previous years or convert to capital upon approval. It
has been determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank that
no discretionary surplus reserve is appropriated this year.
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24, — R &

AN BRI £[2005]495 3L (&t RMESREEE D
5 HIAMEMNEEFDE A IR RN _EANEF XS A PR AR RE
1%L BT —MUES, (EAFIEDEAAIE. A2 ERIE2010
FIA2UHMESTSRIN, BE—BERIT ARM132,103,606
JCo FT2009F12A831H, ARBAMN—HRESRAMAART
132,103,60670, CIREIARAB X F=FERREHI %

(24) General reserves

According to the regulation CaiKuai [2005] No. 49 “Circular on
Impairment Loss on Loans” issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
Bank is required to set aside a general provision of at least 1% of
its total risk weighted assets at year end from net profit and the
general reserve shall form part of the Shareholders’ equity. With
the approval of the Board of Directors on 24 March 2010, general
reserve amounting to RMB 132,103,606 is set aside in 2009,
which reaches 1% of the Bank’s total risk weighted assets as at
31 December 2009.

ERET A SN KERD FERRM

1/1/2009 Increase Decrease 31/12/2009

— RN B General reserves 132,103,606 - 132,103,606
25. K4 ELFE (25) Retained Earnings

20094 E H2008%&E1 A2 (W%

Y1 H)ZE 20084128

31HLEHAE

Year 2009 From 2 January

2008 (Business

conversion date) to

31 December 2008

EFEFER/ AR AR EFE Closing balance of retained earnings at last year/period end 290,754,766 300,801,076

EFLE/(SR) Net profit/(loss) for the year/period 79,176,268 (10,046,310)

B REVEERRATR Appropriations to statutory surplus reserves 7,917,626 -

s IRE RN Appropriations to general reserves 132,103,606 -

FR/MPRK S BECFE Closing balance of retained earnings 229,909,802 290,754,766

RIE (PEARKMERRE) RARFHARER, KAQH
FRE) mEMBRSHRE; (2 MANABTEESHR; (3) 18]
EEERARE, @ RE—ESE; O)RNIERERLMRE
&, AINFRs BN RARAR. —RERRETESHIR
BULBIER B XENMIIEIR T, HARAEERIRE.

DEFEANRERARRAEERRE, FSEEEER. UFH
WK EAE RHRATEE
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According to the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Bank’s Articles of Association, the profit of the
Bank can only be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfilling all
tax responsibilities, (2) compensating any accumulated losses,
(8) making appropriation to statutory surplus reserve, (4) making
appropriation to the general reserve, (5) making appropriation to
the discretionary surplus reserve. The appropriation ratios of the
general reserve and surplus reserves are decided by the Bank’s
Board of Directors in compliance with the relevant regulations.

The profit distribution is decided by the Bank’s Board of
Directors, with reference to the operation performance, financial
positions, and other relevant factors.



26. FISHWAN

(26) Net interest income

Year 2009 conversI:J(l:"\n:jazti;ﬁtnciJ g?gggzr:l?):?lgggz
FEWN: Interest income:
TFERENL Due from banks and other financial institutions 5,085,545 70,502,601
TFEH R RERIT Due from central banks 11,301,296 4,946,047
RGN ER Loans and advances to customers 460,542,702 652,563,019
BRERA Bond investments 10,906,803 17,820,201
REHE M EA Placement with banks and other financial institutions and others 22,692,941 139,227,000
Ay Subtotal 510,529,287 885,058,868
FIESZH: Interest expense:
ENIZEyin Due to banks and other financial institutions 1,582,445 4,546,324
ISENEEE Customer deposits 86,977,007 75,508,832
IR & R EHAM Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 48,885,861 324,148,470
NF Subtotal 137,445,313 404,203,626
F BN Net interest income 373,083,974 480,855,242

27. FEHERBEHBAN

(27) Net fees and commission income

BH200851 A2H (L EN#% A)E

20004 2008412531 A 1L 8 8]

Year 2009 conversion date 1o 31 December 2008
FER MBSV Fees and commission income:
HEEFEFEE Settlement and clearing fees 4,834,304 4,318,397
RIS F L% Agency brokerage fees 927,896 1,336,592
FEAREFERAS Credit commitment fees 234,607 901,764
ASEEAEEEN N Credit related income 10,928,077 24,033,814
HAt Others 2,112,750 2,171,410
NF Subtotal 19,037,634 32,761,977
FaR e Fees and commission expense:
FEHBRTH Fee expenses 3,302,914 4,308,777
/INT Subtotal 3,302,914 4,308,777
FEBMAEEWN  Net fees and commission income 15,734,720 28,453,200
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28. A (MK Wi

(28) Investment (loss)/income

E200841 A28 (&% H)

20092 F2008412/331 F L #1/d

From 2 January 2008 (Business

Year 2009 conversion date) to 31 December 2008

AR SMEFAHESE AR SRR Gain/(Loss) on disposal of held for trading bond investments (2,097,728) 703,115
AMEHERERAHE 2 RE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale bond investment 12,946 -
ait Total (2,084,782) 703,115

29. R AMHEZ IR I

(29) Gains or losses from changes in fair values

B200841F2H (IS5 H)E

20094 & 2008412831 HIL B
Year 2009 conversion date) o 31 December 2008
ARG BHMEFEENE AT Held for trading financial assets (273,520) 273,520
TEEBmITA Derivative financial instruments 9,178,151 (1,384,010)
Eft Others 1,368,645 -
&3t Total 10,273,276 (1,110,490)

30. B K EEE (30) General and administrative expenses
Year 2009 conversion date) o 31 December 2008

MIHMA: Staff costs:

TARRE Salaries and bonuses 111,107,344 95,253,223
EEEA RO Defined contribution schemes 14,701,847 10,665,977
HAER T2 A Other employee benefits 6,061,639 6,352,842
T Subtotal 131,870,830 112,272,042
i ISE Depreciation 4,293,569 3,975,560
B TR Amortisation 6,758,031 5,552,173
5535 A Other operating expenses 79,890,842 86,496,428
it Total 222,813,272 208,296,203
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31. AFERERK

(31) Impairment losses

B200851 A2H (L FN#% A)E

20005 2008412531 H L i)

From 2 January 2008 (Business

Year 2009 conversion date) to 31 December 2008

FRORERE Impairment losses for loans 41,419,762 134,841,513

32. 5PN

(32) Non-operating income

20094 B200841 820 (L &% A)E

2008412 H31HLHiE

Year 2009 convers'?;%n:j:t:)ar; g:y[?ggegn(wiﬁl;ggz

BlE A EFIF Gain from the disposal of fixed assets - 7,270
INRENRITHIMANIEGET) Subsidy for opening foreign-funded bank (Note 1) 6,000,000 8,000,000
Hit Others 2,060,323 163,341
&it Total 8,060,323 8,170,611

A1 RIELETUMBE (RTFFMREARITELATRE
BETESRATEL) BME, RARRS—REF I,
IZAMERRLE B 73 SF IR BN

33. gAlSh X

According to the policy “supplementary to the policy of
supporting the development of foreign-funded banks in
Shanghai” issued by Shanghai Financical Bureau, the Bank gets
a one-off start-up subsidy, which are obtained in proportion on
yearly basis.

(33) Non-operating expense

200851 A2A (L& A)E

2009% /2 2008412831 B 1L #id]

From 2 January 2008 (Business

Year 2009 conversion date) to 31 December 2008

BEA PR ER K Loss on the disposal of fixed assets 193,255 -
Hits Others 972,284 1,242,820
&It Total 1,165,539 1,242,820

34. k%A

(34) Income tax expenses

H2008%1 A2 (&% E)E

20094 & 2008%12 831 H (- i)

From 2 January 2008 (Business

Year 2009 conversion date) to 31 December 2008

LHIF SR Income tax expenses for the current year/period 32,507,335 34,861,479
EBIEFTSHL Deferred income tax expenses (6,862,820) (36,997,181)
&t Total 25,644,515 (2,185,702)
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Fre e F S FE SRR RN T

The reconciliation of income tax expense to profit before tax is as

follows:
Year 2009 conversion date) o 31 December 2008
BEEIRIE Profit before tax 104,820,783 (12,182,012)
HOREMR25%ITEHMI  Tax charge on a tax rate at 25% 26,205,196 (3,045,508)
SF PARTHA 8] 24 HARS T RO Adjustment in respect of prior periods (600,840) 589,468
RN RO R ER Non-deductible items 40,159 320,333
FrisRi#: A Income tax expenses 25,644,515 (2,135,702)
35. & RMEENY (35) Cash and cash equivalent
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
e Cash 5,367,965 5,000,602
NEEN: Cash equivalent:

FERFE = A ANAS: With original maturity less than three months:
eI/l -Due from banks and other financial institutions 617,570,981 2,334,515,149
-REAS -Placements with banks and other financial institutions 1,705,866,630 1,493,254,496

TR LERAT HAR RN
N

&it

Other Deposits with central banks-General deposit reserve

Subtotal

Total

809,943,689
3,133,381,300
3,138,749,265

816,798,201
4,644,567,846
4,649,568,448

36. Hitt &2 & s

(36) Other comprehensive income

20094 &

20081 A2 (L E#%A)E

2008512831 H 1L Hi[E
From 2 January 2008 (Business
Year 2009 conversion date) to 31 December 2008
_ Net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
A ESRAT AN ED o o0 e Tarvaue oravalabierior 11,208,793 (19,514,005)
financial assets
FrfsHissm Income tax impact recognised directly in equity (2,802,198) 4,878,524
it Total 8,406,595 (14,635,571)
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7N TEMRE
ANEIRBARMEIMUSSEHITEEEE, XTI
MR S HRE R EER . FIHEE AR AT
SARMWSE; M¥FATIHBFHINLS TR -5 BRR
LEARMUSFIINTWESFE R EMKNRLES, BEE
AR EMEHRERIITLZIHEARTMESRERBEHT
D F BN R 3 N B B3R S p R ZE R 93 Bt A
NEIWEiRET. AR EIRARTAINT W2 5145 10 5%
eI

6. Segment Information

The Bank monitors its daily business operation according to
RMB business and foreign currency business separately.
Operating expenses and depreciation charge etc, which directly
attribute to such business is allocated to that business directly.
Common operating expenses, are allocated between the RMB
book and foreign currency book in accordance with the
proportion of total interest income. Interest income and interest
expense are recorded separately in accordance to the currency.
Segment information of the Bank’s RMB business and foreign
currency business is as follows:

2009412H31H

31 December 2009

ARMAE Shimll &it
RMB Business  Foreign Currency Business Total

B Assets:
W& N FF A LRI TR Cash and balances with central banks 1,477,129,911 28,088,240 1,505,218,151
TEHRUE) W kIR Due from banks and other financial institutions 12,129,680 748,833,501 760,963,181
FHAE Placements with financial institutions 495,000,000 1,634,647,393 2,129,647,393
T EmAErT Derivative financial assets 3,825,138 8,644,299 12,469,437
Vel Interest receivables 19,321,058 11,166,232 30,487,290
RIS Loans and advances to customers 5,180,141,374 4,213,851,699 9,393,993,073
AHHESA Available-for-sale investment 199,781,250 400,637,807 600,419,057
[ A Fixed assets - 18,130,620 18,130,620
TR Intangible assets - 28,019,452 28,019,452
BIEFTIS R AT Deferred tax assets 4,310,261 53,597,778 57,908,039
HAd Other assets 5,501,651 35,885,084 41,386,735
ArERIT Total assets 7,397,140,323 7,181,502,105 14,678,642,428

B Ml 7 Fo At & B 77 BT

Liabilities:

Due to banks and other financial institutions

wNFEE Placements from financial institutions
TSR AR Derivative financial liabilities
g Customer deposits

SLATER T 37 Ef Payroll payables

RIZZ R %% Tax payables

RIATHIE Interest payables

Hit s Other liabilities

AlGsNas

Total liabilities

736,201 54,832,613 55,568,814
430,000,000 4,000,717,354 4,430,717,354
4,354,913 9,964,321 14,319,234
5,546,343,036 1,094,267,494 6,640,610,530
- 16,262,696 16,262,696

10,285,275 17,490,746 27,776,021
10,086,422 1,381,670 11,468,092
(340,567) 19,100,563 18,759,996

6,001,465,280

5,214,017,457

11,215,482,737
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2009412831H
31 December 2009

ARTWE Sl Ait

RMB Business  Foreign Currency Business Total
FrE&EN&E Equity :
SRYFE A Paid-up capital 1,160,051,270 1,839,948,730 3,000,000,000
NN Capital reserves (6,509) (6,764,834) (6,771,343)
BRNA Surplus reserves 4,084,311 3,833,315 7,917,626
— RIS & General reserves 59,708,835 72,394,771 132,103,606
FKOEEFE Retained earnings 171,837,136 58,072,666 229,909,802
EBEENGEET Total equity 1,395,675,043 1,967,484,648 3,363,159,691
AEEFIEENEET Total liabilities and equity 7,397,140,323 7,181,502,105 14,578,642,428

20084£12831H
31 December 2008
ARMLE Shdk s &it

RMB Business Foreign Currency Business Total
i Assets
W TR RARITRRIN Cash and balances with central banks 1,426,470,878 19,175,947 1,445,646,825
FHE I Due from banks and other financial institutions 920,830 2,340,428,919 2,341,349,749
RS Placements with financial institutions 300,000,000 2,121,199,483 2,421,199,483
Li@%ﬁ{ﬁ{ﬁi+§%ﬁ§iﬁi+A% Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 74,377,593 - 74,377,593
PRme e
TSR Derivative financial assets - 8,620,730 8,620,730
SR S Interest receivables 42,073,038 68,174,341 110,247,379
RIS Loans and advances to customers 5,328,709,804 5,292,482 925 10,621,192,729
AjfEHE SR AR Available-for-sale investment - 389,787,080 389,787,080
& E A Fixed assets - 17,466,173 17,466,173
b7 Intangible assets - 23,138,984 23,138,984
BIEFTIS R A Deferred tax assets 986,092 52,861,325 53,847,417
Hi Other assets (607,464,547) 635,282,072 27,817,525
BFERIT Total assets 6,566,073,688 10,968,617,979 17,534,691,667
R Liabilities
[3) Mi Rz Eo At & B AL A 73 LRI Due to banks and other financial institutions 50,000,000 84,908,565 134,908,565
WAL E Placements from financial institutions 580,000,000 8,164,456,636 8,744,456,636
TSR AR Derivative financial liabilities - 12,625,144 12,625,144
USEgEE Customer deposits 4,789,792,916 427,288,622 5,217,081,538
RIATER T2 B Payroll payables - 9,327,643 9,327,643
IVETinE Tax payables 27,796,884 26,419,137 54,216,021
RLATF S Interest payables 34,412,833 14,548,780 48,961,613
Efh Other liabilities 232,615 37,305,064 37,537,679
ARt Total liabilities 5,482,235,248 8,776,879,591 14,259,114,839
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2008412H31H

31 December 2008

ARTWE Sl Ait
RMB Business  Foreign Currency Business Total
FrE&EN &= Equity
SRR HEA Paid-up capital 889,051,270 2,110,948,730 3,000,000,000
BARATR Capital reserves - (15,177,938) (15,177,938)
BRATR Surplus reserves - - _
— R IXUB o General reserves - . B}
ROBLFIE Retained earnings 194,787,170 95,967,596 290,754,766
Fre&ENaalt Total equity 1,0883,838,440 2,191,738,388 3,275,576,828
HERATAEN G AT Total liabilities and equity 6,566,073,688 10,968,617,979 17,534,691,667
20094
Year 2009
ARMAE Sl ait
RMB Business  Foreign Currency Business Total
—. Big 1. Operating income
FEWN Interest income 332,361,229 178,168,058 510,529,287
FEZH Interest expenses (98,030,544) (39,414,769) (137,445,313)
AIISVET PN Net interest income 234,330,685 138,753,289 373,083,974
FERTMSWN Fee and commission income 8,221,683 10,815,951 19,037,634
FaRnEeIH Fee and commission expense (2,186,805) (1,116,109) (3,302,914)
FER M FRN Net fee and commission income 6,034,878 9,699,842 15,734,720
RS EIES Investment loss (2,084,782) - (2,084,782)
NRMETEIRE Gain/loss on changes of fair value 638,938 9,634,338 10,273,276
LR Gain/loss on foreign exchange rate - (6,159,394) (6,159,394)
HAp Al SZWN/(FZH) Other operating income/expense 128,559 (3,657,583) (3,529,024)
B g NEIT Total operating income 239,048,278 148,270,492 387,318,770
= 2. Operating expenses
BV 4 N BT Business tax and surcharges (16,374,515) (8,785,222) (25,159,737)
NIE=YSE=SEE General and administrative expenses (141,065,518) (81,747,754) (222,813,272)
AR ER L Impairment losses (25,742,248) (15,677,514) (41,419,762)
Bl ZHEAT Total operating expenses (183,182,281) (106,210,490) (289,392,771)
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20094

Year 2009

ARME Sl ait

RMB Business  Foreign Currency Business Total

=. BlFE 3. Operating profit 55,865,997 42,060,002 97,925,999
= ZIN PN Add: Non-operating income 2,320,103 5,740,220 8,060,323
B BN E Less: Non-operating expenses (677,924) (487,615) (1,165,539)
M. FE S 4. Profit before tax 57,508,176 47,312,607 104,820,783
B TSR A Less: Income tax expenses (16,665,064) (8,979,451) (25,644,515)
F. EFE 5. Net profit 40,843,112 38,333,156 79,176,268
N, HibEE W 6. Other comprehensive income (6,509) 8,413,104 8,406,595
. FEKRRZE 7. Total comprehensive income 40,836,603 46,746,260 87,582,863

H2008%1 A2H (A &11#: H)Z2008512 531 H 1L HilE

From 2 January 2008 (Business conversion date) to 31 December 2008

ARMLE Sk & ait
RMB Business  Foreign Currency Business Total
—. BN 1. Operating income
F BRI Interest income 367,390,804 517,668,064 885,058,868
FEZH Interest expenses (119,754,518) (284,449,108) (404,203,626)
IISVEEL N Net interest income 247,636,286 233,218,956 480,855,242
FEBRNME LN Fee and commission income 17,949,789 14,812,188 32,761,977
FEHENAeIE Fee and commission expense (1,779,830) (2,528,947) (4,308,777)
FER M AR Net fee and commission income 16,169,959 12,283,241 28,453,200
B W= Investment income 703,115 - 703,115
NARMEZIRE Gain/loss on changes of fair value 273,520 (1,384,010) (1,110,490)
LR Gain/loss on foreign exchange rate - (153,043,292) (153,043,292)
Bl g AT Total operating income 264,782,880 91,074,895 355,857,775
Z. BlEH 2. Operating expenses
B2 M BN Business tax and surcharges (18,413,498) (13,416,364) (31,829,862)
WK EIRS General and administrative expenses (102,861,138) (105,435,065) (208,296,203)
SAVR A LS Impairment losses (15,842,295) (118,999,218) (134,841,513)
ElZHET Operating expenses total (137,116,931) (237,850,647) (374,967,578)
=. BUFE (51) 3. Operating profit 127,665,949 (146,775,752) (19,109,803)
=X ZIN PN Add: Non-operating income 2,371,007 5,799,604 8,170,611
B BN Less: Non-operating expenses (854,047) (388,773) (1,242,820)
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B2008%1 A2H (Al 11#: H) 22008512 531 H 1L H[E)

From 2 January 2008 (Business conversion date) to 31 December 2008

ARME vl Ait

RMB Business  Foreign Currency Business Total

M. FE/(SIR) 25 4. Profit before tax 129,182,909 (141,364,921) (12,182,012)
W FTERiER A Less: Income tax expenses (31,389,594) 33,525,296 2,135,702
F. AFIEA(SR) 5. Net profit/loss 97,793,315 (107,839,625) (10,046,310)
N HEE W 6. Other comprehensive income - (14,635,571) (14,635,571)
t. FEWREDE 7. Total comprehensive income 97,793,315 (122,475,196) (24,681,881)

. RigRBBE I

1. A& &iE

BARMZHKIE
KNFF2009F12 31 B H LERAARAIE,

SEMHEERE
RRRMEAABT EHEAEIT T EEMRENAAHEHEE
EMAEAR. TERASAGRA, QAN THES
HANRREEA:

7. Commitments and contingent liabilities
(1) Commitments

Capital commitments
The Bank has no material capital commitments as at
31 December 2009.

Operating lease commitments

The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease
arrangements. The total future minimum payments in respect of
non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date are
as follows:

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
—FPAE—F) Within 1 year 29,156,576 24,034,730
—FPEZFUREZF) 110 2 years 11,407,936 16,563,270
“EPE=FUARE =S 2 to 3 years 8,805,033 1,874,999
=FEpE After 3 years 9,447,247 574,250
A1t Total 58,816,792 43,047,249
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2. FERAIE

(2) Credit commitments

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
5BRER: Financial guarantee contracts:
RATA LR Bank acceptance 4,000,000 -
{RERZRIN Letter of guarantee 21,899,434 109,469,700
# REMIE Standby credit letter 14,748,912 8,201,520
B FHER S Letter credit - 887,583
FFHEAE FIE Letters of credit issued 88,348,549 92,050,458
/T Sub-total 128,996,895 210,609,261
AAHE R R RORIA | Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:
REIEFATE1F LA Within one year - 15,153,372
FEHHEIES M E More than one year 553,421,799 582,927,981
Ny Sub-total 558,421,799 598,081,353
&1t Total 682,418,694 808,690,614
SRR E XU A & 80 Weighted credit risk of credit commitments 302,912,460 366,568,650

MEHERERAERERIER, —BEEFRRRESZHEAZITH
BREERSHBEITATE SN, RITFETERSRI.

RYPFEZ AN AMEHERF AT P RHELOEHTZH
BIAGE. WRAE — MM B BRI LS, AT REAE 2 HY
HILEET MERAENRRAESETHAN—EATK
T @AM o

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee,
require the Bank to be obliged to fulfill the customers’

responsibility as guarantor in case that the customers fail to
repay the contracted amount or fail to fulfill their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that the
Bank may not need to fulfill such commitment on the maturity
date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments does not
necessarily represent the future expected cash outflow.

3. 2Rl E (3) Entrusted Business

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
ERTFH Entrusted deposits - 1,500,000,000
TR Entrusted loans - 1,500,000,000

EREHREFZEFETAABDNRI, NBTREFEZER
EHE=ZAEAMRIR . REHEXHERNEBFERAK
?Eo

4. /M &

BEEEEN, T2000FK, &NABBKRMEL/2 FRAIERE
BB REIN, HLEAMmEE RE.
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Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

(4) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2009, according to the management there
was no others contingent liabilities except that those have been
disclosed in Note 7. 2.



I\ BEREE
AREXARBREBIEARALEWSHEBENEHALE
Bk, AENTAFNERERAEELURNEKR. AARR
FEENBRR T HERELSBNERIIN, BBRRITAES
REZLENAATERFERRNERAN. WFLFRER
TUMEIRRIRERFAL, AN FRRIEA B R ARLEM.

BIDARBIFERA. BEAXR. BRAMMASEFE. M
BAABRE—RES.

KARREHVETEREBEEENE(TERTI EEEIE
ZRA=% (2007) B7S)HENRATERUT:

8. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method to
prevent the inherent risk in the business operation, which
complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities on
capital management. Besides, the Bank also target to maintain
sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operation in maximising
shareholders’ value. The Bank may adjust its capital structure
actively to adapt with the change of economic environment and
related risk characteristics.

Core capital includes paid-up capital, capital reserves, surplus
reserves and retained earnings. Supplementary capital includes
general reserves.

The capital adequacy ratio calculated by the Bank in accordance
with the “Regulations Governing Disclosure Information of
Commercial Bank” (CBRC [2007] No.7 ) promulgated by CBRC is
as follows:

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
DA A EEN Core capital 3,355,695,042 3,275,308,308
WEHEA Supplementary capital 120,894,852 133,560,273
FAZNEE ] Net capital base 3,476,589,894 3,408,863,581
TN XUBS 28 77 1. Th 3 KB 8 A 3 Risk weighted assets and market risk adjustment 9,316,034,216 11,138,596,851
RIDRATERE Core capital adequacy ratio 36.02% 29.40%
RATERE Capital adequacy ratio 37.32% 30.60%

h KB E

1. 15 XS

1.1 EANKEER
FEANKEEESAST SN FEAMNG, TEHRETHGE
FAHRZ DN FAREEIRE IR BITE L SREER
BElE. ANBIMMEAXNGEERE TAMBRZRMMEBI, RH
MERMEANKEERE FTHALEEAIE. STHEARRIFAE
ORI

FERNEHETRE: S—EHENTRERTHERNEE
TEENE, S TAER IR E Es AT B RMUE 5T
FHEHBETAANENSZ AR —LFEUHNEm. 58
R EFRE R TRITW SN E—4FET W ihiB v E
HERAARE .

RARRBREITEESE. EAE I ENTENRER
M ERALEI BRI R AGE TR AN ARARERNYE
FHZERRHTHRE, NRFREBAT A RN EH
RRIRKEE S .

9. Financial Instruments Risk Management
(1) Credit risk

(1.1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations. The Bank’s credit
risk exposure mainly arises from loans and advances to
customers. Credit risk of off balance sheet mainly arises from the
issued letter of credit, guarantee, and loan commitment.

Centralisation of credit risk: When a certain number of customers
in the same business activities, or in the same geographical
location, or their industry with similar economic characteristics
that will be subject to the same economic changes. The
centralisation of credit risk reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s
performance to certain industry or geographical position.

The Bank established a standard policy and procedures for
credit related business. The procedures could be divided as
investigation, review, approval and subsequent administration
procedures respectively to control and monitor the credit risk.
The Bank reviews the borrower’s business operation condition
periodically, analyses the credit quality, and make necessary loan
impairment provisions.
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Tt 548 4R e GBIk AR P AR R B 7E SR B S SR AR R A XS
B B, ZEZZHRIE. REEEL R RFBRER

EEESRAMBIF ZHEE .

1.2 REEEMBAY R EMIERIERE RN R XERARE
it 1

TAFNGRE, NEBIAERYRHEARREBERERSR
RAE AR A FIE T :

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments is similar
with that from loans and advances to customers. Hence, the
Bank manages the application, post-lending management and
the requirments of collateral guarantee with the same

procedures.

(1.2) The maximum credit risk exposure without consideration
of any collateral and other credit enhancements

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure
of the Bank without taking account of any collateral and other
credit enhancements is set out below:

2009-12-31

2008-12-31

TFE R AR TR Balances with central banks
TER[E Ml I Due from banks and other financial institutions
FE#RE Placements with financial institutions

RHMERAT

Financial assets held for trading

e AT Derivative financial assets

RIS AN Loans and advances to customers
Al E SRR Available-for-sale financial assets
kA Other assets

ait Total

FERAFERRNRH O HEL. 2) Credit commitments (Note 7.2)
=AE AR A Maximum credit risk exposure

1,499,850,186
760,963,181
2,129,647,393
12,469,437
9,393,993,073
600,419,057
53,059,804
14,450,402,131
682,418,694
15,132,820,825

1,440,646,223
2,341,349,749
2,421,199,483
74,377,593
8,620,730
10,621,192,729
389,787,080
121,370,342
17,418,543,929
808,690,614
18,227,234,543

1.3 NG ERE

MRS FERFE T X, siEE B {4
4, HERAXNBESMENES. N, NEITVFAHXE
ZFRBHAEEMENE S, FEARAITL A X RS
R IR AR o
ANAETEAERNEARERINVESEBRER. KABEN
WEABRZITIEREFE, BSEMTIR. 7.

1.4 R

KN BIRIER S FHIE X IR EFTE BRS8N
KA, WFEAEYERINEESE, AN RS T HXIER.

AR ETE M TR
- TR, BEMABE. FE. RNSEIIHE
- HFAARE, BRAONEREES.
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(1.3) Risk Concentration
If it is determined that the Bank’s counterparties are
concentrated in certain industries or geographical areas, or
having similar economic characteristics, its credit risk is normally
higher. In addition, different industry and geographical area may
have different characteristics, hence its respective credit risk is

not similar.

The Bank mainly provides loan and financial guarantees to
domestic customers. Analysis for industry concentration
information for loans and advances, please refer to Note 5.7.

(1.4) Collateral

The amount and types of the collateral the Bank needs to
acquire depends on the credit risk evaluation of the
counterparties. The Bank carried out related guidelines on the

types of collateral and the evaluation parameter.

Following are the main types of collateral:

e For commercial loans, collateral mainly includes properties,
inventories, equity investments or other receivables; and

e For retail loans, collateral mainly includes residential properties.



SEESBMBEMIHSENE, BIEEXIIVEKIEBMNIL  The management will monitor the market value of the collateral

Y, HAaE#HTRAEEN T EMEEESMIBERMOT{r  periodically and based on the related agreements may require
sy, the borrowers to increase the collateral. When performing the

adequacty review of loss provision, the change in the market
value of the collateral will be considered.

1.5 ERKEE (1.5) Credit Quality
AN B EMEMAGRNBREESNERRESTNT: The credit quality by class of financial assets of the Bank
(excluding impaiment provision) is analysed as follows:
2009-12-31 BREBtREE CEBERRE SRE &it
Neither overdue nor  Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
TERE) M I Due from banks and other financial institutions 760,963,181 - - 760,963,181
FE#EE Placements with financial institutions 2,129,647,393 - - 2,129,647,393
ZHEEBART Financial assets held for trading - - B .
NWF B Interest receivable 30,487,290 - - 30,487,290
RIS ANERR Loans and advances to customers 9,301,719,302 7,965,885 389,775,935 9,699,461,122
A ESm A= Available-for-sale investments 600,419,057 - - 600,419,057
&t Total 12,8283,236,223 7,965,885 389,775,935  13,220,978,043
2008-12-31 BREPtERRE CSEBERRE 2RE ait
Neither overdue nor  Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
FERE W I Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,341,349,749 - - 2,341,349,749
Eiidanksiscna Placements with financial institutions 2,421,199,483 - - 2,421,199,483
oSBT Financial assets held for trading 74,377,593 - - 74,377,593
SR & Interest receivable 110,247,379 - - 110,247,379
RIS AN Loans and advances to customers 10,651,972,252 18,186,263 335,428,480  10,905,586,995
AJEH ELR AT Avalilable-for-sale investments 389,787,080 - - 389,787,080
&t Total 15,888,933,536 18,186,263 335,428,480 16,242,548,279
R EE R R ER AR R R B Neither overdue nor impaired loans
THREBEARINTTFASNERBBEARSGHBABER  The composition of neither overdue nor impaired loans by type
A of guarantee at the balance sheet date was as follows:
2009-12-31
EE xiE Ait
Pass Special Mention Total
(el e Unsecured loans 1,316,879,615 - 1,316,879,615
RIE X Guaranteed loan 2,979,725,271 19,938,344 2,999,663,615
AT Secured by mortgage 4,029,481,034 4,346,595 4,033,827,629
G RAE Secured by pledges 951,348,443 - 951,348,443
ait Total 9,277,434,363 24,284,939 9,301,719,302
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2008-12-31

EE xiE

Special Mention

#iit

Pass Total

_\
TIIF
i
T
q

FRILE Y
AR
gl

o
i

E
i

7]

=
s

op
=

Unsecured loans
Guaranteed loan
Secured by mortgage
Secured by pledges

Total

1,620,767,730 - 1,620,767,730

3,868,978,499 - 3,868,978,499

4,682,611,337 10,554,661 4,693,165,998
369,060,025 - 369,060,025
10,541,417,591 10,554,661 10,651,972,252

SEHER R ERNER TR ER

Overdue but not impaired loans and advances

FAFnERE, DaBEREENE MRHEBFME S  Aging analysis of overdue but not impaired loans as at the
HranT: balance sheet date was as follows:
2009-12-31
1MAA 14 AEIAA 24 RAEIBYMA &it FHEHEEMARNE
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals
WHNEF  Loans and advances to customers 7,959,404 6,481 - 7,965,885 31,860,000
2008-12-31
1AW 11 AEI2AR 24 REIBMNA ait FEFEHEANARNE
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals
GIRR BN Loans and advances to customers 18,186,263 - - 18,186,263 64,942,447

CRENRTEERRER

WMREBFIIERERPRBIRA R BERENBHINGE —DE
ZIERKRE, BIZBERNE
ZE MR AT, MIZRMBRARBEREINAZE RER

o IXLETIER FEHITEAN "X

R REKT

TAFNGEFE, ARAFAREERERK

X 5

PSPSNGE/

;IR KM R E

2& ! N ‘ m—ﬁ )

EALNE

EREiEREY S NPN

Impaired loans and advances

Where objective evidences identified that single or multiple
events occurred after the initial recognition of the loan and the
impact from the events on expected future cash flows can be
estimated reliably, the relevant financial assets should be
recognised as impaired loans. These loans are classified as
Substandard, Doubtful and Loss.

As at balance sheet date, the fair value of collateral of impaired

(A — .
SATEIIRAT loans held by the Bank were as follows:
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
BRI R The mortgages of impaired loan 1,758,228,558 1,667,113,433
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LRI IRAE A AN E AL BIRYE B BT L EL BT
IR SRS RN A E AT BB EHE

JILZ?JEHB_L
AEmNERNEZIER N RENAZE KR AFAREAE
T, EEEE RS IHE LR RIB 5 B KM 4
KRB R AKX . 2 F=F A RAVHARR S & B R LR, B A]
Hb—rﬁuwﬂ]]iﬂ,ﬂio

KRR shEXE BN ERBAREE, HHlEMEN

NEERMEERE, SBAEHRATAGEZRSMER
PRI
FARREEREEER T AR FIEE TR TR

FREE, FEERURMATHOSHIAS. BiAATN
TN SR T R EE A AR S RAIEHN BAREL S

XEREE X IR EAMA R, FEMIERN, Bt T — &5
FERLFSRIRH A BRI RNIEIAMAR, B BIEEXE
RBREEIPATIROL, MIEARIITORER, BARNER
EATEHNFRHEITEESET.

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determinded on
the basis of the present disposition of collateral experience and
market conditions on the latest available value of the external
evaluation.

(2) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of inability to repay the fund on maturity.

The mismatch of assets and liabilities amount or maturity dates
may also result in such risk.

The Bank’s Risk Management Division is responsible for the
Bank’s liquidity risk management. It designs its related policy and
management process, and present liquidity reports to Assets &
Liabilities Management Committee on a monthly basis.

The Bank’s liquidity risk management approach system includes
planning, management, adjustment and emergency plan. In
accordance with the regulatory department’s liquidity risk
monitoring index system, the Bank designs a series of daily
liquidity monitoring indicators to monitor the implementation of
the indicator and manages them at different levels.
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T2009F12A318, AAFMEMAT ReMAGNEIEAE 2NT:

The maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities of the Bank as at 31 December 2009 is as follows:

181 HA/ BN R 2IE

Overdue/On demand

1Al
Within 1 month

SREAE:

WM& RAFH RERITHIN
GREen

TSR
BRSSRIR
eSS

Hib &R A=
SRATAIT

SR

B & EAC S B TE RN A &
TSR R

W W 738

Hitb &R 7=
SRAGET

BN AE

fREE AR

Financial assets:

Cash and deposits with central banks
Due from and placement with banks
Derivative financial assets

Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale investments

Other assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Placement and borrowings from banks
Derivative financial liabilities
Customer deposits

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net liquidity

Commitments:

815,311,654
276,160,981

206,583,565
52,253
1,298,108,453

55,568,814
2,729,286,230
705,504
2,785,560,548
(1,487,452,005)

1,147,702,064
438,854
1,375,641,713
99,964,142
11,465,414
2,635,202,187

1,258,281,434
452,539
729,985,914
1,975,475
1,990,695,362
644,506,825
38,556,263
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2009-12-31

1ZE34M A 3ITREIFE 1ZE55 5% E FeHARR Ait

1 to 3 months 3 months to 1 years 1 to 5 years 5 years above undated Total
- - - - 689,906,497 1,505,218,151

967,269,661 294,631,868 204,846,000 - - 2,890,610,574
1,016,652 2,688,651 8,325,280 - - 12,469,437
1,902,962,491 1,683,595,623 3,619,084,161 606,125,520 - 9,393,993,073
99,827,108 - 400,637,807 - - 600,419,057
14,432,822 26,516,149 593,166 - - 53,059,804
2,985,508,734 2,007,432,291 4,233,486,414 606,125,520 689,906,497 14,455,770,096
784,240,450 2,008,326,536 379,868,934 - - 4,486,286,168

- 4,810,264 9,056,431 - - 14,319,234
1,086,948,151 2,031,881,038 62,509,197 - - 6,640,610,530
3,139,684 5,421,892 225,537 - - 11,468,092
1,874,328,285 4,050,439,730 451,660,099 - - 11,1562,684,024
1,111,180,449 (2,043,007,439) 3,781,826,315 606,125,520 689,906,497 3,303,086,072

51,940,408

113,852,618

478,069,405

682,418,694
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T2008F12A318, AAAMEMAT ReMAGNEIEAE2NT:

The maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities of the Bank as at 31 December 2008 is as follows:

B HA/BDBHEE

Overdue/On demand

1Al
Within 1 month

SR

WMe R IF A LRI TN
ENIE
RHMEMAT"
TESmAF
RIGGRANER

A ES AR
Hit &R A

SRR AT

SRR

Bk 72 Bt @ B E RN T &
TESM AR

USTIRED

Eft e
SRARAT

RN FER

fERAE:

Financial assets:

Cash and deposits with central banks
Due from and placement with banks
Financial assets held for trading
Derivative financial assets

Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale investments

Other assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Placement and borrowings from banks
Derivative financial liabilities
Customer deposits

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net liquidity

Commitments :

821,798,803
334,027,729

251,146,489
102,177
1,407,075,198

54,558,118
2,512,901,390
707,529
2,568,167,037
(1,161,091,839)

2,066,799,920
74,377,593
306,037
1,303,333,638
37,768,798
3,482,585,986

2,871,940,837
875,139
389,451,625
4,559,199
3,266,826,800
215,759,186
64,581,738
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2008-12-31

12310 AR ITREIFE 1ZE55 5&E FHR Ait

1 to 3 months 3 months to 1 years 1 to 5 years 5 years above undated Total
- - - - 623,848,022 1,445,646,825
2,081,502,983 68,346,000 211,872,600 - - 4,762,549,232
- - - - - 74,377,593

4,223,003 4,054,409 37,281 - - 8,620,730
2,276,842,955 1,695,548,268 5,000,797,930 93,523,449 - 10,621,192,729
- - 389,787,080 - - 389,787,080

38,005,699 45,415,184 78,484 - - 121,370,342
4,400,574,640 1,813,363,861 5,602,573,375 93,523,449 623,848,022 17,423,544,531
1,875,544,773 4,077,321,473 - - - 8,879,365,201
633,210 11,079,514 37,281 - - 12,625,144
778,422,635 1,5627,737,036 8,568,852 - - 5,217,081,538
9,029,244 34,572,924 92,717 - - 48,961,613
2,663,629,862 5,650,710,947 8,698,850 - - 14,158,033,496
1,736,944,778 (3,837,347,086) 5,593,874,525 93,523,449 623,848,022 3,265,511,035

49,220,554

176,593,255

518,295,067

808,690,614
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(3) Market risk

The Bank’s market risk is mainly from the gap arising from
interest rate and exchange rate products, derived from both
trading and non-trading activities portfolio. The Bank’s market
risk management objective is to avoid excessive loss on the

mAT TN ENTERL, FEREEARZEMTA

TR B M IXUBE O 52118 o

RRF AN EERLSIE2THINHNRH O, R ssE
AN EREBRBER T REEEZER R
ArRRBREMENSIERENEENHNL, KEHR

BRES A AR

MESHT, KBEME, EONRE. E5

Bank’s income statement and equity due to market risk, as well

as reduce volatility impact from financial instruments.

The Risk Management Division overviews the whole bank market
risk exposure, and also is responsible for preparing the relevant
market risk management policies submitted to the Risk
Management Committee.

The Bank measured the market risk with consideration of the

FERE T & FLRT, iz R0l SRR G R BHl  established benchmarks and management ability, includes
TP PLHER, sensitivity analysis and pressure tests, etc. The market risk of a
new product and business should be assessed before
3.1 CERE introduction.
EHFALNB AR NERBTER (8.1) Currency risk

E?L%JLJE?_J_LB_LIJ]Q HUZETRE ?’_ﬂ?i%/&z:j]ﬁ'ﬁﬁ ] ﬁ_E’]J_LB_L 0

The risk is mainly resulted from currency mismatches of assets
and liabilities, and the probable loss of foreign exchange position

caused by fluctuation of exchange rate.

F2009F12A31H, ARBEMB XA R ARRTMIIR
LI As at balance sheet date, relevant assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:
2009-12-31
ESH AR Hit Ait
USD (RMB RMB Other (RMB Total
equivalent) equivalent)
B’PE: Assets:
W& R PR P SR TR Cash and balances with the central bank 26,976,655  1,477,299,948 941,548  1,505,218,151
BRIl Due from and placement with banks 2,235,686,821 526,108,113 128,815,640  2,890,610,574
TR SRR R OITESART Financial assets held for trading and derivatives 4,884,979 7,466,195 118,263 12,469,437
BN Loans and advances to customers 3,655,238,193 5,180,141,374 558,613,506 9,393,993,073
A ES R Available-for-sale investments 400,637,807 199,781,250 600,419,057
Hb s Other assets 12,159,318 160,841,147 2,931,671 175,932,136
AFEEI Total assets 6,335,583,773  7,551,638,027 691,420,628  14,578,642,428
Ff: Liabilities:
Bk E A SR TF R IFAA S  Placement and borrowings from banks 3,461,275,158 430,736,201 594,274,809 4,486,286,168
TESBRR Derivative financial liabilities 6,218,083 7,982,887 118,264 14,319,234
K TF Customer deposits 1,004,161,843  5,546,343,036 90,105,651 6,640,610,530
Hhfafk Other liabilities 3,194,714 58,147,916 12,924,175 74,266,805
AfEET Total liabilities 4,474,849,798  6,043,210,040 697,422,899  11,215,482,737
AR et Net position 1,860,733,975  1,508,427,987 (6,002,271)  3,363,159,691
TTESMTIEZ YL EH Notional amounts of derivative financial instruments 3,131,773,777 1,642,969,352 39,415,946 4,814,159,075
fEreAiH Commitments 254,628,279 391,172,638 36,617,777 682,418,694
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2008-12-31

=T ARM Hit &it
USD (RMB RMB Other (RMB Total
equivalent) equivalent)
A= Assets:
W& K F A LR ITEIT Cash and balances with the central bank 18,340,601 1,426,617,436 688,788 1,445,646,825
[&]al RT3 Due from and placement with banks 4,406,668,405 314,921,896 40,958,931 4,762,549,232
RHEERMATENITESBRFT Financial assets held for trading and derivatives 8,620,730 74,377,593 - 82,998,323
BRI Loans and advances to customers 4,661,483,594  5,328,709,803 630,999,332  10,621,192,729
Al E S AT Available-for-sale investments 389,787,080 - - 389,787,080
HApAR Other assets 124,998,850 110,513,033 (2,994,405) 232,517,478
RrEEIT Total assets 9,609,899,260 7,255,139,761 669,652,646  17,534,691,667
i Liabilities:
Sl B A S B ATE R IR A A4S Placement and borrowings from banks 7,714,629,182 630,000,000 534,736,019  8,879,365,201
TSR Derivative financial liabilities 12,625,144 - - 12,625,144
ShgcE=d Customer deposits 336,204,225 4,789,792,916 91,084,397 5,217,081,538
HAb sk Other liabilities 19,542,065 104,067,574 26,433,317 150,042,956
AREIT Total liabilities 8,083,000,616 5,623,860,490 652,253,733  14,259,114,839
RrEmfEEsL~t Net position 1,526,898,644 1,731,279,271 17,398,913 3,275,576,828
MEEMIAEZL G Notional amounts of derivative financial instruments 2,098,772,091 478,213,154 97,906,693 2,674,891,938
RS Commitments 284,436,025 462,540,234 61,714,355 808,690,614
PTEAEMTEARTHERT, INIXNAMTICERATGEALE  With all other variables held constant, the following shows the

B9 & BRI B BTR A R A T IR0

impact on profit before tax and equity when foreign currency
change against functional currency.

2009-12-31 2008-12-31
TETD 3o 8t B FI R 0 X Bt B R M
Change in variables Impact on profit Impact on profit
NANTIEET% -1% change against functional currency (18,607,340) (15,268,986)
NAGHAET% +1% change against functional currency 18,607,340 15,268,986
PLESIRME AT E T A A G EEE8SH L RN, E  The sensitivity analysis above is on the basis that assets and

HETHHMREAZR, I ARTICENAERT T
Xt ) R A 20

BRADPTETUAT™RIZ:
(1) BMCERGRERZIREMMXNARTFREBLREE (T
B 411) C R 3B B 1 961E A BIE 42

liabilities have static currency risk structure, it calculates that
when other factors are stable, the impact of net profit and equity
caused by the fluctuation of the foreign exchange rate.

The related analysis is on the assumption as follows:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the foreign exchange gains
and losses caused by the 1% change of the closing rate(middle
price) of the different foreign currencies against RMB at the
balance sheet date;
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(2) The currency exchange rate fluctuations mean the currency of

the RMB exchange rate fluctuations in the same direction
simultaneously;

15

(8) The exchange rate risk exposure exclude off-balance sheet items;

(4) Since the Bank’s USD currency book accounted for above

90% of foreign currency account, sensitivity analysis only consider

the impact of RMB exchange rate fluctuation against USD.

Based on the above assumptions, actual changes of the Bank’s
net exchange gain and loss resulting from changes in exchange

MERLZIETE T TRITAS . AGEMFTINLTHZEIR
ANTE (st (B E A R ) S E HE M (B A R =) B (8] A 6
HIRUBE o

FATORIER IR G ERTSE, HIRARE RS
5 A RBEAFENEE RSB ERRR.

WR R R MR E R R RITHIAE . AR KR
FEBEMREHFTEMRADITIE,

iz,

Ik 5

mE

(3.2) Interest rate risk

rate may be different from the outcome of the sensitivity analysis.

The Bank’s interest rate risk mainly arises from the mismatch of

generating assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

contractual maturity date and repricing date of interest-

The Bank’s interest rate risk is regulated by Risk Management

Division, which implements related policy and regulatory process,
and reports the risk condition to Assets & Liabilities Committee
on a monthly basis.

The Bank set loan and deposit interest rate strictly in accordance
with PBOC requirement. The management of the interest risk
mainly includes gap analysis on interest rate repricing.

F2009FE12H31H, ARNBAMEMATLEHAGIZEEE  As at 31 December 2009, the Bank’s financial assets and
ENMANB A EAMEREENFOT: financial liabilities analysis by contractual repricing date or
maturity date, whichever is earlier, were as follow:
2009-12-31
31™Am 3TREIFE 1255 5FNE TitE ait
Within 3 months 3 months 1to 5years Non-interest Total
to 1 year 5years above bearing

B Assets:
W& MEFEMFRIBITHRIN  Cash and balances with the central bank 1,473,640,508 - - 31,577,643  1,505,218,151
[5) M R I Due from and placement with banks 2,5695,978,706 294,631,868 - - 2,890,610,574
THMEMATRITESE  Financial assets held for trading and
. derivatives - - - 12,469,437 12,469,437
RIS Loans and advances to customers 8,598,132,493 795,860,580 - - 9,393,993,073
AEHESRA Available-for-sale investments 300,155,790 300,263,267 - = 600,419,057
Hitb 7 7= Other assets - - - 175,932,136 175,932,136
#reait Total assets 12,967,907,497  1,390,755,715 - - 219,979,216 14,578,642,428
i Liabilities:
& % oAb £ RN A TF AL )
B AL Placement and borrowings from banks 4,256,286,168 230,000,000 - - 4,486,286,168
TSR R Derivative fiancial liabilities - - - 14,319,234 14,319,234
SEgcEN Customer deposits 4,5654,890,295 2,031,881,038 58,839,197 - 6,640,610,530
HAb s Other liabilities - - - 74,266,805 74,266,805
AfRET Total liabilities 8,811,176,463 2,261,881,038 58,839,197 - 88,586,039 11,215,482,737
IR RGO Net postion 4,156,731,084  (871,125,323)  (563,839,197) - 131,393,177  3,363,159,691
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2008-12-31

31T Am 3IMRAEIE 1855 5HERE TitE Ait

winingmontns ST Cve - bearn Totsl
A= Assets:
N& RERFPREITHI  Cash and balances with the central bank 1,440,646,222 - - - 5,000,603 1,445,646,825
[ERZeni Due from and placement with banks 4,687,368,632 68,346,000 6,834,600 - - 4,762,549,232
THMEMATRSTESE  Financial assets held for trading and
. derivatives - - 74,377,593 - 8,620,730 82,998,323
R Loans and advances to customers 8,076,092,883  2,545,099,846 - - - 10,621,192,729
At ES R Available-for-sale investments 97,300,783 292,486,297 - - - 389,787,080
HAb A= Other assets - - - - 232,517,478 232,517,478
A Total assets 14,301,408,520 2,905,932,143 81,212,193 - 246,138,811  17,534,691,667
TR Liabilities:
[5] Ml e At & BB 7 AL )
BHRAAS Placement and borrowings from banks 8,472,286,623 407,078,578 - - - 8,879,365,201
TSR R Derivative financial liabilities - - - - 12,625,144 12,625,144
SEgEE Y Customer deposits 3,680,702,380 1,527,810,206 8,568,952 - - 5,217,081,538
Ht sk Other liabilities - - - - 150,042,956 150,042,956
nRAT Total liabilities 12,152,989,003 1,934,888,784 8,568,952 - 162,668,100  14,259,114,839
B ivs ! Net postion 2,148,419,517 971,043,359 72,643,241 - 83,470,711 3,275,576,828

FEHMFMRTAEEA AR RF RN, mEEMERL
BERARAEIEAAMEFNENL. AAREERITREHMA
FERItESMAGRNEIERER. FARERTAE KA —F
BEEFREN—X. BEFNETANMNEEGXeRITAY
IRITREE, AERIHBIASME.

MTREHMZEANTERT, FXRAERENGEZIX
A B A8 B XA 71 77 T AR o

Floating interest rate instruments expose the Bank to cash flow
interest rate risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose
the Bank to fair value interest rate risk. The Bank’s interest rate
risk policy requires it to manage interest rate risk by maintaining
an appropriate mixure of fixed and variable interest rate
instruments. The policy also requires it to manage the maturities
of interest generating financial assets and interest bearing
financial liabilities. Interest on floating interest rate instruments is
repriced at intervals of less than one year. Interest on fixed
interest rate instruments is priced at inception of the financial
instrument and is fixed until maturity.

With all other variables held constant, the following shows the
impact on profit before tax and equity when interest rate change.

2009-12-31
FETH PO ETREPERA XA 2 A 4
Change in basis points Impact on profit Impact on equity
HEA100NE = + 100 basis points 33,104,677 (1,484,388)
R100 M E A - 100 basis points (33,104,677) 1,484,718
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2008-12-31

FlZEL T Xof Rt BT 7% M) Ak HO R 0
Change in basis points Impact on profit Impact on equity
#1004 5 & + 100 basis points 22,440,083 (11,406,879)
1000 E & - 100 basis points (22,440,083) 11,811,624
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The sensitivity analysis above is on the basis that assets and
liabilities have static interest rate risk structure. The analysis
measures the change of interest rate within only one year,
reflecting the impact on annualised interest income caused by
repricing of assets and liabilities, based on the assumption as
follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities repriced again at the middle of the
period for within 3 months and 3-12 months (that is, assets or
liabilities repriced or matured within three months are repriced on
time or matured, asset or liabilities repriced or matured in three
months to one year are repriced or matured in the third month or
matured);

(2) Interest rate yield curve moves in parallel with the change of
interest rate;

(8) No change in the portfolio of assets and liabilities;

(4) The interest rate risk exposure excludes off-balance sheet
items.

Base on the above assumption, the actual change of the net
interest income caused by the changes in interest rate may be
different from the result of the sensitivity analysis.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged,
or a liability could be settled, between knowledgeable and willing
parties at an arm’s length transaction. Subject to the existence of
an active market, such as an authorised securities exchange, the
market value is the best reflection of the fair values of financial
instruments. As there is no available market value for part of the
financial assets and liabilities held and issued by the Bank, the
discounted cash flow method or other valuation methods
described below are adopted to determine the fair value of these
assets and liabilities. However, the value determined by such
methods is subject to the impact of future cash flows, time
assumption and discount rates used.

The following methods and assumptions have been used in
estimating fair values:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including
derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair value by reference to
the quoted market prices when available. If quoted market prices
are not available then fair values are estimated on the basis of
discounted cash flows or quoted price from counter parties. The
fair value are considered to be equal to their carrying amounts;
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TRINTTHEAAMEITEN)EBRIAAAMENEE
BRARHTTE:

(i) The fair values of other financial assets or liabilities maturing
within 12 months are assumed to be approximately equal to their
carrying amounts as a result of short duration;

(iiiy The fair value of fixed rate loans is estimated by comparing
the market interest rates offered when the loans are granted, with
the current market rates offered on similar loans. Changes in the
credit quality of loans within the portfolio are not taken into
account in determining the gross fair values as the impact of
credit risk is recognised separately by deducting the amount of
impairment provision from the carrying amount;

(iv) The interest rates of deposits from customers, floating or
fixed, depend on the types of products. The fair values of
demand deposits and saving deposits without specific maturity
date represent the amounts payable to customers at any
moment. The fair values of the fixed deposits are estimated on
the basis of discounted cash flows with the discounted rate as
the deposit interest rate corresponding to the remaining duration.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide a
consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the Bank’s
assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may use
different assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair values
disclosed by different financial institutions may not be entirely
comparable.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount of the fiancial assets and financial
liabilities is not material as at the balance sheet date.

The following table shows the valuation techniques for evaluating
fair value of finacial instruments.

AFHIFHNE HEZAATNER HERARATNE Ait

HhisEE EMTiIsZE
2009-12-31 Quoted market Valuation Others Total

price techniques

R G EeRIA Financial assets held for trading )
Al ELR AT Avalilable-for-sale investments 600,419,057 - 600,419,057
TTEEmA Derivative financial assets 12,469,437 - 12,469,437
EMATEIT Total financial assets 612,888,494 - 612,888,494
TSR TR Derivative financial liabilities 14,319,234 - 14,319,234
ERAGEIT Total financial liabilities 14,319,234 - 14,319,234
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AFTIHNE BEEATNEE HEERFTHE &it
K EE FMTiIETE
2008-12-31 Quoted market Valuation Others Total
price techniques

T HME R Financial assets held for trading - 74,377,593 - 74,377,593
Al E SRR Available-for-sale investments - 389,787,080 - 389,787,080
PTEEMAFT Derivative financial assets - 8,620,730 - 8,620,730
ERATEIT Total financial assets - 472,785,403 - 472,785,403
PTESR AR Derivative financial liabilities - 12,625,144 - 12,625,144
SRAGEET Total financial liabilities - 12,625,144 - 12,625,144

T XKEAXERERS

1. KB T HTIAEAT

FAERE, THIEFHMA AR
(1) JALA FEMEAH MRRATT;
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ENDY
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10. Related party transactions
(1) Criteria for identifying related parties

Details of the Bank’s major related parties in 2009 are as follows:
(1) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;

(2) Key management personnel of the Bank or the close family
members;

(3) Enterprises under controls, jointly controls or significant
influence of the key management personnel of the Bank or the
close family members;

(2) Parent Company of the Bank

=L MB35 Tt EMHE A AER Ll
Name Business Nature Registered Adress Registered Captial Shareholding
KERITHR AT BITRSHRS Hrond 3,220 Ji#m 100%
United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and Financial Service Singapore 3,220 Million SGD 100%

3. FAMRSAARABXRBRZZNEMKIET

(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions
during the period are as follows:

B E YNSIESA

Name Relationship
KERITER AR EBSIT BRARDT

United Overseas Bank Hongkong Branch Branch of parent company
KERITHRAREHTT BARMT

United Overseas Bank London Branch Branch of parent company
KRERITERARRR DT BRARDT

United Overseas Bank Tokyo Branch

UOBH A ETE( 78 HBBR/A R

UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) CO.,Ltd
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc.

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc.

Branch of parent company

52 82 AHE A2 )

Company under the common control of parent company
B =R ARSI A F)

Company under the common control of parent company
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4. FATRSXRBAZEERS

(4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

FRRIFHE Due from banks 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
KERITER A United Overseas Bank Limited 10,324,325 359,436,072
KERITER AR EBNT United Overseas Bank Hong Kong Branch 52,979,536 12,838,810
KEARITRIR A REH AT United Overseas Bank London Branch 4,121,072 480,118
KRERITERABREDT United Overseas Bank Tokyo Branch 418,869 1,356,346
67,843,802 374,111,346

BFEARFARI Borrowing from others 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
KERITERAA United Overseas Bank Limited 3,896,181,277 5,018,456,887
KERITERAREENT United Overseas Bank Hong Kong Branch 159,368,690 1,660,603,325
4,055,549,967 6,679,060,212

T gEE Customer deposit 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
UOBHRAEIE( L) FIRAA UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) CO.,LTD 53,764,745 -
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 419,332,888 -
473,097,633 -

BrER T - Eo At RZ TR Receivables-other receivables 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
KERITER A A United Overseas Bank Limited 4,860 1,394,118
Rz R - R F 2 Receivable-interest receivables 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
KERITERRA United Overseas Bank Limited - 9,493
KERITER AR EFBNIT United Overseas Bank Hong Kong Branch 133 -
133 9,493

ISARE-RIIEN- S IVAREN Payables-other payables 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
KERITHIR AR United Overseas Bank Limited 12,505,057 29,601,732
RATER - R AT FI 2 Payable-interest payable 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
KERITERAA United Overseas Bank Limited 1,089,267 3,182,664
KERITER AR EFBNIT United Overseas Bank Hong Kong Branch 2,034 755,661
UOBRAEIE( L) BIRAF UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) CO.,LTD 85,250 -
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 124,958 -
1,251,509 3,938,325

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 115



E2008%F1 A2 (&N A) =

20005 % 2008412 H31 A 1§ jE]
. From 2 January 2008 (Date of

)=} .
FIBHA Interest income Year 2009 Conversion) to 31 December 2008
KERITERAA United Overseas Bank Limited 247,455 52,111,974
KERITER AR EFBNT United Overseas Bank Hong Kong Branch 298 86,264
247,753 52,198,238
200851 A2A (L& A)E
20094 2008412831 B 1L #id]
From 2 January 2008 (Date of

)=} .
HExH Interest Expense Year 2009 Conversion) to 31 December 2008
KERITERAF United Overseas Bank Limited 28,215,925 144,383,250
KERITHR AR ES DT United Overseas Bank Hong Kong Branch 2,487,759 59,874,866
KERITERA B 1T United Overseas Bank London Branch 1,659 131,609
UOBH# R ETE (L8 B R/ A UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) CO.,LTD 699,405 -
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc UOB Holdings (USA) Inc 147,357 -
31,552,105 204,389,725
TEEMTAEY Derivatives 2009-12-31 2008-12-31
KERITARAF United Overseas Bank Limited 1,219,672,095 922,984,567

FpEE LRI ITHEITHNRZZRIEEER AR5 & it

17, U—MRXSNMEAENEM, FREBLSEFHIT.

AR EXREEARELRBNZZERAT:
FREEANRBELAAANES. BRENBREEAR.

FEEEANRFEBANOT:

Transactions between the Bank and related parties mentioned
above are carried out in normal course of business and
commercial terms and market price.

Transactions between the Bank and key management personnel
are as follows:

Key management personnel include directors, supervisors and
senior management.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as
follows:

BH200851 A2H (L ENi% A)E

20094 2008412531 H LL#ja]

From 2 January 2008 (Date of

Year 2009 Conversion) to 31 December 2008

e N EMEHERER Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 31,281,932 33,794,598
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T=. MEHERZAE
FMERFWLARATDEESTF201043824 ARWH .

11. Post balance sheet events

As at the date on which the financial statements are approved,
there is no material post balance sheet event that needs to be
disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

12. Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform
with the current year’s presentation.

13. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of

Directors on 24 March 2010.
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2009z BhiRE
ERRATA TO THE 2009 ANNUAL REPORT

B KRESRIT(PE)BRARRAK

3 F2010F3 A24H E R KIKLRIT(F E)BIR/A F20094 £

RE, BEFSPAAREXRRTRZZBHMOT:

KBETTR 5

EXRARF: RRATEERKIBEEEAREAZ M AT

To: The shareholder of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

("UOB(China)")

With reference to the Annual Report 2009 of UOB(China) which
was issued on 24 March 2010, the Board of Directors wishes to
inform on the following supplementary disclosure on related

party transactions:

Related party transactions

Relationship: Company under the significant influence of the
Bank ' s director and key management

B FEIE E FEMFE A EERERA

Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
LA (EN)EEERAR BEEWRE hE E SEJL250073 7T AT

Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD25 Million Liam Wee Sin

REET R A ERBRAF Eia R A EE HRE M ZEJ029803 7T BB
zhl\jzgal_giﬁzn?é??ﬁ;ng investment Consulting and investment management  Guangzhou China USD29.8 Million Wee Ee Chao

REE( LB AERBRAF HiE R AEE HhE LE £IT4507 7T B

,\K;;ir;%:;c;r;? S;T?E?;ai) Investment Consulting and investment management  Shanghai China USD4.5 Million Wee Ee Chao
EBEYFAIEREIRAT HEFNEEE LM hE #h235871 7 SR

Hua Han Bio-pharmaceutical Holding Manufacture and sale of Chinese

Ltd

pharmaceutical products

Hong Kong China SGD23.58 Million Zhang Yue

FBYRER AR

UBI Logistics (China) Limited

HRiERIE

International freight forwarder

HhE KiE ARM3021 AT BAE
Dalian China CNY30.21 Million Zhao Xi Wang

B TR FERER Loans and advances to customers
KB AR Name 2009412H31H 2008412H31H
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
ZERH HBEXEEXS ZERH LHAXEEXS
RELLGI RELL A
Balances % Balances %
(B BERRAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 144,757,840 1.49 150,361,200 1.38
e EMFIZRIREIR/AT  Hua Han Bio-pharmaceutical Holding Ltd - - 37,038,960 0.34
FBHRBRAR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 22,275,000 0.23 22,275,000 0.20




T EEEA

Customer deposits

KEF AR Name 20094£12H31H 2008412H31H
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
ZERT HBEXEERXRS ZERE LHBEXEEZS
REALL B REALL B
Balances % Balances %
EA(E)EIEBRAA Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 16,305,178 0.25 750,821 0.01
Kh L
R REAEEERAT o9 Leong Guangdong i - 58,121,659 111
Investment & Management Co., Ltd
Kh L Shanghai
KR CmRaEBaRAT | ond Leond (Shanghal) 10,008,167 015 18274521 0.25
Investment Management Co., Ltd
FIBRARAFR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 1,548,335 0.02 3,444,568 0.07

R F 2 Interest receivables
KEF AR Name 20094£12H31H 2008412H31H
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
ZoERE HAEXEEXS R HAXEEXRS
RELL B REALL B
Balances % Balances %
EA(E)EIERRA A Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 79,014 0.26 184,443 0.17
EEAENH AR EIR/AE  Hua Han Bio-pharmaceutical Holding Ltd - - 2,841 <0.01
FBYRBRAR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 3,778 0.01 3,778 <0.01

MAFFIE Interest payables
KEF AR Name 20094£12H31H 2008412H31H
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
ZERT HBEXEERXRS ZERE LHBEXEEZS
RELL G REALLAGI
Balances % Balances %
E(EI)EERRAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 1,295 0.01 18 <0.01
Kh L
R REAERERAT o9 Leong Guangdong : i 1,001,165 223
Investment & Management Co., Ltd
Kh L Sh hai
FhE(CmRAERaRAT | ond Leong (Shangha) 41,146 0.36 96,643 0.20
Investment Management Co., Ltd
FIBYRARAFR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 100 <0.01 366 <0.01




FEBA

Interest income

KB AR

Name

20094 &

Year 2009

H200841 A2H (L& H)E
2008412831 H L HAA)

From 2 January 2008 (Date of
Conversion) to 31 December 2008

RHEH HEXAERS

ZHEH HAEXEXLZS

REALL I REALL 5
Amount % Amount %
(B ) EEBRAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 3,882,939 0.76 7,601,103 0.86
. e Kh L G d
R REAREARAT o o9 Buangeong . . 178,211 0.02
Investment & Management Co., Ltd
NI Kheng Leong (Shanghai
R EmRAEEERAT o0 eond (Shangha) 99,770 0.2 : :
Investment Management Co., Ltd
EMAEYH AR AIR/AT  Hua Han Bio-pharmaceutical Holding Ltd 232,443 0.05 1,679,519 0.19
FBYRER A UBI Logistics (China) Limited 1,329,309 0.26 1,964,389 0.22
FEEZH Interest expense
KB B Name 20094 & B2008%1 A2H (&R H)E
2008412831 HILHi A
Year 2009 From 2 January 2008 (Date of

Conversion) to 31 December 2008

RHEH HEXAERS

ZHEH HEXEXLZS

REALL I REALL 5
Amount % Amount %
A (B EEBRAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 17,983 0.01 23,429 0.01
. e Kh L G d
REFREABRERAT 0 ond SUangdong 398,211 0.29 1,125,386 0.28
Investment & Management Co., Ltd
Kh L Shanghai
KR LmRaTEaRAT | ond Leond (Shanghal) 270,772 0.20 572,676 0.14
Investment Management Co., Ltd
FBYRER A UBI Logistics (China) Limited 9,282 0.01 3,998 <0.01




FHBERASKAN

Fee and commission income

KEBEF B Name

20094 &

Year 2009

H2008%1 A2H (L& H)E
200841231 H ILHAld)

From 2 January 2008 (Date of
Conversion) to 31 December 2008

RHEH HEXAERS

RHEH HEXEEXZS

RERLLAGI RERELAGI
Amount % Amount %
. Kh L G d
REFFRABRARAT | oo oong Buangdong 2,491 0.01 406 <0.01
Investment & Management Co., Ltd
Kheng Leong (Shanghai
KR LmRaTmaRAT | ond Leond (Shanghal) 9,452 0.05 i i
Investment Management Co., Ltd
FIBMRAERAFR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 275 <0.01 367,079 112
{RERZXIN Letter of guarantee
KB H B Name 20094£12H31H 2008412H31H
2009-12-31 2008-12-31
ZERT LHBEXEERZS ZERE HAXEEZS
REALL B REALL B
Balances % Balances %
FBYIRAR LA UBI Logistics (China) Limited - - 13,669,200 12.49

RARE ERXETHITHNRSRIELEEOR LR 5 &Mt
17, UM ZNMEAENEM, FREBVSEFHIT.

Transactions between the Bank and the related parties
mentioned above are carried out under normal course of
business at commercial terms and market prices.
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